
 

 

This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters 
discussed during Agenda Item #7 – Special Presentations and Reports. If a member of the public wishes to speak at 
this time, Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 
 

This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters of 
interest within the jurisdiction of the District that are not listed on the agenda.  If a member of the public wishes to speak 
at this time, Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 
 

Notice of Regular Meeting 
Oceano Community Services District - Board of Directors Agenda 

WEDNESDAY, February 27, 2019 – 6:00 P.M. 
Oceano Community Services District Board Room 

1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA 

All items on the agenda including information items, may be deliberated. Any member of the public with an interest in 
one of these items should review the background material and request information on the possible action that could 
be taken. 
 

All persons desiring to speak during any Public Comment period are asked to fill out a “Board Appearance Form” to 
submit to the General Manager prior to the start of the meeting. Each individual speaker is limited to a presentation 
time of THREE (3) minutes per item. Persons wishing to speak on more than one item shall limit his/her remarks to a 
total of SIX (6) minutes. This time may be allocated between items in one-minute increments up to three minutes. 
Time limits may not be yielded to or shared with other speakers. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER    
2. ROLL CALL 
3. FLAG SALUTE 
4. AGENDA REVIEW 
5. CLOSED SESSION:  

A. Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9(a): Conference with legal counsel regarding Santa Maria 
Valley Water Conservation District v. City of Santa Maria, et al., 

B. Pursuant to Government Code 54957: Public Employment – General Manager; District Engineer/ 
Assistant General Manager 

C. Pursuant to Government Code §54956.9 (d)(2): Conference with District Counsel regarding 
anticipated litigation.  Number of cases:  one (1) 

 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: (NOT BEGINNING BEFORE 6:00 PM) 

7. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS:  
A. STAFF REPORTS: 

i. Operations - Field Supervisor Tony Marraccino  
ii. FCFA Operations - Chief Steve Lieberman 
iii. OCSD General Manager – Paavo Ogren 
iv. Sheriff’s South Station - Commander Stuart MacDonald  

 

B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OUTSIDE COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
i. Director Villa 

ii. Director Gibson 
iii. Vice President White 
iv. President Austin 
v. Director Replogle    

C. PUBLIC COMMENT ON SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 27, 2019 - Page 1 of 149



 

 
Public comment Members of the public wishing to speak on consent agenda items may do so when 
recognized by the Presiding Officer.  To facilitate public comment we request persons wishing to speak to fill out a 
speak request form and give it to the General Manager.  Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 

Public comment Members of the public wishing to speak on public hearing items may do so when 
recognized by the Presiding Officer.  To facilitate public comment we request persons wishing to speak to fill out a 
speak request form and give it to the General Manager.  Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 

This agenda was prepared and posted pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2. Agenda is posted at the Oceano 
Community Services District, 1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA.  Agenda and reports can be accessed and downloaded from the 
Oceano Community Services District website at www.oceanocsd.org   
ASSISTANCE FOR THE DISABLED If you are disabled in any way and need accommodation to participate in the Board 
meeting, please call the Clerk of the Board at (805) 481-6730 for assistance at least three (3) working days prior to the meeting 
so necessary arrangements can be made. 

8. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 

  
 

A. Review and Approval of Minutes for January 30, 2019 
B. Review and Approval of Cash Disbursements 

 

9. BUSINESS ITEMS:     

A. Consideration of Recommendations to Approve a grant agreement for Phase 2 of the Water Resource 
Reliability Program (WRRP) and direct the Board President to execute, and to approve a related 
budget adjustment in the amount of $177,750  

B. Consideration of recommendations to authorize the General Manager to solicit bids to replace the 
watermain on Norswing and Pershing in accordance with District Ordinance 2016-01 contract 
documents, and the attached encroachment permit issued by the County of San Luis Obispo, and to 
file a Notice of Exemption pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act with the San Luis 
Obispo County Recorder Submittal of a Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) 2019 Internal Audit 
covering Calendar Years 2017 & 2018 

C. Submittal of a Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) 2019 Internal Audit covering Calendar Years 
2017 & 2018   

D. Consideration of a Recommendation to review the 2019-20 Proposed Zone 3 Budget and provide the 
Zone 3 committee representative with direction as deemed appropriate 

E. Receive and file the June 30, 2018 Audited Financial Statements and Independent Auditors Report 
prepared by Moss, Levy and Hartzheim, LLP 

10. HEARING ITEMS:   
 

11. RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:  
 

12. LATE RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:    
 

13. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: District Policies Continued, Roles and Responsibilities with Related Agencies; 
Construction Documents (Norswing/Pershing & Highway One waterline replacement projects), Five Cities Fire 
Authority, District Rules and Regulations, Cienaga Seabreeze Park, Inc. Continued, 13th St/ HWY One Drainage 
Project, Deferred Infrastructure Program, Lopez Lake LRRP & Contract Amendments, Central Coast Blue, 
Landscape maintenance, Wastewater CIP, Recreation RFP, State Park impact to OCSD, The Place.  
 

14. FUTURE HEARING ITEMS:  
 

15. ADJOURNMENT:  

 
 
 
 
 
 February 27, 2019 - Page 2 of 149

http://www.oceanocsd.org/


Oceano Community Services District 
Summary Minutes 

Special Meeting Wednesday, January 30, 2019 – 10:00 A.M. 
Oceano Community Services District Board Room 

1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA 

1. CALL TO ORDER: at 10:00am. by President Austin
2. ROLL CALL:  All Board members present: President Austin, Vice President White, Director Villa, Director

Gibson and Director Replogle.  Also present Business and Accounting Manager Carey Casciola, and Legal
Counsel Jeff Minnery.

3. FLAG SALUTE: led by President Austin
4. PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA:

Public comment was received by Jeff Edwards, Julie Tacker, Lucia Casalinuovo, Mary Lucey, Patricia Price
and Brenda Lowe, Charles Varni, Kris Victorine, and Brad Snook.

A motion was made to adjourn the meeting and place all of the items on the next regularly scheduled 
meeting by Director Replogle and a second by Director Villa with a 2-3 roll call vote. Director Gibson, Vice 
President White and President Austin Villa dissented. 
Public comment was given by Julie Tacker, Jim Coalwell, Lucia Casalinuovo, Brenda Lowe, Mary Lucey, Kris 

Victorine, Christine Canada. 

5. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS:

6A BUSINESS ITEM: ACTION: 
Consideration and discussion of District Bylaws Section 2.1 
and Section 2.8 (“Meetings”) and Section 3 (“Committees”) 

After Board discussion and an opportunity for public 
comment, a motion was made by Vice President 
White and a second by Director Villa to amend the 
section 2.1 to read: 

 “Regular meetings of the Board of Directors (the 
Board) shall commence on the second and fourth 
Wednesday of each calendar month in the Board 
room at the District Office currently located at 1655 
Front Street, Oceano, CA 93475.  Regular meeting 
times shall be set annually pursuant to the current 
Director’s schedules and/or preference with the 
consideration to the public’s right to participate” 

2.8 to read: 

“Roll call shall be taken on the passage of all 
business items before the Board.  The roll call vote 
shall be entered in the minutes of the Board meeting 
showing those Board members voting aye, those 
voting no, and those not voting or absent.  Unless a 
Board member states that he or she is not voting on 
an item because of a conflict of interest, his or her 
silence or abstention shall be deemed and recorded 
as an affirmative vote” with a 5-0 roll call.  

Public comment was received by Julie Tacker. 

Agenda Item 8A February 27, 2019 - Page 3 of 149



 A second motion was made by Vice President 
White and a second by Director Gibson to amend 
section 3.5 to read: 
“Committee assignment and District appointments 
will be coordinated with the election of District 
officers annually.  Upon a motion and a majority 
vote, committee assignments and appointments 
may be reconsidered at any time during the 
calendar year” with a 3-2 roll call, Director Replogle 
and Director Villa dissented. 
Public comment was received by Jeff Edwards, Jim 
Coalwell, Julie Tacker, Brenda Lowe, Mary Lucey, 
Charles Varni, Gale Esposito, Joe Shacker, Kris 
Victorine, and Brad Snook. 

6B BUSINESS ITEM: ACTION: 
Consider an Agenda Item to Reconsider the 2019 Committee 
Appointments 

After Board discussion Vice President White made a 
motion to reconsider the 2019 Committee 
Appointments with and a second by Director Gibson 
3-2 roll call vote. Director Replogle and Director Villa
dissented.
Public comment was received by Julie Tacker,
Charles Varni, and Mary Lucey.

6C BUSINESS ITEM: ACTION: 
Reconsideration of appointment for 2019 Committee 
Assignments, Appointments to the Five Cities Fire Authority 
and the Alternate to the South San Luis Obispo County 
Sanitation District 

After Board discussion, a motion was made to 
continue item to the next regular meeting with AGP 
present by Vice President White and a second by 
Director Gibson.   
4-1 roll call vote.  Director Replogle dissented.
Public comment was received by Julie Tacker, Jeff
Edwards, Mary Lucey, and Charles Varni.

7. CLOSED SESSION: None
8. ADJOURNMENT: Vice President White made a motion to adjourn with a second by Director Gibson and a 5-0
roll call at approximately 11:57 am.

Agenda Item 8A February 27, 2019 - Page 4 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: February 27, 2019  

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Carey Casciola, Business and Accounting Manager  

Subject: Agenda Item #8(B): Recommendation to Approve Cash Disbursements 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board approve the attached cash disbursements. 

Discussion 

The following is a summary of the attached cash disbursements: 

Description Check Sequence Amounts 
 57534 – 57570*  

Disbursements Requiring Board Approval prior to Payment:   

            Regular Payable Register – paid 02/27/2019 57546 - 57570 $48,180.92 
   

Subtotal:  $48,180.92 
Reoccurring Payments for Board Review (authorized by Resolution 2018-11):   
            Payroll Disbursements – PPE 02/16/2019 N/A $28,081.46 
 N/A  
            Reoccurring Utility Disbursements – paid 02/13/2019 57534 - 57542 $13,704.41 
            Reoccurring Health Disbursements – paid 02/13/2019 57543 $56.21 
   

Subtotal:  $41,842.08 
 Grand Total:  $90,023.00 

* Check number 57507 for $350.00 was voided due to check being damaged. It was replaced with check number 
57544.  Check 57545 was issued to a new employee after the direct deposit failed and is included in gross wages. 

Other Agency Involvement: n/a 

Other Financial Considerations:  Amounts are within the authorized Fund level budgets. 

Results 

The Board’s review of cash disbursements is an integral component of the District’s system of internal controls 
and promotes a well governed community.   

 

Agenda Item 8B February 27, 2019 - Page 5 of 149



 2/22/2019  1:42 PM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   1

COMPANY:  99  - POOLED CASH FUND                                                          CHECK DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

ACCOUNT:  1-1001-000      POOLED CASH OPERATING                                           CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     All                                                                             STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All                                                                             AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       057546 THRU     057570

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057546  R&R ROLL-OFF LLC                       695.22CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057547  PETTY CASH                               7.93CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057548  CANNON                              11,035.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057549  AUTOSYS, INC.                          405.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057550  BRENNTAG PACIFIC, INC.                 578.02CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057551  PERRY'S ELECTRIC MOTORS & CONT       2,346.39CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057552  GATOR CRUSHING & RECYCLING              40.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057553  GROVER BEACH DOOR                      200.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057554  DIVERSIFIED PROJECT SERVICES I         560.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057555  ADAMSKI MOROSKI MADDEN CUMBERL      15,250.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057556  ARAMARK                                454.20CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057557  SAFETY KLEEN SYSTEMS, INC.             550.46CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057558  GSI WATER SOLUTIONS, INC.            9,364.32CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057559  CONTRACTOR'S MAINTENANCE SERVI         131.76CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057560  SHORE-TEK                              269.11CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057561  SHRED-IT USA JV LLC                    132.46CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057562  FAMCON PIPE & SUPPLY, INC.             821.74CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057563  TROESH COLEMAN PACIFIC                 203.78CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057564  PACIFIC CENTRAL COAST HEALTH C         130.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057565  CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO         660.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057566  J.B. DEWAR, INC.                       319.91CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057567  MIER BROS.                             150.85CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

Agenda Item 8B February 27, 2019 - Page 6 of 149



 2/22/2019  1:42 PM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   2

COMPANY:  99  - POOLED CASH FUND                                                          CHECK DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

ACCOUNT:  1-1001-000      POOLED CASH OPERATING                                           CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     All                                                                             STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All                                                                             AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       057546 THRU     057570

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057568  QUILL CORPORATION                      285.87CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057569  AQUA-METRIC                          3,093.90CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/22/2019 CHECK     057570  TERRA VERDE ENVIRONMENTAL CONS         495.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

  TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 1-1001-0                     CHECK           TOTAL:             48,180.92CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00

  TOTALS FOR POOLED CASH FUND                     CHECK           TOTAL:             48,180.92CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00

Agenda Item 8B February 27, 2019 - Page 7 of 149



Payroll Summary Report
Board of Directors ‐ Agenda Date February 27, 2019

(*)

Gross Wages 2/2/2019 2/16/2019

Regular  $22,408.40 $22,910.17

Overtime Wages $2,003.59 $1,682.01

Stand By $700.00 $700.00

Gross Wages $25,111.99 $25,292.18

Disbursements

Net Wages $19,362.25 $19,588.84

State and Federal Agencies $4,182.67 $3,990.62

CalPERS ‐ Normal $4,404.92 $4,347.99

SEIU ‐ Union Fees $154.01 $154.01

Total Disbursements processed with Payroll $28,103.85 $28,081.46

Health (Disbursed with reoccurring bills) $4,014.07 $4,014.07

Total District Payroll Related Costs $32,117.92 $32,095.53

(*) Previously reported in prior Board Meeting packet ‐ provided for comparison.

Agenda Item 8B February 27, 2019 - Page 8 of 149



 2/22/2019 11:00 AM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   1

COMPANY:  99  - POOLED CASH FUND                                                          CHECK DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

ACCOUNT:  1-1001-000      POOLED CASH OPERATING                                           CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     All                                                                             STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All                                                                             AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       057534 THRU     057542

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1-1001-000       2/13/2019 CHECK     057534  RABOBANK EQUIPMENT LEASE               755.60CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/13/2019 CHECK     057535  ADVANTAGE ANSWERING PLUS, INC          227.06CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/13/2019 CHECK     057536  AGP VIDEO INC.                       2,715.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/13/2019 CHECK     057537  CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS                 130.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/13/2019 CHECK     057538  DIGITAL WEST NETWORKS, INC.            621.67CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/13/2019 CHECK     057539  VERIZON WIRELESS                       444.90CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/13/2019 CHECK     057540  PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC               8,526.74CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/13/2019 CHECK     057541  SO CAL GAS                             189.47CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       2/13/2019 CHECK     057542  STANLEY CONVERGENT SECURITY SO          93.97CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

  TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 1-1001-0                     CHECK           TOTAL:             13,704.41CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00

  TOTALS FOR POOLED CASH FUND                     CHECK           TOTAL:             13,704.41CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00

Agenda Item 8B February 27, 2019 - Page 9 of 149



 2/22/2019 11:01 AM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   1

COMPANY:  99  - POOLED CASH FUND                                                          CHECK DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

ACCOUNT:  1-1001-000      POOLED CASH OPERATING                                           CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     All                                                                             STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All                                                                             AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       057543 THRU     057543

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1-1001-000       2/13/2019 CHECK     057543  TASC -CLIENT INVOICES                   56.21CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

  TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 1-1001-0                     CHECK           TOTAL:                 56.21CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00

  TOTALS FOR POOLED CASH FUND                     CHECK           TOTAL:                 56.21CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00

Agenda Item 8B February 27, 2019 - Page 10 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: February 27, 2019 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Paavo Ogren, General Manager  

Subject: Agenda Item #9(A):  Consideration of Recommendations to Approve a grant agreement 
for Phase 2 of the Water Resource Reliability Program (WRRP) and direct the Board 
President to execute, and to approve a related budget adjustment in the amount of 
$177,750  

Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that your Board approve: 
 

1. Approve the grant agreement for Phase 2 of the Water Resource Reliability Program 
(WRRP) and direct the President to execute the agreement 

 
2. Approve a budget adjustment to the Water Fund in the amount of $177,750 increasing 

grant revenues and project expenditures 

Discussion 

The attached grant agreement is funded by Proposition 1 allocations for disadvantaged 
communities and will provide design phase funding (Phase 2) for waterline replacement projects 
identified in the District’s Water Resource Reliability Program (WRRP).   As recently reported to your 
Board, the District has also received notification that a change in the scope of work for Phase 1 (funded 
from Proposition 84) will provide additional unanticipated grant revenues for design efforts.  
Altogether, approximately $250,000 will be available for the upcoming design phase.  

The design phase scope of work includes other preconstruction activities including 
environmental compliance, other technical assistance and community outreach.  The prioritized 
waterline replacement projects identified as part of the preliminary feasibility evaluation under Phase 
1 planning activities will be developed into “shovel-ready” status in Phase 2.  Prior to initiating Phase 2 
work, which is already authorized as supplemental services in the existing consulting contract with 
Cannon Corp, the waterline replacement capital improvement program will be presented to your 
Board with construction cost estimates.     

Agenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 11 of 149



 Oceano Community Services District 

Board of Directors Meeting 
 

 

Other Agency Involvement 

The San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District is the lead agency 
for IRWM efforts.  City of Grover Beach, City of San Luis Obispo, San Simeon CSD, and San Miguel CSD 
also obtained grant funding for implementation projects.  The California Department of Water 
Resources is the grant funding agency. 

Other Financial Considerations 

Phase 1 of the WRRP granted the Water Fund $198,367 in revenues.  The $177,750 for Phase 2 
increased the total granted for the WRRP to $376,117.  Another estimated allocation of $177,750 is 
anticipated from Proposition 1 grants allocated to disadvantaged communities which will help fund 
future construction activities. 

Results 

Obtaining IRWM grant revenues to help fund OCSD efforts improves the fiscal resources 
available to the community and promotes infrastructure planning. 

Attachments:  Grant Agreement 

Agenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 12 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 13 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 14 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 15 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 16 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 17 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 18 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 19 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 20 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 21 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 22 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 23 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 24 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 25 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 26 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 27 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 28 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 29 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 30 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 31 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 32 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 33 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 34 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 35 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 36 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 37 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 38 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 39 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 40 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 41 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 42 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 43 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 44 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 45 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 46 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 47 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 48 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 49 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 50 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 51 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 52 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 53 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 54 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 55 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 56 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 57 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 58 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 59 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 60 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 61 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 62 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 63 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 64 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 65 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 66 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 67 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 68 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 69 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 70 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 71 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9A February 27, 2019 - Page 72 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

Date: February 27, 2019 

To:  Board of Directors 

From: Paavo Ogren, General Manager 

Subject: Agenda Item # 9(B): Consideration of recommendations to authorize the General Manager 
to solicit bids to replace the watermain on Norswing and Pershing in accordance with 
District Ordinance 2016-01 contract documents, and the attached encroachment permit 
issued by the County of San Luis Obispo, and to file a Notice of Exemption pursuant to the 
California Environmental Quality Act with the San Luis Obispo County Recorder 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board: 

1. Authorize the General Manager to solicit bids to replace the watermain on Norswing and
Pershing in accordance with District Ordinance 2016-01, contract documents, and the attached
encroachment permit issued by the County of San Luis Obispo.

2. Authorize the General Manager to file a Notice of Exemption pursuant to the California
Environmental Quality Act with the San Luis Obispo County Recorder.

Discussion 

The watermain on Norswing and Pershing has continued to leak and is an aged galvanized pipe 
that is undersized. The watermain is located under roads where the County is intending to place an 
asphalt overlay in the future.  Cannon Associates performed the designs for this watermain and 
another high priority project on Highway One.  The encroachment permit from the County is attached 
and the District is ready to go out to bid for the project.  

On November 9, 2016 your Board approved ordinance 2106-01 and in doing so elected under 
the Public Contract Code Section 22000 et seq. to become subject to the uniform public construction 
cost accounting procedures as set forth in the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act.  On 
October 10, 2018, your Board approved Resolution 2018-12 and thereby adopted the District’s 
Standard Construction Documents for those projects informally bid pursuant to the California Uniform 

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 73 of 149



 Oceano Community Services District
Board of Directors Meeting 

Public Constructions Cost Accounting Act.  The informal bids limits have increased to $200,000 in 2019 
and the project is anticipated to cost well under this limit.   

Other Agency Involvement 

The County of San Luis Obispo has issued the encroachment permit for the project. 

Financial Considerations 

A budget adjustment will be brought to your Board once the bids have been received. 

Results 

Replacement of the waterline will promote a safe community by reducing system leaks and 
provide improved water delivery to customers. 

Attachments:  

• Encroachment Permit from County

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 74 of 149



County of San Luis Obispo
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

        Colt Esenwein, Director
          County Government Center, Room 207 - San Luis Obispo CA 93408

Phone: (805) 781-5252    Fax: (805) 781-1229    Email: PW.Permits@co.slo.ca.us

STATUS: ISSUED
UTILITY ENCROACHMENT PERMIT

PERMIT NO: ENC20190249 ISSUED: 2/21/2019

ROAD NO: Norswing Dr - M1101
BLD PERMIT: n/a

TO:
Oceano Community Services District
C/O Paavo Ogren
1655 Front St
Oceano, CA  93445

ROAD CUT (TRANSVERSE):
ROAD CUT (LONGITUDINAL):

RECEIPT:
TOTAL FEES:

$0.00
$0.00

$342.00

INSPECTOR: Mike Tabares 235-3538 DEPOSIT: $0.00
BOND: $1,500.00

CONTACT PERSON: Mike Kielborn 805-544-7407 SECTION: 3
WORK ORDER NUMBER: 245R12C104UT  

Utility
Encroachment

Inspections

SUBJECT TO THAT THE ATTACHED PROVISIONS, PERMISSION IS HEREBY GRANTED TO:
WORK LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION:
Community: Oceano
Address: Norswing Drive / Pier Ave / Truman Dr / Pershing Dr
APN: 

1. Oceano Community Services District to install new 8” water main, valves, fire hydrants and service
laterals along Norswing Drive, Pershing Drive, Truman Drive and  Pier Avenue in accordance to County W-1,
W-1a, W-2, W-3, W-4 & W-8 Standards or appropriate OCSD Standards.
2. OCSD, to install new utilities in accordance to County U-1, U-2, U-3b & U-4 Standards.
3. Backfill trench with slurry and pavement repair in accordance to County R-1, R-3 & R-3a Standards.
4. Traffic control in accordance with permit conditions.

AT:
LEGAL DESC:
APN: 

STANDARD CONDITIONS AND PROVISIONSCO
Building Permit No.:   n/a
Work Order No.:   245R12C104UT

PERMITTEE IS RESPONSIBLE FOR READING AND ADHERING TO ALL CONDITIONS AND
PROVISIONS OF THIS ENCROACHMENT PERMIT.  PERMIT HOLDER SHALL CONTACT THE
ENCROACHMENT PERMIT INSPECTOR AT (805) 235-3538 AT LEAST TWENTY-FOUR (24) HOURS
PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK, PRIOR TO MILESTONE OBSERVATIONS, AND UPON COMPLETION
OF THE WORK FOR A FINAL INSPECTION.

Applicable only for the following county roads:

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 75 of 149



NORSWING DRIVE #1101 65PCI
PERSHING DRIVE #1102 35PCI
PIER AVENUE #1095 73PCI 3526 ADT
TRUMAN DRIVE #1103 45PCI

Pavement Restoration Requirements for ADT<500:
PCI 85-100     T-Section + Full Lane Overlay
PCI <85           T-Section

Pavement Restoration Requirements for ADT>500:
PCI 85-100     T-Section + Full Lane Overlay
PCI 65-84       T-Section + Half Lane Overlay
PCI <65           T-Section

This encroachment permit may reference plans, exhibits and/or sketches submitted by the permittee during
the application process, referenced hereafter as the permit plans.  These encroachment permit requirements
and provisions supersede all conflicts that may arise from the permit plans.
PERMITTED SHOULDER, LANE, AND ROAD CLOSURES:
Shoulder closures are permitted on:
•NORSWING DRIVE 
•PERSHING DRIVE 
•PIER AVENUE
•TRUMAN DRIVE 

• NO LANE CLOSURES PERMITTED

• NO ROAD CLOSURES PERMITTED

PERMITTED HOURS OF CONSTRUCTION:
• In accordance with County Code 22.10.120 (Noise Standards), Section A.4, noise sources associated with
construction must not occur weekdays before 7:00 am or after 9:00 pm; and weekends before 8:00 am or
after 5:00 pm.

PERMIT NOT VALID WITHOUT THE FOLLOWING:
• The contractor must be in possession of a valid State of California Contractor’s License with the
appropriate classification/s for the work being performed, San Luis Obispo County Business License, and
Certificate of Insurance with General Liability coverage.  Documentation must be provided to the County
upon demand.

• Permittee must schedule a preconstruction meeting prior to commencing work.  Invitees must include
representatives of the owner, the contractor, affected utility companies and community services districts,
and the County Public Works Inspector.  Evidence of coordination must be provided to the County upon
demand.

• The USA ticket number is written below (Permittee is responsible for marking the area of work with white
paint prior to calling USA for underground facility location):

_______________________________________

• Prior to commencing any work the Permittee must acquire permission from the respective utility owner
prior to impacting their facilities and appurtenances.  Evidence of permission must be provided to the County
upon demand.

• The Permittee must coordinate work with the fronting property owner/s.  Evidence of coordination must be
provided to the County upon demand.

• The Permittee must secure all Environmental Permit Clearance.  Copies of permits or evidence that

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 76 of 149



permits are not required must be provided to the County upon demand.

UTILITIES: 
Permit not Valid without USA Membership - Every operator of a subsurface installation, except the
Department of Transportation, shall become a member of, participate in, and share in the costs of, a
regional notification center, (USA). Ca. Govt. Code Sections 4216-4216.9
a. “Operator” means any person, corporation, partnership, business trust, public agency, or other entity
which owns, operates, or maintains a subsurface installation. For purposes of Section 4216.1 an “operator”
does not include an owner of real property where subsurface facilities are exclusively located if they are
used exclusively to furnish services on that property and the subsurface facilities are under the operation
and control of that owner.
b. “Subsurface installation” means any underground pipeline, conduit, duct, wire, or other structure, except
nonpressurized sewer lines, nonpressurized storm drains, or other nonpressurized drain lines.

• The utility owner shall maintain ownership of all abandoned facilities and shall continue to mark these
facilities for USA requests.  When abandoned facilities conflict with future County utility or road projects, the
utility owner shall assist the County in locating the abandoned utility in the right-of-way, and if necessary,
remove those portions of abandoned facilities that would be in conflict with the proposed improvements

• All utilities and appurtenances work must be located and constructed in accordance with County U Series
Drawings.  Location per the appropriate U-1 and U-2, separation per U-3, and trenching (if permitted) per U-4
series drawings.

• All pavement repair work must be performed accordance with the PAVEMENT RESTORATION
requirements specified herein this permit and the R-series drawings.

• All unyielding above grade utilities and appurtenances must be set back from the nearest edge of travel
lane to provide a minimum 10-feet clear zone, or in accordance with the clearance requirements of Section
4.1.9A of the County Public Improvement Standards.  The use of appurtenances such as bollards, walls, or
similar utility protection devices is not permitted.

• The maximum length of the active work zone (defined as the partially open, open, or partially restored
trench) must not exceed six hundred (600) feet.

• Use of shoulder area for construction staging requires pre-approval by the County’s encroachment permit
inspector. 

• Minimum crossing clearance between new utilities and a county drainage culvert shall be 24-inches
measured from the outside edges.

• Any excavation greater than five (5) feet deep must be properly sloped or shored in conformance with the
requirements of the State of California Division of Industrial Safety.

PERMIT HOLDER SHALL CONTACT THE ENCROACHMENT PERMIT INSPECTOR AT LEAST
TWENTY-FOUR HOURS PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK AND AFTER COMPLETION OF WORK FOR A
FINAL INSPECTION.

1. All work will be conducted in accordance with the County Standards and Specifications, Encroachment
Permit Conditions, California Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices, State Standards and Specifications,
State Streets and Highways Code, State Vehicle Code, and the attached Provisions.  All work within the
right of way of a county maintained road shall be performed by an appropriately licensed and bonded
contractor, and shall provide traffic control per the latest California Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices.
  All encroachments shall be installed and maintained per San Luis County Department of Public Works
Public Improvement Standards, including but not limited to, Horizontal Clear Zone Standards, Vertical Clear
Zone Standards, and Sight Distance Standards.  Please visit the county website to view Public Improvement
Standards: 
http://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Public-Works/Forms-Documents/Development-Services/Public-Im

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 77 of 149



provement-Standards.aspx

2. County Code 13.08.130 - Permittee's liability - Each applicant is solely responsible for any damage or
liability occurring by reason of anything done, or omitted to be done, by applicant or its or his agents,
employees, or independent contractors directly responsible to applicant, or in connection with any work or
authority delegated under any permit issued as result of an application; and each applicant shall, to the
extent permitted by law, indemnify and save harmless the county, its officers, agents, employees or
servants from any and all loss or liability resulting from any claims made by reason of, or in connection with,
any work done under the authority of, or as a result of, any permit issued hereunder.

3. Vehicle Obstruction of the Travel Way – An unobstructed width of the highway opposite a standing
vehicle shall be left for the free passage of other vehicles (Vehicle Code, Division 11, Chapter 9 [22500 –
22526].  Two 10-foot travel lanes shall be provided at all times, except for when the temporary traffic control
plan is being implemented in accordance with this permit.  This permit may be revoked by the Department in
the event that the applicant or his assigns encroach upon the free passage of other vehicles.

4. Permittee shall be aware that utility and/or structural encroachments placed within the right-of-way are
the permittee's responsibility to properly maintain in perpetuity and that said encroachment may require
removal or alteration due to the maintenance/construction requirements of public utilities, County Public
Works Department or other public agency.

5. This encroachment within the road right of way is permitted with the understanding that all
encroachments placed within the right-of-way is “at risk” from future county road maintenance or utility
projects and shall be the sole responsibility of the permittee.  By accepting this permit, the permittee
acknowledges that, pursuant to Section 1463 of the California Streets and Highways Code, the permit is
revocable upon five (5) days’ notice from the Public Works Department.  Upon such notice the
encroachment must be removed or replaced as specified by the Public Works Department at the owner's
sole expense.

6. If at any time the encroachment poses a hazard or nuisance within the right-of-way the County may
immediately remove or by notice may require the removal of such encroachment (1480 of the Street and
Highways Code).

7. If required, a cash deposit has been posted by the permittee. It is agreed that funds will be drawn from
the deposit to pay the actual costs of any action taken by the County to correct any unsafe condition that
may arise during the course of the above permitted activity.

8. The permittee agrees to pay penalties for violation to the conditions of this permit.  The conditions in
violation shall be considered as “illegal encroachments” imposed by the permittee in the right of way and
subject to penalties of $350 per day under Streets and Highways Code 1483.  The penalties shall accrue
daily for each and every violation of the conditions of the permit.  These violations of conditions may include,
but not be limited to:  Initiating Lane Closure Work Hours prior to the hours listed in the permit; Exceeding
Lane Closure Work Hours beyond the hours listed in the permit; Having trench excavation plates which are
not recessed or flushing to the travel surface (for each plate); Having trench plates which do not have a
uniform and complete skid resistant surface (for each plate); Failure to restore the bike lanes to operation
per the Lane Closure Work restrictions listed in the permit; Failure to provide an adequate hot mix asphalt
(HMA) surface once trench plates are no longer utilized (cold mix not an adequate treatment); Failure to
adhere to the approved traffic control plan for the work; Failure to place temporary pavement stripe markers
(floppies); Parking equipment within ten (10) feet of the travel-way during non-work hours; Storing materials
within ten (10) feet of the travel way during non-work hours; Failure to sweep debris from the travel lanes and
improved shoulders, within the work zone, at the end of each work day; and closing or blocking a bus stop
without advanced notification and clearance from the transit authority.  Full payment of any outstanding
penalties must be received prior to issuance of any subsequent encroachment permits to permittee or
contractor.

SURVEY MONUMENT PRESERVATION:

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 78 of 149



1. In accordance with the Streets & Highways Code 1492.5 and the State of California Business and
Professions Code 8771, prior to commencing work the permittee shall, under the direction of a licensed land
surveyor or registered civil engineer, locate all survey monuments within the work zone and file a corner
record or record of survey of the references with the county surveyor if the monument could be destroyed,
damaged, covered, or otherwise obliterated.  Prior to completion of the permitted work all damaged
monuments shall be reset in the surface of the new construction, a suitable monument box placed thereon,
or permanent witness monuments set to perpetuate their location; and a new corner record or record of
survey of the references shall be filed with the county surveyor.  It shall be the responsibility of the permittee
to provide for the monumentation required by this section.

BORE UTILITIES UNDER PAVED ROADWAYS IS REQUIRED:
1. Unless otherwise permitted herein, no cutting of or trenching within the paved roadway surface is
allowed under this permit, all non-gravity utilities shall be bored in accordance with the following:
     a. If trenching or cutting of pavement becomes required to conduct this work, notify the
encroachment inspector to allow for an amendment to the permit.
     b. Coring in the paved surface to locate existing utilities in advance of boring operations shall be
done by vacuum truck with an eight (8) inch diameter maximum hole.  Core holes shall be backfilled with
vibrated 2 sack concrete slurry, and paved in kind to match existing asphalt thickness.
     c. Bore pits shall be located at least 10-feet clear from the nearest edge of pavement, and at least
5-feet outside the toe of slope in embankment areas.  Bore pits must be adequately shored and fenced.
     d. The alignment of the boring and subsequent utility must be either parallel or perpendicular to
the roadway.
     e. The excavation for the boring operation shall be kept to a minimum, but shall be of sufficient
dimensions to satisfactorily complete the work.  The conductor pipe shall be placed behind and in
conjunction with the boring operation.  The bored hole shall not be more than two inches in diameter larger
than the conductor pipe. Guide rails shall be accurately set to line and grade so as to achieve close
adherence to the crown of pipe at a minimum depth of 30".  Approved material shall be pumped into
completely fill annular space around conduit for its full length.
     f. Boring entrance and exit pits requiring access through portland cement roadway sections shall
be backfilled with 3 sack slurry, and paved in kind to match existing asphalt thickness.
     g. Boring operations shall comply with the latest version of State of California DOT TR-0163
(Underground Utility Provisions), hereby known as the “Provisions”, unless specifically approved otherwise
by the Department.  A Class C-34 (Pipeline) Contractor license is required either bore and jack or Horizontal
Directional Drilling (HDD) encasement installation operations within the County right-of-way.
     h. HDPE is acceptable as casing material with HDD.  The casing shall be plugged, but not
grouted.  When required by the Department, voids shall be grouted from within, in accordance with the
Provisions.  Wing type cutters shall not be used unless specifically approved by the Department.  Casings
shall typically be extended to the right-of-way line.  

PAVEMENT RESTORATION:
1. Trench restoration shall be completed in accordance with County R-1, R-3 and/or R-3a standard
drawings.

2. Pavement restoration shall be completed in accordance with County R-1, R-2, R-2a and/or R-4 standard
drawings.

3. For trenching in roads that have an existing concrete structural section the pavement repair shall be
“in-kind”.  Number 4 (1/2”) dowels, 18-inch long shall be placed every 5-feet on-center, equally staggered
along both sides of the trench, and embedded a minimum of 6-inches into the midpoint of the existing
concrete section.  The new concrete section shall be 520-lbs/cy (5.5-sack min.) and match the thickness of
the existing section.  After curing, the final Hot Mix Asphalt T-section shall be placed in accordance with
County R-series standards.

4. Whenever 60% of the traveled way is damaged by construction activities, the entire width of the travel
lane or bike lane shall be repaved per County Standard R-1. Paving shall be in accordance with State

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 79 of 149



Standards Section 39.

5. Compaction tests shall be made on sub-grade material and material as specified by the permit
inspector. Said tests shall be made prior to the placing of the next material. Subgrade material shall be
compacted to a relative compaction of 95% in the zone between finished subgrade elevation and a minimum
of 30” below. All material in fill sections below the zone mentioned above shall be compacted to 95% relative
compaction.

6. Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) shall conform to requirements for Type A asphalt as specified in Section 39 of
the State Standards for one-half (½)inch mix.  Asphalt binder shall conform to PG 64-13.

7. Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) shall be placed in lifts not exceeding three (3) inches in a single lift and shall
cool to 150-degrees prior to laying subsequent lift(s).

8. Removal of existing pavement striping or markings shall be by sandblasting, hydro blasting, or grinding. 
When the change of position will be greater than two (2) feet, the removed striping shall be further obscured
by use of a Chip Seal, as required by Section 9.1.2 D of the Public Improvement Standards.  The Chip Seal
shall extend the full width of the roadway

9. Pavement marking and delineation shall be two-component traffic paint with retro-reflective glass beads. 
The material shall be listed on the Caltrans Authorized Product List for traffic paint and shall conform to the
layouts shown in the State Standard Plans. Thermoplastic may be used with prior approval by the inspector.

10. Temporary floppy markers (floppies) shall be applied the day of paving to delineate pavement stripes and
shall be maintained until final striping has been completed.

11. All joints shall have a 4" fog spray of SS1H oil.  Contractor shall follow up with striping as soon as
practical or as directed by the inspector.

TRAFFIC CONTROL:
1. The contractor shall be responsible for providing traffic control throughout all phases of work in
accordance with Part 6 of the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (CA MUTCD). Contact the
Public Works Inspector for additional information.

2. No work shall commence without the Construction Signs installed and other necessary traffic control
devices on site. Stationary mounted construction area signs shall be fluorescent orange, using materials
from the Caltrans “Prequalified Products List” for signing and Delineation Materials.  The list is available at
the website of the Caltrans Office Engineer: www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/approved_products_list/

3. At a minimum, CA MUTCD W20-1 (CA Code C23), “ROAD WORK AHEAD”, signs shall be placed and
maintained at all times in both directions on all affected streets, from the start of construction until
acceptance by the County Public Works Department.

4. Where bike lanes are impacted, traffic control shall also include a W20-5 (BIKE LANE CLOSED) and a
W11-1 & W16-1 combination (SHARE THE ROAD) signs in the affected direction. 

5. Where sidewalks are impacted, traffic control shall also include signage per TA-28 Sidewalk Detour of
Diversion. 

6. Where parking is impacted, parking pre-notification R30B or similar no parking signs shall be placed a
minimum of seventy-two (72) hours in advance of starting construction.

7. Where County traffic signals maybe impacted, the contractor shall coordinate work zone traffic control
with County Transportation (805-781-5252) at least 48-hours prior to performing any shoulder, lane or road
closure.

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 80 of 149



8. All flaggers shall be trained in accordance with the California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Section
1599(f), and use Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) consistent with section 6E.02 of CA MUTCD.  Part 6
of the CA MUTCD is available on line at http://www.dot.ca.gov

9. Shoulder Closures (If Permitted Herein) - Traffic control shall be placed according to Chapter 6 of the CA
MUTCD (typical applications are TA-3 or TA-5 for multiple day; and TA-4 or TA-6 for single day closures). 
Twenty (20) feet or more of roadway must be maintained for two way traffic.

10. Lane Closures (If Permitted Herein) - Traffic control shall be placed according to Chapter 6 of the CA
MUTCD (typical applications are TA-10 (CT-T13) or TA-10A; TA-11 for lane closure on roads with traffic
volumes 500 ADT or less, and 25 mph speeds or less).  Typical applications for multi-lane highways are
RSPT-11 for one lane or RSPT-12 for both lanes.  Concurrent lane closure on the same road IS NOT
permitted.  Traffic cycles through the work zone must not exceed 20-minute delay to the public.   One lane
must remain traversable at all times to cycle traffic through the work zone as expedient as possible.  Unless
otherwise noted, the open (traversable) lane must maintain a minimum of 10 feet in width as measured to
the near face of the channelizing devices.  Where the opposite shoulder is suitable for carrying vehicular
traffic and of adequate width, lanes may be shifted by use of closely-spaced channelizing devices, provided
that the minimum lane width of 10 feet is maintained.

11. Road Closures (If Permitted Herein) - Traffic control shall be placed according to Chapter 6 of the CA
MUTCD (typical applications are TA-9, TA-19, and TA-20 for detour routes).  Other requirements include a
minimum of 72-hour advanced notification to all impacted property owners and the following agencies: 
California Highway Patrol, County Sheriff, County Cal Fire, County Public Works, and San Luis Ambulance;
and a minimum of 72 hour advance notice and continuous operation using Changeable Message Signs.

12. No construction related signs, delineators, or other obstacles that prevent use shall be placed on a
paved shoulder in advance of the work zone.  Unobstructed paved shoulder access for pedestrians and
bicyclists shall be maintained through the work zone to the greatest extent possible.

13. The contractor shall be responsible for providing and/or maintaining all weather access at all times to
existing properties located in the vicinity of work.  Additionally, they shall be responsible for maintaining all
existing services, including utility, garbage collection, mail distribution, etc., to all existing properties located
in the work zone.

14. Delineators shall be equipped with nighttime reflective bands and spaced no greater than 50-foot
intervals along tapers, lane control, and/or edge of work zone.

PEDESTRIAN PROTECTION:
1. The permittee shall be responsible for constructing and maintaining pedestrian protection devices at all
times and in accordance with the California Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (CA-MUTCD), and the
California Building Code (CBC).  If permitted herein, sidewalk closures must conform to Part 6 of the
CA-MUTCD, including TA-28 and TA-29; and pedestrian protection through a construction zone must
conform to CBC §3306, including barricades, railings, covered walkways.

END OF EACH WORKING DAY:
1. At the conclusion of each work day, all traveled-way surfaces and shoulders shall be restored to an
all-weather, traversable condition.  There shall not be a drop-off of traveled way greater than 0.15 feet. “Low
Shoulder” signs shall be placed along the traveled way where there is any drop-off.  Such temporary
patching or other field approved surfacing shall be kept in a smooth, firm, dust-free condition for the safe use
of the public for no more than 30 days or the final surface patch is required.  Cold mix asphalt may be used
as a temporary patch material.

2. Steel plates must be friction coated for traction.  Plates located in a bike lane or on a paved shoulder
subject to bike traffic must have a skid resistant surface which is not raised or otherwise abrupt to a cyclist. 
On roads with prevailing speeds of 40 mph or greater the plates must be recessed flush with the adjacent
pavement by cold planing to a depth equal to the thickness of the plate, and to a width and length equal to

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 81 of 149



the dimensions of the plate.  On roads with prevailing speeds less than 40 mph the steel plates shall be
attached to the roadway by a minimum of 2 dowels pre-drilled into each of the 4 corners of the plate and
drilled 2" into the pavement.  Fine graded asphalt concrete shall be compacted to form ramps, maximum
slope 8.5% with a minimum 12" taper to cover all edges of the steel plates. When steel plates are removed,
the dowel holes in the pavement shall be backfilled with graded fines of asphalt concrete mix.  (All steel
plate bridging shall conform to Caltrans TR-0157)

3. All paved road surfaces (lanes, shoulders, sidewalks, ramps, etc.) must be swept clean and the site left
in a clean and orderly condition with erosion control measures in-place.

ENVIRONMENTAL:
1. In the event archeological resources are unearthed or discovered during construction activities
associated with this permit all work must immediately cease and the permit inspector notified.  Work may
only resume after a mitigation plan to avoid the resources to the maximum degree feasible has been
approved by the County.

2. All mitigation required by project environmental permits will be the responsibility of the permittee. 
Applicable permits may include local agency, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, the California Regional Water
Quality Control Board/State Water Resources Control Board, and/or the California Department of Fish &
Game.  The permittee must submit copies of each environmental permit to the County Department of Public
Works prior to release of improvement security.  

EROSION CONTROL:
1. Erosion control measures for wind, water, material stockpiles, and tracking shall be implemented at all
times by the contractor and shall include source control, including protection of stockpiles, protection of
slopes, protection of all disturbed areas, protection of accesses, and perimeter containment measures. 
Erosion control shall be placed prior to the commencement of work based upon location, site characteristics
or time of year.  The intent of erosion control measures shall be to keep all generated sediments from
entering a swale, drainage way, watercourse, atmosphere, or migrate onto adjacent properties or onto the
public right-of-way.

2. The contractor shall be responsible for the placement and maintenance of all storm water control
measures/devices and shall be available, installed, and/or applied between October 15 and April 15 or
anytime the rain probability exceeds 30% per the satisfaction of the permit inspector and the County Public
Improvement Standards.

3. In the event of a failure, the contractor shall be responsible for cleanup and all associated costs or
damage.  In the event that damage occurs within the right-of-way and the County is required to perform
cleanup, the permittee shall be responsible for reimbursing the County all associated costs.

USE OF ROAD SHOULDER (IF SPECIFICALLY PERMITTED):
1. Use of a county shoulder for construction staging and material storage must have prior approval from
County Public Works.

2. Unless permitted otherwise, no construction equipment or materials shall be parked or stored within ten
(10) feet of the edge of traveled way or conflict with access to properties, utilities, etc.

3. The shoulder area shall be signed as closed and portable delineators used to mark a taper in advance of
the material or equipment.  All delineators shall be equipped with nighttime reflective bands and spaced no
greater than 25-foot intervals along the edge of work zone.

4. Safe public (pedestrian) access to the road shoulder between the edge of pavement and stockpile must
be provided at all times.

5. No vehicle maintenance shall be allowed at any time.

6. Upon completion of work the shoulder must be returned to a condition equal to or better than

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 82 of 149



pre-disturbed conditions, and to the satisfaction of the county encroachment permit inspector. 

7. Requirements for storage of erosive materials including road base and native soil (must be specifically
permitted):

     a. An erosion control plan (or SWPPP if required) must be prepared and implemented by the
permittee.
     b. Stockpiles shall be located a minimum of 10-feet away from the nearest edge of traveled way of
the adjacent public road(s); 50-feet away from water bodies such as creeks, rivers and drainage courses;
shall not be located in environmentally sensitive areas; shall not be located on slopes greater than 20%; and
shall not remain longer than 6-months without prior written approval from the Department.
     c. All stockpiles should be shaped, not left in an “end dump condition”; should have a slope of 3:1
or flatter with the top surface sloped downhill at minimum of 0.5% and a maximum of 5%; should not exceed
20 feet in height; and no one stockpile should exceed 5,000 cubic yards.  Adjacent stockpiles should not be
located closer than 50-feet to each other.
     d. All stockpiles regardless of time of year shall have silt fence installed immediately around the
perimeter at the toe of slope. This silt fence shall be maintained until stockpile is removed.
     e. Between April 15th and October 15th stockpiles remaining inactive for longer than one (1) week
shall be covered with plastic or otherwise protected to control dust.
     f. Between October 15th and April 15th (rainy season) stockpiles shall be stripped of plastic
coverings and appropriate Best Management Practices that reduce erosion potential and stabilize the
slopes (i.e. hydro-seeding, straw, straw wattles etc.) shall be implemented.
     g. Once a stockpile is removed the area below shall be returned to the original contours or final
project finished grades with established vegetation.

ENCROACHMENT PERMIT PROVISIONS

GENERAL

1. Authority – This permit is issued pursuant to Chapter 13.08 of the San Luis Obispo County Code and
Chapter 5.5 (commencing with Section 1450) of the Division 2 of the California Streets and Highways Code,
the provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference as though fully set forth herein. Special event
permits with are issued pursuant to Chapter 15.610 of the San Luis Obispo County Code and Chapter 2
(commencing with Section 942) of the Division 2 of the California Streets and Highways Code, the provisions
of which are incorporated herein by reference as though fully set forth herein.  Issuance or denial of permit
may be appealed to the Board of Supervisors. All board decisions are final and conclusive. 

2. Definitions – The word “County” as used herein means the County of San Luis Obispo acting by and
through its Director of Public Works or his duly authorized representative.  The word “work” as used herein
means allowed activities in the County of San Luis Obispo right-of-way as specified in the encroachment
permit.

3. No Precedent Established – This permit is granted with the understanding that this action is not to be
considered to establish a precedent concerning any kind of encroachment within the county right-of-way.

4. Permits from Others – When the law requires the consent to any work hereunder from any other public
board or person having jurisdiction, this permit shall be suspended unless and until such consent is
obtained.

5. Permission from Property Owners – Whenever it is necessary to secure permission from abutting
property owners, such authority must be secured by the permittee prior to the starting of work.

6. Responsible Party – No party other than the named permittee or their agent is authorized to work under
any permit.

7. Notice Prior to Starting Work – Before starting work under the encroachment permit, the permittee shall
notify the County 24-hours prior to initial start of work.

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 83 of 149



8. Indemnity – The permittee shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the County of San Luis Obispo,
its officers, agents and employees from any and all claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses, or
liability that relate in any way to this permit, including, but not limited to, any act or omission on the part of
the permittee, or of agents, employees, or independent contractors directly responsible to the permittee;
including, but not limited to, any defects, flaws or errors in the design or performance of any work under this
permit,  providing further that the foregoing shall apply to any acts, or omissions to act, committed jointly or
concurrently by the permittee, the permittee’s agents, employees or independent contractors, and the
County, its agents, employees or independent contractors. Nothing contained in the foregoing indemnity
provisions shall be construed to require the permittee to indemnify the County against any responsibility or
liability in contravention of Section 2782 of the Civil Code.

9. Other Work – This permit is to be strictly construed, and no work other than that specifically mentioned
is authorized hereby.

10. Safety – All work shall be performed in a safe and workmanlike manner in accordance with all applicable
laws and regulations.

11. Keep Permit on the Job – This permit shall be kept at the site of the work and shall be shown to any
representative of the County, or any law enforcement officer on request.

12. Protection of the Public – The work shall cause the least possible inconvenience to the traveling public.
Two-way traffic shall be maintained from the close of the working day to the start of the next working day.
County approval required for shoulder, lane, and road closures. All warning signs, lights, devices, and
procedures shall conform to the latest California Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (CA MUTCD). All
traffic associated with the work shall follow the provisions of the California Vehicle Code.

13. Standards of Construction – Any matter not specifically mentioned herein, or covered by direct
reference, shall conform to the latest adopted County Public Improvement Standards, and, if not covered
therein, to Caltrans Standard Specifications and Plans.

14. County Inspection – All work shall be subject to County inspection and performed in accordance with
latest adopted County Public Improvement Standards and to the satisfaction of the County. 

15. Expense of Inspection – On work which in the judgment of the County requires the presence of an
employee of the Department of Public Works as inspector, the actual cost (including salary, traveling
expense, and overhead) of such inspection shall be paid by the permittee upon presentation of a statement
therefore. The cost of any tests required by the County shall be borne by the permittee.  

16. Security – The applicant shall provide a cash security (with assignment to the County of San Luis
Obispo) in the amount specified on the encroachment permit which sum is deemed sufficient by the County
and which deposit aforesaid shall guarantee payment to the County of San Luis Obispo for all costs of work
of improvement, engineering, inspection, maintenance, and related incidental expenses done or incurred by
the County as is provided for herein.  Expense of County costs shall be paid current and/or the finalization of
encroachment permit is required prior to release of security.

17. Restoration of Right-of-Way – All portions of the right-of-way, and all adjacent areas directly affecting
such, if disturbed by work pursuant to this permit, shall be promptly restored to prior condition (including the
replacement of suitable material and/or the planting of vegetation) and shall be left in a presentable
condition.

18. Existing Utilities – The permittee shall contact all utilities to determine the location of any existing
facilities prior to any excavation. The underground Service Alert ticket number and name shall be kept on the
job site and be available to any representative of the County or any law enforcement officer on request. The
permittee shall also contact the local water purveyor, sanitation district or other utility not affiliated with
Underground Service Alert to advise them of the proposed project.  The date and name of this contact must
also be kept on the job site. The permittee shall immediately notify the owning utility of any damage to the

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 84 of 149



existing facility.

19. Future Moving of Installation – In the event it becomes necessary, in the opinion of the County, to
remove or relocate the encroachment permitted hereunder, such shall be accomplished by, and at the sole
expense of, the permittee, and within such time and manner as may be required by the County. (Curb and
gutter improvements constructed in accordance with approved plans are exempted from this provision).

20. Taxation of Possessory Interests – Permittee recognizes and understands that this permit may create a
possessory interest subject to property taxation, and that permittee may be subject to payment of taxes
levied on such interest.

21. Joint and Several Obligation – If there is more than one permittee subject to the terms of this permit,
then all of the terms of this permit shall bind the permittees individually and collectively, and said permitees
shall be individually and collectively liable therefore.

22. Maintenance – The permittee agrees by the acceptance of this permit to exercise reasonable care to
maintain properly any encroachment placed by it in the highway and to exercise reasonable care in
inspecting for and immediately repairing and making good any injury to any portion of the highway which
occurs as a result of the maintenance of the encroachment in the highway or as a result of the work done
under this permit, including any and all injury to the highway which would not have occurred had such work
not been done or such encroachment not placed therein.

23. Clear Zone – Any work performed in the right-of-way shall be designed and constructed so that a 10-feet
wide area beside the edge of traveled way is clear of any obstructions. No above grade unyielding fixed
objects shall be constructed within this clear zone unless specifically permitted by the County. The County
may consider construction within the clear zone when it is designed in a manner to break away easily if hit
by a moving vehicle.  

USA MEMBERSHIP REQUIREMENTS

1. California Law – Every operator of a subsurface installation, except the Department of Transportation,
shall become a member of, participate in, and share in the costs of, a regional notification center, (USA).
Cal. Govt. Code Sections 4216-4216.9.  “Operator” means any person, corporation, partnership, business
trust, public agency, or other entity which owns, operates, or maintains a subsurface installation. For
purposes of Section 4216.1 an “Operator” does not include any owner of real property where subsurface
facilities are exclusively located if they are used exclusively to furnish services on that property and the
subsurface facilities are under the operation and control of that owner. “Subsurface installation” means any
underground pipeline, conduit, duct, wire, or other structure, except non-pressurized sewer lines,
non-pressurized storm drains, or other non-pressurized drain lines.

UTILITY AND UNDERGROUND

1. Cutting Pavement – All construction in asphalt shall be bored wherever possible. Open cut construction
must be specifically permitted or may be authorized by the County to accommodate unexpected field
conditions. When pavement is cut it shall be done in a manner which causes the least possible damage to
the adjacent pavement. After the utility is placed and the trench backfilled and based, the pavement shall be
trimmed by sawing or other approved means to a sufficient width to removal displaced or damaged
pavement. If the trench edge is within 2-feet of the edge of the roadway pavement, the entire 2-feet shall be
removed and replaced.

2. Backfill – Bedding and shading material shall be consolidated and compacted by a field approved
method.   Backfill material shall be consolidated and compacted to the following standards: (U-4 Series
Drawings).  Compaction tests shall be taken in locations as determined by the County.  If approved by the
County, excavations may be backfilled with vibrated sand slurry, or two sack cement slurry.  All tests shall
be conducted using Caltrans test methods.

3. Replacement of Pavement – The surface of all trenches in the traveled way shall be temporarily patched

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 85 of 149



or otherwise surfaced at the end of each working day.  Such temporary patching or other field approved
surfacing shall be kept in a smooth, firm, dust-free condition for the safe use of the public for no more than
30-days before the final surface patch is required.  Cold mix asphalt may be used as a temporary patch
material; however, recessed metal plates are required on all arterial and major collector streets.  Steel plate
bridging shall conform to State Standards TR-0157.  After the ditch edges have been trimmed, the base and
pavement shall be replaced. The thickness of the base and paving to be replaced shall be determined in the
field and shall be at least equal in section to that adjacent to the trench area; however, no pavement shall be
less than 3-inches thick. Pavement shall be replaced with Type A hot mix asphalt which shall conform to
State requirements for ½-inch maximum medium grading. Base material shall conform to State
requirements for Class 2 Aggregate Base.  

4. Plowing – The use of a static plow within 5-feet of the edge of the pavement is prohibited. A vibrating
plow may be used to within 1-foot off the edge of the pavement. Any pavement that is broken or otherwise
disturbed by the plowing operations shall be removed and replaced. After plowing and prior to any
compaction efforts, the plow trench shall be flooded to attain a plastic condition.  The trench shall then be
compacted by wheel rolling or other suitable means.

5. General – Minimum cover over utilities shall conform to the Standard U-1 drawing for installation.
Maximum length of work under construction at any time shall not exceed 500 feet.  Disposal of spoil
material shall be in a legal manner and outside the right-of-way unless otherwise specifically approved by
the County.  Reasonable care shall be taken to avoid damage to major roots of trees. If an independent
contractor installs a utility, the operator of the utility must accept the work before final approval of the work
by the County.

6. Responsibility for Failures – The utility/service company that required the installation of facilities within
the limits of the County right-of-way shall assume maintenance responsibility, in perpetuity, for any
damage/failure to facilities owned and/or maintained by the County of San Luis Obispo as a result of such
installation.

All Other Permits Shall Be The Permittee's Responsibility to Obtain.

NOTICE OF START OF CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE GIVEN TO THIS DEPARTMENT AT LEAST
TWENTY-FOUR HOURS IN ADVANCE. NOTICE OF COMPLETION SHALL BE GIVEN TO THIS
DEPARTMENT. CALL Mike Tabares 235-3538 FOR INSPECTIONS.

The conditions and restrictions of this permit must be acknowledged below by the Permittee and a signed
copy returned to County Public Works. Acknowledgement indemnifies the County from any claims that may
relate per the application form and the herein permit conditions and provisions.

Signature

Name

Title

Date

Attachment: 
Plans/Drawings
Encroachment Permit Standard Drawings: R-1, R-3, R-3a, U-1, U-2, U-3b, U-4, W-1, W-1a, W-2, W-3,

W-4, W-8

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 86 of 149



The work herein permitted under ENC20190249 shall
be completed before: 03/31/2019

Issuance of Permit approved by: 
COLT ESENWEIN, DIRECTOR

RENE BRILL

Work Completed:
Inspector Date

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 87 of 149



11

R-1

ALLOWABLE PAVEMENT

SEAM LOCATIONS

11

Scale:

Drawing No:

OF

Adopted:

NTS

Sheet No:

Revisions

Approved

Date

Description Approved

Date

Description

2014

NOTES:

1.  SEAM LOCATIONS MAY BE ADJUSTED BY THE DEPARTMENT BASED ON FIELD CONDITIONS.

2.  IN ALL CASES THE EXISTING PAVEMENT SHALL BE SAWCUT ALONG A CLEAN LINE AND SHALL BE EITHER LONGITUDINAL OR

TRANSVERSE TO THE TRAVEL LANE.  NO LONGITUDINAL SEAMS SHALL BE ALLOWED WITHIN ANY BIKE LANE.

3.  ALL SAWCUT EDGES SHALL BE VERTICAL, WITH SQUARE CORNERS, AND SHALL BE STRAIGHT AND NEAT IN APPEARANCE.

4.  ROTOMILLING OR GRINDING MAY BE UTILIZED IN PLACE OF SAWCUT WHEN APPROVED IN ADVANCE OF THE WORK BY THE

DEPARTMENT.

5.  SEE R-2 SERIES DRAWING FOR RURAL ROAD AND URBAN STREET WIDENING SAWCUT REQUIREMENTS.  SEE R-3 SERIES

DRAWINGS FOR UTILITY TRENCHING SAWCUT REQUIREMENTS.

6.  A TACK COAT SHALL BE APPLIED TO ALL HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL SAWCUT CONFORM SURFACES PRIOR TO PAVING.

7.  AFTER PAVING, SS1H OIL (OR APPROVED EQUAL) SHALL BE APPLIED TO ALL HMA SURFACE SEAMS PER MANUFACTURER'S

RECOMMENDATIONS.

TRAVEL PARKINGTRAVEL

LANELANE

RURAL ROADS

C

L

E
T

W
,
 
C

R
O

W
N

 
O

R
 
C

L

E
T

W
 
O

R
 
E

D
G

E
 
S

T
R

I
P

E

C
U

R
B

 
F

A
C

E

PAVED

SHOULDER LANE

URBAN STREETS

BIKE

LANE

NO

SEAMS

 SECTION VIEW:  ALLOWABLE PAVEMENT SEAM LOCATIONS 

E
T

W
 
O

R
 
B

I
K

E
 
S

T
R

I
P

E

E
P

 
O

R
 
F

A
C

E
 
O

F
 
H

M
A

 
D

I
K

E

C
E

N
T

E
R

 
O

F
 
T

R
A

V
E

L
 
L
A

N
E

S
E

A
M

 
O

K
A

Y
 
F

O
R

 
P

C
I
 

8

5

S
E

A
M

 
L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N
 
F

O
R

 
A

L
L
 
P

C
I

BASED ON ROAD PCI & ADT AS  PROVIDED BY THE DEPARTMENT

SEAMS OKAY FOR PCI 65 AND/OR

ROADWAYS WITH 500 ADT OR LESS WITHIN URL (EXCEPT IN BIKE LANES)

All Other Roadways

85-100
Full Lane Width Overlay

65-84
12" min. T-Section

<65 12" min. T-Section 12" min. T-Section

Full Lane Width Overlay

Half Lane Width Overlay

PCI

            MINIMUM PAVEMENT REPAIR LIMITS           

ADT = AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC, AS  PROVIDED BY THE DEPARTMENT

PCI = PAVEMENT CONDITION INDEX, AS  PROVIDED BY THE DEPARTMENT

ETW - EDGE OF TRAVELED WAY;  OL - OVERLAY;  URL - URBAN RESERVE LINE

NO SEAMS

Roadways with 500

ADT  or less and

within  the URL

SEAM LOCATIONS FOR PCI 65 TO 100

(ETW OR HALF LANE LOCATIONS ONLY)

C
E

N
T

E
R

 
O

F
 
T

R
A

V
E

L
 
L
A

N
E

S
E

A
M

 
O

K
A

Y
 
F

O
R

 
P

C
I
 

8

5

S
E

A
M

 
L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N
 
F

O
R

 
P

C
I
 


8
5

S
E

A
M

 
L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N
 
F

O
R

 
P

C
I
 


8
5

S
E

A
M

 
L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N
 
F

O
R

 
P

C
I
 


8
5

NO SEAMS

WHEN PCI  65

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 88 of 149



Scale:

Drawing No:

OF

Adopted:

NTS

Sheet No:

Revisions

Approved

Date

Description Approved

Date

Description

2014

R-3

1 1

TRANSVERSE TRENCHES AND BORE PITS

TRENCH REPAIR

REVISE NOTES 2 AND 3 FH AUG 14

 SECTION VIEW 

TRENCH WIDTH PER PLAN12" MIN

S
E

C
T

I
O

N
 
P

E
R

E
X

I
S

T

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

A
L

S
E

C
T

I
O

N

12" MIN

 PAVEMENT REPAIR PROCEDURE

STEP 1:  SAWCUT TO CONSTRUCT

TRENCH PER U-4.

STEP 2:  BACKFILL & COMPACT

NEW TRENCH TO TOP OF

EXISTING BASE SECTION PER U-4.

STEP 3:  SAWCUT PER NOTE 1 TO

REMOVE AN ADDITIONAL 12" MIN OF

ASPHALT SURFACE.

STEP 4:  RECOMPACT EXISTING

BASE SECTION TO 95% RELATIVE

COMPACTION.

STEP 5:  PAVE ROADWAY PER

NOTE 3.

1
s
t
 
S

/
C

2
n
d
 
S

/
C

NOTES:

1.  TRENCHING IN A ROADWAY IS ONLY ALLOWED WHEN BORING IS SHOWN TO THE DEPARTMENT AS BEING INFEASIBLE.

2.  SAWCUT TO REMOVE DAMAGED OR FAILED PAVEMENT SECTION ADJACENT TO THE EDGE OF TRENCH AS NECESSARY TO PROVIDE A CLEAN JOIN

LINE.  ALL SAWCUTS SHALL BE PERPENDICULAR OR PARALLEL TO THE TRAVEL LANE.  SEAMS SHALL NOT BE ALLOWED WITHIN DESIGNATED

BICYCLE LANES.  ALL CUT EDGES SHALL BE VERTICAL WITH SQUARE CORNERS AND SHALL BE STRAIGHT AND NEAT IN APPEARANCE.  ALL

SAWCUTS SHALL BE TO MINIMUM SHOWN OR TO COMPETENT PAVEMENT SECTION.

3.  THE STRUCTURAL ROAD REPAIR SECTION SHALL MATCH THE EXISTING STRUCTURAL SECTION THICKNESS OR AS REQUIRED BY THE

DEPARTMENT.  TYPICAL ROAD WIDENING SECTION SHALL BE:

        2" MINIMUM HOT MIX ASPHALT (HMA), OVER

        6" MINIMUM CLASS II AGGREGATE BASE, OVER

        TRENCH SECTION PER DRAWING U-4 (STRUCTURAL BACKFILL TO 95% MIN RELATIVE COMPACTION)

4.  NEW PAVEMENT SHALL BE PLACED IN LIFTS NOT EXCEEDING 3-INCHES (COMPACTED).

5.  A TACK COAT SHALL BE APPLIED TO ALL HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL CONFORM SURFACES PRIOR TO PAVING.

6.  AFTER PAVING, APPLY SS1H OIL (OR APPROVED EQUAL) TO ALL HMA SURFACE SEAMS PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.

7.  THE DEPARTMENT SHALL PROVIDE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS WHEN TRENCHING IN EXISTING ROADS HAVING CONCRETE STRUCTURAL

SECTIONS.

8.  T-SECTION WIDTHS SHALL BE INCREASED AS DIRECTED BY THE DEPARTMENT FOR UTILITY PIPES EXCEEDING 36" IN DIAMETER.

WIDTH

REQ.

1st CUT1st CUT

2nd CUT

MIN

12"

EXISTING BASE

NEW TRENCH

STRUCTURAL BACKFILL

PER DRAWING U-4

RECOMPACT

S
T

E
P

 
1

S
T

E
P

 
2

S
T

E
P

 
1

1
s
t
 
S

/
C

S
T

E
P

 
2

2
n
d
 
S

/
C

2 2

4

3

5
5

6 6

T-SECTION (LENGTH REPAIR PER R-1 & TABLE 1

8 8

T-SECTION

T-SECTION

Table 1:  Min. Trench Length Pavement Repair Limits (see R-1)

All Other Roadways

85-100
Overlay To Lane Edge

65-84
12" min. T-Section

<65 12" min. T-Section 12" min. T-Section

Overlay To Lane Edge

Overlay To Lane Center

PCI

Roadways with 500

ADT  or less and

within  the URL

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 89 of 149



Scale:

Drawing No:

OF

Adopted:

NTS

Sheet No:

Revisions

Approved

Date

Description Approved

Date

Description

2014

R-3a

1 1

NOTES 1, 3 & 5, STEP 6-ALT, GRIND & OVERLAY

TRAVEL LANE

GDM JAN 11

LONGITUDINAL TRENCHES

TRENCH REPAIR

FH AUG 14REVISE NOTES 2 AND 3

 SECTION VIEW 

TRENCH WIDTH PER PLAN12" MIN

E
X

I
S

T

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

A
L

S
E

C
T

I
O

N

12" MIN

 PAVEMENT REPAIR PROCEDURE

STEP 1:  SAWCUT TO CONSTRUCT

TRENCH PER U-4.

STEP 4:  RECOMPACT EXISTING

BASE SECTION TO 95% RELATIVE

COMPACTION.

STEP 5:  PAVE T-SECTION THEN GRIND

1.5" EXISTING SURFACE PER TABLE 1.

STEP 6:  PAVE ROADWAY TO CONFORM

TO FINAL GRADE.

1
s
t
 
S

/
C

2
n
d
 
S

/
C

NOTES:

1.  TRENCHING IN A ROADWAY IS ONLY ALLOWED WHEN BORING IS SHOWN TO THE DEPARTMENT AS BEING INFEASIBLE.

2.  SAWCUT TO REMOVE DAMAGED OR FAILED PAVEMENT SECTION ADJACENT TO THE EDGE OF TRENCH AS NECESSARY TO PROVIDE A CLEAN JOIN

LINE.  ALL SAWCUTS SHALL BE PERPENDICULAR OR PARALLEL TO THE TRAVEL LANE.  CUT EDGES SHALL BE VERTICAL WITH SQUARE CORNERS AND

SHALL BE STRAIGHT AND NEAT IN APPEARANCE.  ALL SAWCUTS SHALL BE TO MINIMUM SHOWN OR TO COMPETENT PAVEMENT SECTION.

3.  THE STRUCTURAL ROAD REPAIR SECTION SHALL MATCH THE EXISTING STRUCTURAL SECTION THICKNESS OR AS REQUIRED BY THE DEPARTMENT.

THE MINIMUM STRUCTURAL SECTION SHALL BE:

                    2-INCH MINIMUM HOT MIX ASPHALT (HMA), OVER

         6-INCH MINIMUM CLASS II AGGREGATE BASE, OVER

        TRENCH SECTION PER DRAWING U-4 (STRUCTURAL BACKFILL TO 95% MIN RELATIVE COMPACTION)

4.  LONGITUDINAL:  GRIND 1.5-INCHES (MINIMUM) FROM THE EXISTING ADJACENT HMA PAVEMENT SO THAT FINAL HMA SEAMS ARE LOCATED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH TABLE 1 & DRAWING R-1, OR AS DIRECTED BY THE DEPARTMENT.

5.  NEW HMA PAVEMENT SHALL BE PLACED IN LIFTS NOT EXCEEDING 3-INCHES (COMPACTED) AND SHALL BE ALLOWED TO COOL PER STATE

SPECIFICATIONS PRIOR TO APPLICATION OF SUBSEQUENT LIFTS.

6.  A TACK COAT SHALL BE APPLIED TO ALL HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL CONFORM SURFACES PRIOR TO PAVING.

7.  AFTER PAVING APPLY SS1H OIL (OR APPROVED EQUAL) TO ALL HMA SURFACE SEAMS PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.

8.  THE DEPARTMENT SHALL PROVIDE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS WHEN TRENCHING IN EXISTING ROADS HAVING CONCRETE STRUCTURAL SECTIONS.

9.  T-SECTION WIDTHS SHALL BE INCREASED AS DIRECTED BY THE DEPARTMENT FOR UTILITY PIPES EXCEEDING 36" IN DIAMETER.

WIDTH

REQ.

1st CUT1st CUT

EXISTING BASE

1
.
5
"

RECOMPACT

S
T

E
P

 
1

S
T

E
P

 
2

S
T

E
P

 
1

1
s
t
 
S

/
C

S
T

E
P

 
2

2
n
d
 
S

/
C

4

2

6
6

7 7

WIDTH PER R-1

GRIND GRIND

4

3

M
I
N

S
E

C
T

I
O

N
 
P

E
R

NEW TRENCH

STRUCTURAL BACKFILL

PER DRAWING U-4

3

8

12"

MIN

2nd CUT

STEP 3:  SAWCUT PER NOTE 2 TO

REMOVE AN ADDITIONAL 12" MIN OF

HMA SURFACE.

STEP 2:  BACKFILL & COMPACT NEW

TRENCH SECTION PER U-4.

4

3

4 5

2

T-SECTION

GRIND 1.5" MINIMUM AND OVERLAY HMA TO WIDTH LIMITS PER PER TABLE 1 & R-1

9 9

T-SECTION

Half Lane Width Overlay

Full Lane Width Overlay

12" min. T-Section12" min. T-Section

12" min. T-Section

Full Lane Width Overlay

Table 1:  Minimum Lane Width Repair Limits (see R-1)

All Other Roadways

Roadways with 500

ADT  or less and

within  the URLPCI

<65

65-84

85-100

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 90 of 149



Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 91 of 149



11

U-2

LOCATION OF SERVICE LATERALS

11

Scale:

Drawing No:

OF

Adopted:

NTS

Sheet No:

Revisions

Approved

Date

Description Approved

Date

Description

2014

URBAN CURB, GUTTER & SIDEWALK

S
E

W
E

R
 
M

A
I
N

W
A

T
E

R
 
M

A
I
N

SEWER LATERAL

SSCO

WM

12"

5
'
 
M

I
N

1
8

"

C
L

R

R
O

W

P
U

E

UTILITY TRANS.,

PEDESTAL, VAULT,

ETC.

JOINT TRENCH

LOT LINE

WM

C
U

R
B

 
F

A
C

E

1

S
E

W
E

R
 
M

A
I
N

W
A

T
E

R
 
M

A
I
N

SEWER LATERAL

SSCO

WM

12"

5
'
 
M

I
N

1
8

"

C
L

R

R
O

W

P
U

E

JOINT TRENCH

LOT LINE

WM

1

RURAL EDGE OF PAVEMENT

S
E

W
E

R
 
M

A
I
N

W
A

T
E

R
 
M

A
I
N

SEWER LATERAL

SSCO

WM

12"

5
'
 
M

I
N

1
8

"

C
L

R

R
O

W

P
U

E

JOINT TRENCH

LOT LINE

WM

2

E
D

G
E

 
O

F
 
P

V
M

T

S
H

O
U

L
D

E
R

NOTES:

1.  LOCATE WATER METER VAULT 12"

BEHIND BACK OF CURB OR BACK OF

AC DIKE.

2.  LOCATE WATER METER VAULT 12"

INSIDE RIGHT-OF-WAY.

3.  SEWER CLEAN-OUTS SHALL BE

LOCATED OUTSIDE OF SIDEWALK

AND DRIVEWAY AREAS.

4.  ALL WATER METER VAULTS (BOXES)

SHALL BE PER STANDARD

DRAWINGS.

5.  WIRE UTILITY JOINT TRENCH AND

APPURTENANCES ARE SHOWN FOR

REFERENCE ONLY.  REFER TO THE

RESPECTIVE UTILITY COMPANY'S

HANDOUT PACKAGE FOR ACTUAL

ALIGNMENTS AND CONSTRUCTION

REQUIREMENTS.

6.  WATER AND SEWER SERVICE

LATERALS SHALL BE

PERPENDICULAR TO THEIR

RESPECTIVE MAIN LINES FOR EASE

OF LOCATION.  ALL WATER LINE

TRENCHES SHALL HAVE BOTH

TRACE WIRE AND TAPE, REFER TO

STANDARD TRENCH DRAWINGS.

7.  FOR UNPAVED AREAS, THE WATER

METER BOX SHALL BE SET 1" TO

1-1/2" ABOVE FINISHED GRADE.

F
A

C
E

 
O

F
 
C

U
R

B

O
R

 
H

M
A

 
D

I
K

E

B
A

C
K

 
O

F
 
W

A
L

K

UTILITY TRANS.,

PEDESTAL, VAULT,

ETC.

UTILITY TRANS.,

PEDESTAL, VAULT,

ETC.

3

3

RURAL HMA DIKE OR

URBAN CURB WITH DETACHED SIDEWALK

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 92 of 149



33

U-3b

UTILITY SEPARATION CRITERIA

CASE 2:  NEW WATER MAINS

Scale:

Drawing No:

OF

Adopted:

NTS

Sheet No:

Revisions

Approved

Date

Description Approved

Date

Description

2014

CROSSING

S

PARALLEL

ZONE AZONE A

ZONE BZONE PZONE B

2

1

S

12"3'6'

ZONE C

ZONE P

ZONE P

ZONE D

P

4"

12"

4"

6'4'

D

C

B

A

ZONE SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION REQUIRED FOR WATER:

ZONE P IS A PROHIBITED ZONE, SECTION 64630(E)(2)

CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, TITLE 22.

NO WATER MAINS PARALLEL TO SEWERS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITHOUT APPROVAL FROM THE

HEALTH AGENCY.

IF THE SEWER PARALLELING THE WATER MAIN DOES NOT MEET THE CASE 1, ZONE B REQUIREMENTS, THE

WATER MAIN SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF:

1.  DUCTILE IRON PIPE WITH HOT DIP BITUMINOUS COATING.

2.  CLASS 200 PRESSURE RATED PLASTIC WATER PIPE (DR 14 PER AWWA C900) OR EQUIVALENT.

IF THE SEWER CROSSING THE WATER MAIN DOES NOT MEET THE CASE 1, ZONE C REQUIREMENTS, THE

WATER MAIN SHALL HAVE NO JOINTS IN ZONE C AND BE CONSTRUCTED OF:

1.  DUCTILE IRON PIPE WITH HOT DIP BITUMINOUS COATING.

2.  CLASS 200 PRESSURE RATED PLASTIC WATER PIPE (DR 14 PER AWWA C900) OR EQUIVALENT.

IF THE SEWER CROSSING THE WATER MAIN DOES NOT MEET THE CASE 1, ZONE D REQUIREMENTS, THE

WATER MAIN SHALL HAVE NO JOINTS WITHIN 4-FEET FROM EITHER SIDE OF THE SEWER AND SHALL BE

CONSTRUCTED OF:

1.  DUCTILE IRON PIPE WITH HOT DIP BITUMINOUS COATING.

2.  CLASS 200 PRESSURE RATED PLASTIC WATER PIPE (DR 14 PER AWWA C900) OR EQUIVALENT.

ALTERNATIVE CONSTRUCTION CRITERIA

APPLIES TO NEW WATER MAINS OR EXISTING SEWER MAINS

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 93 of 149



U-4

1 1

TRENCH DETAIL

PAVED SURFACES

LOCATION OF DETECTOR WIRE & TAPE, NOTES 4 & 5

REM NOV 07

MISC CLARIFICATION GDM NOV 08

GDM JAN 11NOTE 7 & REPLACE AC W/ HMA

11

Scale:

Drawing No:

OF

Adopted:

NTS

Sheet No:

Revisions

Approved

Date

Description Approved

Date

Description

2014

NOTES:

1.  TRENCH WIDTH SHALL BE PIPE DIAMETER PLUS 12" (6"

EACH SIDE OF PIPE) FOR PIPES 36" DIAMETER OR LESS,

AND PIPE DIAMETER PLUS 16" (8" EACH SIDE) FOR PIPE

DIAMETERS GREATER THAN 36".

2.  BEDDING MEASUREMENT IS 6" BELOW GREATEST

OUTSIDE DIMENSION AT PIPE JOINTS.  PIPE SHALL BE

BACKFILLED TO THE SPRING LINE AND COMPACTED TO

90% PRIOR TO COMPLETING INITIAL BACKFILL.

3.  ROAD STRUCTURAL SECTION SHALL BE BASED ON THE

TI AND R VALUE AT TIME OF CONSTRUCTION:

HOT MIX ASPHALT (HMA) PER THE DESIGN

STANDARDS TO 95% RELATIVE COMPACTION, OVER

CLASS II AGGREGATE BASE TO 95% RELATIVE

COMPACTION, OVER

12" MINIMUM SUBGRADE TO 95% RELATIVE

COMPACTION

4.  FOR WATER, 14-GAUGE INSULATED COPPER TRACER

WIRE SHALL BE LAID ATOP ALL PIPES AND SERVICE

LATERALS.

5.  FOR WATER AND SEWER, 3" WIDE POLYETHYLENE

NON-DETECTABLE TAPE MARKED AND COLOR CODED

PER THE DESIGN STANDARDS SHALL BE BURIED IN THE

TRENCH 12-INCHES ABOVE ALL PIPES AND LATERALS.

6.  REFER TO STANDARD DRAWINGS U-3 TO U-3b FOR

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR WATER AND SEWER

TRENCHES.

7.  CONCRETE SLURRY TRENCH BACKFILL SHALL CONFORM

TO STATE STANDARD 90-1.01, 188 LBS/CY CEMENTITIOUS

MATERIAL  [2 SACK], TO SURFACE OF BASE COURSE

SECTION.  DO NOT PLACE AGGREGATE BASE ABOVE

SLURRY BACKFILL.

1
2

"
 
M

A
X

4

BEDDING MATERIAL

TO 90% RELATIVE

COMPACTION

STRUCTURAL  MATERIAL TO

95% RELATIVE COMPACTION

(OPTIONAL 2-SACK CONCRETE

SLURRY PER NOTE 7)

2

3

G

R

E

A

T

E

S

T

 

O

U

T

S

I

D

E

D

I

M

E

N

S

I

O

N

 

A

T

 

P

I

P

E

 

J

O

I

N

T

S

6" MIN

8" MAX 8" MAX

6" MIN

6
"
 
M

I
N

V
A

R
I
E

S
 
P

E
R

 
P

L
A

N

BASE SECTION

SUBGRADE

PAVEMENT

BEDDING MATERIAL TO 90%

RELATIVE COMPACTION

SPRING

LINE

STRUCTURAL MATERIAL

SIEVE SIZES

3"

No. 4

No. 30 20% - 100%

35% - 100%

100%

PERCENT PASSINGPERCENT PASSING

100%

80% - 100%

0% - 15%No. 200

No. 4

1"

SIEVE SIZES

BEDDING MATERIAL

1

5

WHEN TRENCHING INTO EXISTING ROADS ALL WORK SHALL BE DONE IN

ACCORDANCE WITH STANDARD DRAWINGS R-1 AND R-4.

1
2

"
 
T

Y
P

3
6

"
 
M

I
N

 
C

O
V

E
R

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 94 of 149



21

W-1

THRUST BLOCK REQUIREMENTS

ADDED NOTE 3 REM NOV 07

TABLES 1 & 2, NOTE 4, SHT 1/2 GDM JAN 11

Scale:

Drawing No:

OF

Adopted:

NTS

Sheet No:

Revisions

Approved

Date

Description Approved

Date

Description

2014

 TABLE  1 

NOTES:

1.  ALTHOUGH THE ABOVE BEARING STRENGTH VALUES HAVE BEEN USED SUCCESSFULLY IN THE DESIGN OF THRUST BLOCKS

AND ARE CONSIDERED TO BE CONSERVATIVE, THEIR ACCURACY IS TOTALLY DEPENDENT ON ACCURATE SOIL

IDENTIFICATION AND EVALUATION. THE ULTIMATE RESPONSIBILITY FOR SELECTING THE PROPER BEARING STRENGTH OF A

PARTICULAR SOIL TYPE SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PROJECT ENGINEER.

2.  ALL THRUST BLOCK AREAS SHALL BE PROVIDED ON THE APPROVED PLANS.

3.  CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKS SHALL CONFORM TO STATE STANDARD 90-1.01, 470 LBS/CY CEMENTITIOUS MATERIAL  [5 SACK].

4.  THRUST RESTRAINT FOR VERTICAL BENDS SHALL USE RESTRAINED JOINT FITTINGS INSTEAD OF THRUST BLOCKS.

 TABLE  2 

HORIZONTAL BEARING STRENGTHS FOR COMMON SOILS

MUCK 0

SOFT CLAY 500

SAND 1,000

SAND & GRAVEL 1,500

SAND & GRAVEL CEMENTED WITH CLAY 2,000

HORIZONTAL BEARING

STRENGTH (Sb), lbs/sf

SOIL TYPE

Pipe Dia 

(in)

Pipe Class

Nom. 

I.D. (in)

Area (A)

(sq in)

TEES

90°

BEND

45°

BEND

22.5°

BEND

11.25°

BEND

4" PVC Class 165 (DR 25) 4.39 15 3,254 4,602 2,491 1,270 638

4" PVC Class 235 (DR 18) 4.23 14 4,005 5,664 3,065 1,563 785

4" PVC Class 305 (DR 14) 4.07 13 4,619 6,532 3,535 1,802 905

6" PVC Class 165 (DR 25) 6.31 31 6,723 9,508 5,146 2,623 1,318

6" PVC Class 235 (DR 18) 6.09 29 8,302 11,740 6,354 3,239 1,627

6" PVC Class 305 (DR 14) 5.86 27 9,574 13,540 7,328 3,736 1,877

8" PVC Class 165 (DR 25) 8.28 54 11,577 16,372 8,861 4,517 2,269

8" PVC Class 235 (DR 18) 7.98 50 14,254 20,158 10,910 5,562 2,794

8" PVC Class 305 (DR 14) 7.68 46 16,445 23,257 12,587 6,417 3,224

10" PVC Class 165 (DR 25) 10.16 81 17,431 24,651 13,341 6,801 3,417

10" PVC Class 235 (DR 18) 9.79 75 21,454 30,340 16,420 8,371 4,206

10" PVC Class 305 (DR 14) 9.42 70 24,741 34,989 18,936 9,654 4,850

12" PVC Class 165 (DR 25) 12.08 115 24,641 34,848 18,860 9,615 4,831

12" PVC Class 235 (DR 18) 11.65 107 30,380 42,964 23,252 11,854 5,956

12" PVC Class 305 (DR 14) 11.2 99 34,975 49,462 26,768 13,646 6,856

BASED ON P = 165 + 50 = 215 psi

BASED ON P = 235 + 50 = 285 psi

BASED ON P = 305 + 50 = 355 psi

THRUST (T) AT FITTING, lbs 

AWWA PVC C-900 PIPE

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 95 of 149



22

W-1a

THRUST BLOCK REQUIREMENTS

LEGEND, EQUATIONS, EXAMPLE, SHT 2/2 GDM JAN 11

Scale:

Drawing No:

OF

Adopted:

NTS

Sheet No:

Revisions

Approved

Date

Description Approved

Date

Description

2014

S

b

T

S

b

UNDISTURBED SOIL

Sb

Sb



b

h

45°

U
N

D
I
S

T
U

R
B

E
D

 
S

O
I
L

LEGEND:

T = THRUST AT FITTING (lbs)  [TABLE 1]

Sb = SOIL BEARING PRESSURE (psf)  [TABLE 2]

A = INTERNAL AREA (sq in) [TABLE 1]

P = INTERNAL PRESSURE (psi)

= HORIZONTAL DEFLECTION ANGLE (degrees)

Sf = FACTOR OF SAFETY [1.5 FOR THRUST BLOCK DESIGN, TYP]

h = THRUST BLOCK HEIGHT (ft)

b = THRUST BLOCK WIDTH (ft)

Ab = MINIMUM THRUST BLOCK AREA (sq ft)

EQUATIONS:

THRUST AT FITTINGS:

[1]  T = (P)(A)

THRUST AT HORIZONTAL BEND:

[2]  T = 2(P)(A) sin(/2)

MINIMUM BEARING (THRUST) BLOCK AREA:

[3]  Ab = (h)(b) = [(Sf)(T)]/Sb

EXAMPLE:  DETERMINE THE THRUST BLOCK AREA FOR A 90° BEND, 8" CLASS 165 PIPE IN SAND.

(STEP 1):  PRESSURE = 165 + 50 (TEST PRESSURE) = 215 psi.  CHOOSE T = 16,372 lbs FROM TABLE 1 SHEET 1/2 (USE EQUATION [2]

IF PIPE HAS DIFFERENT INSIDE DIAMETER].

(STEP 2):  DETERMINE Sb FROM TABLE 2, SHEET 1/2.

(STEP 3):  USE INFORMATION TO CALCULATE Ab USING EQUATION [3]

RESULT:  Ab = [Sf(T)/Sb = [(1.5)(16,372)]/1,000] = 24.6 sq ft

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 96 of 149



11

W-2

FIRE HYDRANT INSTALLATION

NOTE 4 REM NOV 07

1"=2'

NOTE 8 (FROM CLOW F2060 TO CLOW F960) GDM NOV 08

CLARIFIED MJ CONNECTIONS, NOTE 2 GDM JAN 11

11

Scale:

Drawing No:

OF

Adopted:

Sheet No:

Revisions

Approved

Date

Description Approved

Date

Description

2014

 

NOTES:

1.  HEIGHT SHALL BE MEASURED FROM EDGE OF PAVEMENT WHEN CONCRETE CURB OR ASPHALT DIKE ARE NOT

REQUIRED PER THE DESIGN STANDARDS.

2.  DISTANCE SHALL BE INCREASED TO 10-FEET CLEAR FROM THE EDGE OF TRAVELED WAY (ETW) ON RURAL ROADS (SEE

U-1).

3.  IN RURAL AREAS A 4' MINIMUM RADIUS CLEAR AND LEVEL ZONE SURROUNDING THE FIRE HYDRANT SHALL BE REQUIRED.

4.  CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKS SHALL CONFORM TO STATE STANDARD 90-1.01, 470 LBS/CY CEMENTITIOUS MATERIAL  [5

SACK], POURED AGAINST UNDISTURBED SOIL AND SHIELDED FROM FLANGES AND BOLTS.

5.  EACH HYDRANT SHALL BE IDENTIFIED BY A REFLECTORIZED BLUE RAISED PAVEMENT MARKER PER SECTION 10.301c OF

THE UNIFORM FIRE CODE.

6.  THE HYDRANT CAP AND OUTLET NOZZLE SHALL BE PAINTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH TABLE 6.6 OF 6.2.1.D.2.

7.  THE CONCRETE CURB OR ASPHALT DIKE SHALL BE PAINTED RED 15-FEET EITHER SIDE OF THE FIRE HYDRANT.

8.  HYDRANT SHALL BE CLOW F960, OR APPROVED EQUAL.

9.  EACH HYDRANT SHALL HAVE TWO 2-1/2" OUTLETS AND ONE 4" OUTLET WITH EXTERNAL NSF THREAD.

10.  ALL FITTINGS SHALL BE CEMENT MORTAR LINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH AWWA STANDARD C-104.

11.  HYDRANT LATERAL SHALL BE OF THE SAME MATERIAL AS THE MAIN.

12. 14-GAUGE INSULATED COPPER TRACER WIRE SHALL BE LAID IN THE TRENCH ABOVE THE PIPE, BROUGHT ABOVE GRADE

AND SECURED TO THE HYDRANT BOLT FLANGE.

13. COLOR CODED BLUE 3" WIDE POLYETHYLENE NON-DETECTABLE TAPE MARKED "CAUTION BURIED WATER LINE BELOW"

SHALL BE BURIED IN THE TRENCH AND ABOVE THE PIPE AND TRACER WIRE.

STD. BURY 30" MIN.

ONE 4"

VALVE BOX PER

STANDARD DRAWING W-3

WATER

MAIN

P.C.C. THRUST BLOCKS PER

STANDARD DRAWING W-1

BREAKAWAY BOLTS

2" MIN & 6" MAX

1
8

"
 
T

O
 
2

4
"

MAIN

 DETAIL AT FIRE HYDRANT DETAIL AT BEND

P.C.C. THRUST BLOCK

BANK OF TRENCH

DUCTILE IRON

ELBOW

BANK OF TRENCH

F.H.

DUCTILE IRON TEE OR

TAPPING ASSEMBLY

P.C.C. THRUST

BLOCK

4' MIN CLEAR

TWO 2-

1

2

"

1

3
'
 
T

O
 
4

'
 
M

I
N

C
O

V
E

R

24" CLR

2 3

 CONDITION 1

3
'

45°

4'

CLR

WIDTH

PER PLAN

30"

C
U

R
B

 
F

A
C

E

45°

 CONDITION 2

E
T

W

E
P

10' CLR

4

'

C

L

R

F
H

F
H

OFFSET TO FIRE HYDRANT

SIDE OF ROAD CENTERLINE

5

ANCHOR VALVE PER

STANDARD DRAWING W-3

MECHANICAL RESTRAINT

JOINTS, EBAA IRON SERIES

2000 PV, BOTH ENDS

6"Ø PIPE, SAME

MATERIAL AS MAIN

4

4

NTSNTSNTS

NTS

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 97 of 149



11

W-3

VALVE ANCHOR & BOX

NOTE 1, CONCRETE COLLAR NOTE REM NOV 07

11

Scale:

Drawing No:

OF

Adopted:

NTS

Sheet No:

Revisions

Approved

Date

Description Approved

Date

Description

2014

TRENCH BOTTOM

NOTES:

1.  CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKS SHALL CONFORM TO STATE STANDARD 90-1.01, 470 LBS/CY CEMENTITIOUS MATERIAL  [5 SACK],

AND POURED AGAINST UNDISTURBED NATIVE SOIL.

2.  VALVES SHALL HAVE NON-RISING STEM, RESILIENT WEDGE, RESILIENT SEAT, AND BE EPOXY COATED.

3.  ALL MATERIALS AND INSTALLATION SHALL CONFORM WITH  THE APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE DESIGN STANDARDS.

4.  ALL FITTINGS SHALL BE WRAPPED IN POLYETHYLENE SHEET AND ALL FLANGES AND BOLTS SHALL BE SHIELDED FROM

CONCRETE PER THE DESIGN STANDARDS.

5.  UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL UTILITY LIDS AND CONCRETE COLLARS BE LOCATED WITHIN CURBS, GUTTERS,

SIDEWALKS, DRIVEWAY APRONS, CURB RAMPS, OR CROSS GUTTERS.

P.C.C. BLOCK IS

HUB-TO-HUB WIDTH

ANCHOR STRAPS

EACH SIDE

VALVE BOX - BROOKS No. 3RT OR

APPROVED EQUAL WITH

EXTENSIONS TO VALVE

3
"
 
M

I
N

TRENCH WIDTH

7"

VALVE ANCHOR SHALL BE

POURED LEVEL WITH TRENCH

BOTTOM ANCHOR STRAPS SHALL

BE FASTENED TO CONCRETE

EMBEDDED ANCHOR BOLTS

4"

MIN

1
0

"

WATER

VALVE BOX LID MARKED "WATER"

 LID 

1

1

6
"
 
M

I
N

2

10" MIN THICK BEARING CONCRETE COLLAR SHALL

CONFORM TO STATE STANDARD 90-1.01, 565 LBS/CY

CEMENTITIOUS MATERIAL  [6 SACK], TROWELLED TO

FINISHED GRADE, AND ALLOWED TO CURE 48 HOURS

PRIOR TO FULL TRAFFIC USE.

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 98 of 149



11

W-4

WATER SERVICE CONNECTION

11

Scale:

Drawing No:

OF

Adopted:

NTS

Sheet No:

Revisions

Approved

Date

Description Approved

Date

Description

2014

PAVEMENT

3/4"

1"

5

1" CLEARANCE

3

3

8

9"

6

2

1

MIN. RADIUS

12xTUBE DIAM.

NOTES:

1.  BRONZE SERVICE SADDLE, DOUBLE STRAP, MUELLER BR 2B 0899 IP,

075 or 100, O.A.E.

2.  CORPORATION STOP w/ IP THREADS, MUELLER H-10012, O.A.E.

3.  ANGLE METER STOP, JONES J-1966W, 3/4" or 1", O.A.E.

4.  POLYETHYLENE PIPE, 3/4" MIN. I.D. FOR SINGLE SERVICE 1" MIN. I.D.

FOR DOUBLE SERVICE.

5.  METER BOX, BROOKS PRODUCT 37-S, O.A.E.

6.  MUELLER INSTA-TITE CONNECTION H-15426(male)  O.A.E. H-15456

(female).

7.  IN UNPAVED AREA SET METER BOX 1" to 1-1/2" ABOVE FINISHED

GRADE.

8.  U-BRANCH CONNECTION, MUELLER H-15365, O.A.E.

9.  O.A.E. = "OR APPROVED EQUAL".

10. WATER METER AND CUSTOMER SIDE SHUT OFF VALVE TO BE

INSTALLED BY THE WATER PURVEYOR.

11. CORPORATION STOPS SHALL NOT BE SPACED CLOSER THAN 12"

MEASURED ALONG THE CENTERLINE OF THE PIPE.

12. 3/4" SINGLE SERVICE LINE, 1" DOUBLE SERVICE LINES, USE 16" X 21"

DUAL METER BOX (BROOKS PRODUCT OR APPROVED EQUAL) FOR

DOUBLE SERVICE.

13. SERVICES LARGER THAN 1" MAY BE PVC SCHEDULE 80 PIPE.

14. 14-GAUGE INSULATED COPPER TRACER WIRE SHALL BE LAID IN THE

TRENCH ABOVE THE PIPE AND BROUGHT ABOVE GRADE THROUGH

ANY METER OR VALVE BOXES.

15. COLOR CODED BLUE 3" WIDE POLYETHYLENE NON-DETECTABLE

TAPE MARKED "CAUTION BURIED WATER LINE BELOW" SHALL BE

BURIED IN THE TRENCH AND ABOVE THE PIPE AND TRACER WIRE.

4

WATER MAIN

6

6

36"

7

METER BOX LOCATION

PER STD. DWG. U-2

24"

 DOUBLE SERVICE CONNECTION

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 99 of 149



11

W-8

NEW WATERLINE

 CONNECTION DETAILS

Scale:

Drawing No:

OF

Adopted:

NTS

Sheet No:

Revisions

Approved

Date

Description Approved

Date

Description

2014

FLANGE FLANGE

WATERLINE

EXISTING

GASKET ON EACH SIDE OF PLATE

WATERLINE

NEW

PROCEDURE FOR CONNECTING NEW WATERLINES TO EXISTING SYSTEM (ALTERNATIVE TO THE OLD INDUSTRIAL STANDARD METHOD):

AT THE POINT OF CONNECTION TO THE EXISTING SYSTEM, ALL JOINTS BETWEEN FITTINGS AND VALVES SHALL BE FLANGED.  ANY

CHANGE REQUIRES WRITTEN APPROVAL FROM THE DEPARTMENT.  AT THE JOINT THAT CONNECTS THE EXISTING SYSTEM TO THE NEW

LINE, A BLOCKING DEVICE SHALL BE INSTALLED.  THIS DEVICE SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF 1/8" THICK STEEL PLATE.  IT SHALL BE

INSTALLED BETWEEN THE TWO FLANGES WITH A GASKET ON EACH SIDE.  THIS WILL ALLOW ALL FITTINGS, VALVES, AND THE PIPELINE

TO BE DISINFECTED AND PRESSURE TESTED AS ONE UNIT.  AFTER THE NEW SYSTEM HAS MET ALL REQUIREMENTS, THE DEPARTMENT

WILL ALLOW THE CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE THE BLOCKING DEVICE.  THE DEVICE AND BOTH GASKETS ARE TO BE REMOVED AND A

NEW GASKET SHALL BE INSTALLED BETWEEN THE FLANGES.  THE NEW SYSTEM IS THEN IN SERVICE.

1/8" THICK STEEL PLATE

TO BE USED AS A

BLOCKING DEVICE

NEW FLANGED

COUPLING ADAPTER

NEW WATERLINE

NEW FLANGED

GATE VALVE

TEMPORARY

BLOCKING DEVICE

NOTES:

1.  DIRECT CONNECTION TO THE EXISTING WATER SYSTEM

SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED UNTIL THE NEW INSTALLATION HAS

PASSED BACTERIA TESTING AND A PHYSICAL CHECK BY THE

WATER QUALITY MANAGER.  SEPARATION SHALL BE

ACHIEVED BY THE INSTALLATION OF THE TEMPORARY

BLOCKING DEVICE AS SHOWN HEREON

2.  PRESSURE TESTING AGAINST VALVES SHALL NOT BE

ALLOWED. NEW VALVES SHALL BE SWABBED WITH CHLORINE

PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

3.  WHEN TEMPORARY BLOCKING DEVICE IS REMOVED, THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL ADJUST FITTING TO ELIMINATE 1/8" GAP

WITHOUT FORCING THE JOINT TOGETHER.

4.  TEST PRESSURE SHALL BE 50 PSI GREATER THAN THE

WORKING PRESSURE OF THE PIPE MEASURED AT THE

LOWEST ELEVATION OF THE SYSTEM OR 150 PSI, WHICHEVER

IS GREATER.

EXIST.

WATERLINE

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 100 of 149



11

W-10

WATERLINE CUT-IN TEE

& HOT TAP ASSEMBLY

THRUST BLOCK NOTES REM NOV 07

Scale:

Drawing No:

OF

Adopted:

NTS

Sheet No:

Revisions

Approved

Date

Description Approved

Date

Description

2014

GLAND

T-BOLT

SOLID RUBBER GASKET

TAPPING VALVE - GATE VALVE, RESILIENT

SEATED WITH FULLY ENCAPSULATED GATE,

EPOXY-COATED INSIDE AND OUTSIDE, FULL-SIZE

WATERWAY, OPEN TO THE LEFT, NON- RISING

STEM WITH O-RING SEALS, 200 PSI WORKING

PRESSURE, AND MEETS AWWA C-509.  AVK,

CLOW F-1600 OR APPROVED EQUAL.

TAPPING SLEEVE SHALL BE SEPARATED

FROM NEAREST BELL, FLANGE, SERVICE

CLAMP, CORP STOP, ETC. BY A DISTANCE NO

LESS THAN 1 1/2 PIPE DIAMETERS, WITH A

MINIMUM OF 18-INCHES.

SPACER (WEDDING BAND) SHALL BE

INSTALLED.  (INSPECTION REQUIRED)

SOLID SLEEVE - CAST IRON, MJ x MJ,

12-INCHES MIN. LENGTH

VALVE REQUIRED AT

ALL BRANCH LINES

TEE, CROSS,

VALVE, ETC.

SPLIT IN SWIVEL GLAND SHALL BE

OFFSET FROM SPLIT IN TAPPING

SLEEVE BY ONE BOLT POSITION.

TAPPING SLEEVE - MUELLER H-615,

ROMAC SST STAINLESS STEEL, OR

APPROVED EQUAL

CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKS SHALL CONFORM

TO STATE STANDARD 90-1.01, 470 LBS/CY

CEMENTITIOUS MATERIAL  [5 SACK], SHIELDED

FROM BOLTS & FLANGES (SEE W-1).

1-1/2 DIA (18" MIN) 1-1/2 DIA (18" MIN)

 CUT-IN TEE

 HOT TAP ASSEMBLY

6"

MIN

CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKS SHALL

CONFORM TO STATE STANDARD

90-1.01, 470 LBS/CY CEMENTITIOUS

MATERIAL  [5 SACK], SHIELDED

FROM BOLTS & FLANGES (SEE W-1).

Agenda Item 9B February 27, 2019 - Page 101 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: February 27, 2019 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Paavo Ogren, General Manager 
 Tony Marraccino, Operations Supervisor 
 Casey Stewart, Utilities System Operator, SSMP Program Manager 
 
Subject: Agenda Item #9(C): Submittal of a Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) 2019 Internal Audit 

covering Calendar Years 2017 & 2018  

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board receive and file the SSMP 2019 Internal Audit. 

Discussion 

In April 2015, the Board of Directors approved the 2015 Update to the Sewer System Management Plan 
(SSMP) in accordance with regulatory requirements established by the State Water Board and administered by 
the Regional Water Board.  The overlying purpose of the SSMP regulations is to ensure that sewer system 
overflows are either eliminated or minimized.  This report summarizes the results of the audit, which is 
attached.   

Overall, the District complied with regulatory reporting requirements and the SSMP requirements to 
prevent/minimize overflow events.  The need to include additional documentation in administrative files is the 
primary finding from the audit.  Improving administrative documentation from the prior audit has been 
implemented but some continued refinement is still warranted.  For example, permits that the District issues to 
food establishments for Fats, Oils and Greases (FOG permits) had been held by the South San Luis Obispo County 
Sanitation District since they were providing the program services until 2018.  With the recent addition of a 
permanent part-time administrative staff, those permits are being re-issued in 2019 and will be included in the 
District’s administrative files. 

The regulatory requirements include a variety of maintenance and rehabilitation requirements, 
documentation, and monitoring.  The following are the elements included in an SSMP: 

1. Agency Goals 
2. Agency Organization 
3. Legal Authority 
4. Operations and Maintenance 
5. Design and Performance Provisions 
6. Overflow Emergency Response Plan 
7. Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) Control Program 
8. Capacity Management 

Agenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 102 of 149



 Oceano Community Services District 

Board of Directors Meeting 
 

 

9. Monitoring, Measurement, and Program Modifications 
10. Sewer System Management Plan Audit 
11. Communication Program 

 
The SSMP must be updated every five years and is due again in 2020.  Prior to the 2020 Update, an update 

to the Sewer System Master Plan, last completed in 2009, is recommended.  Issuing a Request for Proposals for 
the update is a staff priority at this time and will be completed in the next couple months so that it can be 
completed by the end of the calendar year. 
 

The attached internal audit has been completed by District staff.  Overall, the District had 3 Sewer System 
Overflows in 2017 and 3 Sewer System Overflows in 2018 which were appropriately reported to the regulatory 
agencies.  The District had zero incidences of discharges into water bodies caused by failure of District facilities.  
As part of the County’s Airpark Drive Bridge Replacement project in 2018, the County contractor did break an 
active sewer main that resulted in discharges to the Oceano lagoon.  Regulatory response on that incident 
addressed the county project and their contractor and not the District. 
 
Other Agency Involvement 

The Regional Water Board is responsible for regulating the District’s SSMP implementation.  The South 
San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District was under contract with the District for implementing the Fats-Oil-
Grease (FOG) program through 2017 but their staff who had been working on the program pursued other 
employment.  A private firm provided program services in 2018 and is providing training in the first half of 2019 
so that District staff can implement for the remainder of 2019 and for future District services. 

Other Financial Considerations 

None at this time. 

Results 

Maintaining a Sewer System Management Plan and performing bi-annual audits promotes safe, healthy 
and well governed communities. 
  
Attachments: 2019 SSMP Internal Audit for 2017 & 2018 

Agenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 103 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 
 

 
 
The audit program includes excerpts from State Water Board Order wqo2006_0003, Section D.13, which is 
the basis for “evaluating the effectiveness of the SSMP and the Enrollee’s compliance with the SSMP 
requirements” pursuant to Section D.13(x) entitled SSMP Program Audits.   
 
This audit program was adopted by the Oceano Community Services District (OCSD) Board of Directors on 
January 28, 2015.  It is incorporated as Appendix “F” in the 2015 OCSD Sewer System Management Plan.  

 
 

Eleven Elements of the Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) 
 

SSMP’s include the following eleven elements unless the enrollee can justify why an elements is not 
applicable.  The 2015 SSMP Update adopted by the OCSD Board of Directors on April 21, 2015 
included all eleven elements. 
 

(i) Goals 
(ii) Organization 
(iii) Legal Authority 
(iv) Operation and Maintenance Program 
(v) Design and Performance Provisions 
(vi) Overflow Emergency Response Plan 
(vii) FOG Control Program 
(viii) System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan 
(ix) Monitoring, Measurement, and Program Modifications 
(x) SSMP Program Audits 
(xi) Communication Program 

 
Each element is audited by 1) evaluating the implementation of prior audit findings, and 2) evaluating the 
District’s implementation efforts during the audit period in comparison to the adopted SSMP.  A 
narrative is provided for each element, including a discussion on audit steps, findings and a schedule to 
implement recommendations, if any. 
 
 
 
  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 104 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 
 
 
Element (i) – Goals 
 

SSMP Requirement:  Establishing Goals Were Prior 
Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

The goal of the SSMP is to provide a plan and schedule to properly 
manage, operate, and maintain all parts of the sanitary sewer 
system. This will help reduce and prevent SSOs, as well as mitigate 
any SSOs that do occur. 

Y R 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 

 
Yes new goals were established and included in the 2015 SSMP Update approved by the Board of Directors 
on April 8, 2015.  
 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 

i. Are the goals stated in the SSMP still appropriate and accurate? 
 

Yes the goals are still appropriate.  No Changes to Goals are recommended. 
 
The 2015 SSMP Update includes goals and objective performance measurements.  The following are the 
stated goals and audit findings. 
 

To be available and responsive to the 
needs of the public in reference to the 
public sewer system 

Goal was achieved.   

To work cooperatively with local, state 
and federal agencies to reduce, mitigate 
and properly report SSOs 

Goal was achieved.  Updated 2015 SSMP and 2016 audit 
were submitted and ongoing reporting is being met. 

To properly manage and maintain the 
District public sewer system lines to 
minimize SSOs 

Goal was achieved.   

To meet all applicable regulatory 
notification and reporting requirements 

 
Goal was achieved. 

 
 

  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 105 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 
 
The following table compares the objective performance measurements stated in the SSMP versus actual 
results during the audit period: 

 
 

100% of monthly CIWQS reports are 
submitted accurate and on time. 
 

100% were submitted accurately and on time. 

100% of work orders are completed, 
documented and filed in accordance with 
the SSMP. 
 

Although administrative files were established as a result of 
the prior audit, some records still need to be included.  FOG 
permits were maintained at South San Luis Obispo County 
Sanitation District, and will now be kept in the District’s 
Administrative files since the District will be implementing 
the program in 2019. 

100% of any reportable spills are 
submitted in accordance with the 
reporting requirements. 
 

100% of reportable spill were submitted in accordance with 
reporting requirements. 

100% of FOG inspections are completed 
on time 
 

14 out of 15 inspections complete for 2017.  The program 
was implemented in 2017 by the South San Luis Obispo 
County Sanitation District, whose staff pursued other 
employment and it is unknown why the one inspection did 
not occur. 
13 out of 15 inspections complete for 2018.  The two 
inspections that did not occur where the result of 
temporary closure of the food establishments over multiple 
months. 

100% of jetting and maintenance is 
completed, including for High 
Maintenance Areas. 
 

100% of jetting and maintenance was completed, including 
for High Maintenance Areas. 
 

An annual report is place on the Board of 
Directors agenda each year, no later than 
February 28th that provides the statistics 
on these goals for the prior calendar year. 
 

A formal annual reports on goals were not submitted to the 
Board of Directors in 2018.  It should be noted that this goal 
exceeds the regulatory reporting requirements.  Although 
the goal was not met, violation of regulatory reporting 
requirements did not occur.  Lastly, the Utility System 
Supervisor provides a verbal report to the Board of 
Directors on each and every spill during his operations 
updates included in every regular agenda.  Therefore, 
ongoing updates did provide disclosure to the Board and 
public.  Future years (non-audit years) will include the 
annual statistics.  The next such year is 2021. 

 
2(b): Findings: 

 
FOG inspections were not completed 100%.  Two instances were the result of temporary closures (multiple 
month durations).  The reason for the missed in inspection in 2017 is unknown but staff of the South San 
Luis Obispo County Sanitation District, who had been doing inspections, accepted employment elsewhere.   

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 106 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 
 
OCSD is now taking over inspection after utilizing a private firm in 2018.   

 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.   

 
Administrative Files are now established. 
  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 107 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 
 
Element (ii) – Organization 
 

SSMP Requirement:  The SSMP must identify individuals and chains 
of communication. 

Were Prior 
Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

(a) The name of the responsible or authorized 
representative as described in Section J of this 
Order. 

n/a C 

(b) The names and telephone numbers for management, 
administrative, and maintenance positions responsible for 
implementing specific measures in the SSMP program.  The  
SSMP must identify lines of authority through an organization 
chart or similar document with a narrative explanation 

n/a C 

(c) The chain of communication for reporting SSOs, from receipt 
of a complaint or other information, including the person 
responsible for reporting SSOs to the State and Regional 
Water Board and other agencies if applicable (such as County 
Health Officer, County Environmental Health Agency, 
Regional Water Board, and/or State Office of Emergency 
Services (OES)) 

n/a C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 

 
Name changes of elected officials did not occur immediately but are being completed including recent 
changes. 
  
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 

i. Is the SSMP up to date with agency organization and staffing contact 
information?  

 
The organization chart needs to be updated to names of newly elected Board members and staff 
phone numbers need to be updated and provided to the Regional Board.    

 
ii. Are procedures established to comply with the SMMP? 

 
Audit and SSMP Updates reflect necessary procedures.  Staff needs to remember to update phone 
numbers and individual names as changes occur.    

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 108 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 
 

 
2(b): Findings: 

 
The names and a phone number in the SSMP was not updated as changes occurred.  The 
discrepancies are minor and do not reflect non-compliance or the need for new 
recommendations.  Additional documentation in the main office, as previously noted, will help 
ensure that future changes in contact information are timely. 
 

 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.   

 
Updated information will be provided to the Regional Water Board by March 15, 2019. 
  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 109 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 
 
 
Element (iii) - Legal Authority 
 

SSMP Requirement: Each Enrollee must demonstrate, through 
sanitary sewer system use ordinances, service agreements, or other 
legally binding procedures, that it possesses the necessary legal 
authority to implement the SSMP 

Were Prior 
Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

(a) Prevent illicit discharges into its sanitary sewer system 
(examples may include I/I, storm water, chemical dumping, 
unauthorized debris and cut roots, etc.) 

n/a C 

(b) Require that sewers and connections be properly designed 
and constructed n/a C 

(c) Ensure access for maintenance, inspection, or repairs for 
portions of the lateral owned or maintained by the Public 
Agency 

n/a C 

(d) Limit the discharge of fats, oils, and grease and other debris 
that may cause blockages n/a C 

(e) Enforce any violation of its sewer ordinances n/a C 
Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 
 
n/a. 
 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 
i.  Does the SSMP contain up-to-date information about your agency’s legal authority? 
 
 Yes 

 
ii. Does your agency have sufficient legal authority to control sewer use and 

maintenance as required?  
 
Yes 
 

2(b): Findings: 
 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.   
 
N/A  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 110 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 
 
 
Element (iv) – Operation and Maintenance Program 
 

SSMP Requirement:  The SSMP must include those elements listed. Were Prior 
Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

(a) Maintain an up-to-date map of the sanitary sewer system, 
showing all gravity line segments and manholes, pumping 
facilities, pressure pipes and valves, and applicable storm-
water conveyance facilities 

n/a C 

(b) Describe routine preventive operation and maintenance 
activities by staff and contractors, including a system for 
scheduling regular maintenance and cleaning of the sanitary 
sewer system with more frequent cleaning and maintenance 
targeted at known problem areas.  The Preventative 
Maintenance (PM) program should have a system to 
document scheduled and conducted activities, such as work 
orders 

n/a C 

(c) Develop a rehabilitation and replacement plan to identify 
and prioritize system deficiencies and implement short-term 
and long- term rehabilitation actions to address each 
deficiency.  The program should include regular visual and TV 
inspections of manholes and sewer pipes, and a system for 
ranking the condition of sewer pipes and scheduling 
rehabilitation. Rehabilitation and replacement should focus 
on sewer pipes that are at risk of collapse or prone to more 
frequent blockages due to pipe defects.  Finally, the 
rehabilitation and replacement plan should include a capital 
improvement plan that addresses proper management and 
protection of the infrastructure assets.  The plan shall include 
a time schedule for implementing the short- and long-term 
plans plus a schedule for developing the funds needed for 
the capital improvement plan 

n/a R 

(d) Provide training on a regular basis for staff in sanitary sewer 
system operations and maintenance, and require contractors 
to be appropriately trained 

n/a C 

(e) Provide equipment and replacement part inventories, 
including identification of critical replacement parts n/a C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 

 
  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 111 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 

 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 
 
The District is implementing the Operations and Maintenance recommendations from the 2015 audit.   

 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 

 
2(a): Audit Steps: 

 
Are the District’s collection system maps 
complete, up-to-date, and sufficiently 
detailed? 
 

Yes- Upgrading to electronic versions is desired. 

Is the District’s preventive maintenance program 
up-to-date and documented? 
 

Yes. 

Is the District’s preventative maintenance 
program sufficient and effective in 
reducing and preventing SSO’s and 
blockages? 
 

Yes 

Are your agency’s inspections and condition 
assessments up-to-date and documented? 
 

Yes 

Are the District’s scheduled inspections and 
condition assessment system effective in locating, 
identifying, and addressing deficiencies? 
 

Yes 

Is the District’s training program sufficient 
and documented? 
 

Yes.  The District utilized a private firm in 2018 for 
FOG since staff of the South San Luis Obispo 
County Sanitation District found new employment.  
Staff is currently training with the private firm to 
take over the permitting, inspection and 
compliance requirements of the program. 

  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 112 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 

Are the District’s equipment and part 
inventory sufficient and documented? 
 

Yes - Update done annually and due to the limited 
nature of the inventory a more frequent update is 
not necessary.  
 
Note:  Upgrades to the lift station were completed 
in 2018 including electrical components.  In 
addition, a new pump was purchased to be 
available for immediate replacement. 
 

 
 
2(b): Findings: 

 
The District complied with Operations and Maintenance requirements.  Upgrading maps and other record 
keeping into electronic format is ongoing.   

 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.   
 
N/A 
  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 113 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 
 
Element (v) - Design and Performance Provisions 

SSMP Requirement Were Prior 
Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

(a) Design and construction standards and specifications for the 
installation of new sanitary sewer systems, pump stations 
and other appurtenances; and for the rehabilitation and 
repair of existing sanitary sewer systems 

n/a C 

(b) Procedures and standards for inspecting and testing the 
installation of new sewers, pumps, and other appurtenances 
and for rehabilitation and repair projects 

n/a C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings:  N/A 
 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 

i. Are design and construction standards, as well as standards for inspection and 
testing of new and rehabilitated facilities, sufficiently comprehensive and up-to-
date?  Yes 

 
ii. Are the District’s conditions on new development sufficient and up-to-date when 

modifications to the District’s system are needed to provide service to the 
development?  Yes 

 
2(b): Findings: 
 

The District’s standards are up to date and sufficient and the conditions on new development are up to 
date and sufficient. In addition, since the County of San Luis Obispo issues building permits and 
encroachment permits in County maintained roads.  The support of the County is available if construction 
issues develop.   
 
 

2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.  N/A 
  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 114 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 
 
 
Element (vi) - Overflow Emergency Response Plan 
 

SSMP Requirement:  Each Enrollee shall develop and implement an 
overflow emergency response plan that identifies me a s u r e s  to 
protect public health and the environment. 

Were Prior 
Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

(a) Proper notification procedures so that the primary 
responders and regulatory agencies are informed of all SSOs 
in a timely manner 

n/a C 

(b) A program to ensure an appropriate response to all overflows n/a C 
(c) Procedures to ensure prompt notification to appropriate 

regulatory agencies and other potentially affected entities 
(e.g. health agencies, Regional Water Boards, water 
suppliers, etc.) of all SSOs that potentially affect public 
health or reach the waters of the State in accordance with 
the MRP.  All SSOs shall be reported in accordance with this 
MRP, the California Water Code, other State Law, and other 
applicable Regional Water Board WDRs or NPDES permit 
requirements.  The SSMP should identify the officials who 
will receive immediate notification 

n/a C 

(d) Procedures to ensure that appropriate staff and contractor 
personnel are aware of and follow the Emergency Response 
Plan and are appropriately trained 

n/a C 

(e) Procedures to address emergency operations, such as traffic 
and crowd control and other necessary response activities n/a C 

(f) A program to ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to 
contain and prevent the discharge of untreated and partially 
treated wastewater to waters of the United States and to 
minimize or correct any adverse impact on the environment 
resulting from the SSOs, including such accelerated or 
additional monitoring as may be necessary to determine the 
nature and impact of the discharge 

n/a C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 
 
n/a 
 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 

i. Does the District maintain up-to-date information on its Overflow 
Emergency Response Plan? Yes 

 

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 115 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 

ii. Considering the District’s information, is the Overflow Emergency Response 
Plan effective in handling SSO’s?  Yes 

 
 

2(b): Findings: 
 

Overall, the operating staff does have procedures, are knowledgeable of their response requirements, and 
is utilizing industry guidelines as needed. 

 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.   

 
n/a  
  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 116 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 
 
 
Element (vii) - FOG Control Program 

SSMP Requirement:  The Enrollee must prepare and implement a 
FOG source control program to reduce the amount of these 
substances discharged to the sanitary sewer system 

Were Prior 
Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

(a) An implementation plan and schedule for a public education 
outreach program that promotes proper disposal of FOG n/a C 

(b) A plan and schedule for the disposal of FOG generated within 
the sanitary sewer system service area.  This may include a 
list of acceptable disposal facilities and/or additional facilities 
needed to adequately dispose of FOG generated within a 
sanitary sewer system service area 

n/a C 

(c) The legal authority to prohibit discharges to the system and 
identify measures to prevent SSOs and blockages caused by 
FOG 

n/a C 

(d) Requirements to install grease removal devices (such as traps 
or interceptors), design standards for the removal devices, 
maintenance requirements, BMP requirements, record 
keeping and reporting requirements 

n/a C 

(e) Authority to inspect grease producing facilities, enforcement 
authorities, and whether the Enrollee has sufficient staff to 
inspect and enforce the FOG ordinance 

n/a C 

(f) An identification of sanitary sewer system sections subject to 
FOG blockages and establishment of a cleaning maintenance 
schedule for each section 

n/a C 

(g) Development and implementation of source control 
measures for all sources of FOG discharged to the sanitary 
sewer system for each section identified above 

n/a C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 

Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: n/a 
 
 
  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 117 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 

 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 

 
2(a): Audit Steps: 

 
i. Does the District maintain up-to-date information on its FOG control 

program? Yes, including through inspection conducted by staff of 
the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District (2017) and a 
private firm (2018). 

 
ii. Is the FOG control program effective? Yes – Zero Notices of Violation 

occurred during the audit period. 
 
 

2(b): Findings: none 
 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.  n/a

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 118 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 
 
 
 
Element (viii) - System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan 
 

SSMP Requirement:  The Enrollee shall prepare and implement a 
capital improvement plan (CIP) that will provide hydraulic capacity 
of key sanitary sewer system elements for dry weather peak flow 
conditions, as well as the appropriate design storm or wet weather 
event. 

Were Prior 
Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

(a) Evaluation: Actions needed to evaluate those portions of the 
sanitary sewer system that are experiencing or contributing 
to an SSO discharge caused by hydraulic deficiency.  The 
evaluation must provide estimates of peak flows (including 
flows from SSOs that escape from the system) associated 
with conditions similar to those causing overflow events, 
estimates of the capacity of key system components, 
hydraulic deficiencies (including components of the system 
with limiting capacity) and the major sources that contribute 
to the peak flows associated with overflow events 

n/a C 

(b) Design Criteria: Where design criteria do not exist or are 
deficient, undertake the evaluation identified in (a) above to 
establish appropriate design criteria 

n/a C 

(c) Capacity Enhancement Measures: The steps needed to 
establish a short- and long-term CIP to address identified 
hydraulic deficiencies, including prioritization, alternatives 
analysis, and schedules.  The CIP may include increases in 
pipe size, I/I reduction programs, increases and redundancy 
in pumping capacity, and storage facilities.  The CIP shall 
include an implementation schedule and shall identify 
sources of funding 

n/a R 

(d) Schedule: The Enrollee shall develop a schedule of 
completion dates for all portions of the capital improvement 
program developed in (a)-(c) above.  This schedule shall be 
reviewed and updated consistent with the SSMP review and 
update requirements as described in Section D. 14 

n/a C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 
 
N/A 
  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 119 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 

 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 

i. Does the District maintain up-to-date information about its 
capacity assessment? Yes, see below. 

 
ii. Has the District completed a capacity assessment and identified and 

addressed any hydraulic deficiencies in the system? Yes; no hydraulic 
deficiencies identified. 

 
2(b): Findings: 

 
These audit findings are consistent with the 2015 audit, which follows.   
 
In the 2010 SSMP, the engineering consultant provided a “Technical Memorandum Wastewater Collection 
System Study” dated September 16, 2009. In that technical memorandum, it states “At this time, there are 
no identified system capacity concerns and therefore no capital improvement projects are recommended.” 
The District continues to rely upon this Technical Memorandum. Prior to the 2020 SSMP update, an update 
of the 2009 Technical Memorandum should be completed.  Staff efforts to prepare a request for proposal 
to prepare an update to the 2009 evaluation and a capital improvement plan.  

 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.   

 
Within the current calendar year, the system capacity analysis and CIP should be updated. 
 
  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 120 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 
 
Element (ix) - Monitoring, Measurement, and Program Modifications 
 

SSMP Requirement Were Prior 
Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

Maintain relevant information that can be used to establish and 
prioritize appropriate SSMP activities n/a C 

Monitor the implementation and, where appropriate, measure the 
effectiveness of each element of the SSMP n/a C 

Assess the success of the preventative maintenance program n/a C 
Update program elements, as appropriate, based on monitoring or 
performance evaluations n/a C 

Identify and illustrate SSO trends, including: frequency, location, and 
volume n/a C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 
 
 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 

i. Does the District maintain up-to-date information about its data collection and 
organization? Yes. 

 
ii. Is the District’s data collection and organization sufficient to evaluate the 

effectiveness of your SSMP?  Overall Yes.  Some information still needs to be 
included in administrative files such as FOG permits. 

 
 

2(b): Findings: 
 
n/a 

 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.  n/a 

 
 
 

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 121 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 
 

 
Element (x) - SSMP Program Audits 
 

SSMP Requirement Were Prior 
Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

The Enrollee shall conduct periodic internal audits, appropriate to the 
size of the system and the number of SSOs.  At a minimum, these 
audits must occur every two years and a report must be prepared 
and kept on file.  This audit shall focus on evaluating the 
effectiveness of the SSMP and the Enrollee’s compliance with the 
SSMP requirements identified in this subsection (D.13), including 
identification of any deficiencies in the SSMP and steps to correct 
them. 

Yes C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 
 
Implementation of prior audit findings were substantially complete.  Each element of this audit identifies 
which items continue to be work in progress.  Primarily, adding records in the District’s Administrative 
Office so that they are 100% complete.   
 
Since it is appropriate to conduct the audits and related SSMP activities based on the size of the system 
and number of SSO’s, the various recommendations included in the audit often exceed the basic 
regulatory requirements.  Nevertheless, continuous enhancements support effective program 
implementation and will be continued. 
 
Lastly, a new audit program was incorporated into the 2015 SSMP update, as recommended. 
 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 

Are the District’s audits being completed in a timely manner with sufficient detail and 
findings to ensure that the SSMP is updated in a timely manner and that any changes to 
the District’s policies, procedures and practices are implemented in a timely manner? 

 
Yes 

 
Will this SSMP Audit be submitted with the Annual Report to the Regional Water Board 
by March 15? Yes. 

  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 122 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 

 
 

2(b): Findings: 
 

Although continuous improvements are recommended, the District is complying with SSMP requirements, 
SSO response requirements, and the overall requirements of the SSMP. 

 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.   

 
No audit related recommendations.  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 123 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
Sewer System Management Plan - Internal Audit Program 
2019 Audit (for Calendar Years 2017 and 2018) 
 
 
Element (xi) - Communication Program 

SSMP Requirement Were Prior Audit 
Findings 

Implemented? 
(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

The Enrollee shall communicate on a regular basis with the public 
on the development, implementation, and performance of its 
SSMP.  The communication system shall provide the public the 
opportunity to provide input to the Enrollee as the program is 
developed and implemented 

Yes C 

The Enrollee shall also create a plan of communication with 
systems that are tributary and/or satellite to the Enrollee’s 
sanitary sewer system 

n/a n/a 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 
 
The 2015 Audit included 3 public hearings 1) An Update to the SSMP Audit Guidelines, 2) Submittal of the 
2015 Internal Audit (for the two years ending December 31, 2014) and 3) Approval of the 2015 SSMP 
Update. 
 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 
i. Does the District maintain up-to-date information about its public outreach activities? 

Yes – Information is provided to FOG customers and any overflows from private 
property.   

 
ii. Does the District maintain up-to-date information about its communications with satellite 

and tributary agencies? Yes.  The FOG program is coordinated with SSLOCSD and 
emergency events are coordinated. 
 
iii. Does the District effectively communicated with the public and other agencies 

about the SSMP, and address feedback? Yes, SSMP updates provided to the 
Regional Board. 

 
 

2(b): Findings:  Did not post to the web (other than on the agenda items). 
 

2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.  n/a 
 

AttachmentAgenda Item 9C February 27, 2019 - Page 124 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: February 27, 2019 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Carey Casciola, Business and Accounting Manager  

Subject: Agenda Item #9(D): Consideration of a Recommendation to review the 2019-20 Proposed 
Zone 3 Budget and provide the Zone 3 committee representative with direction as 
deemed appropriate 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board review the Proposed 2019-20 Zone 3 Budget and provide 
the Zone 3 committee representative with direction as deemed appropriate. 

Discussion 

The attached proposed 2019-20 budget for Zone 3 (Lopez Water) was introduced at the Zone 3 
Advisory Committee meeting on January 17, 2019.  The Committee will consider it at the March 21st 
meeting.  Consistent with prior years, a meeting of the Finance Directors of the participating agencies 
was scheduled to review the budget in advance of the March Zone 3 Advisory Committee meeting. 

Overall, the 2019-20 billing to the District will be $505,069 or an increase of $14,321 (2.9%) in 
comparison to the current year amount of $490,748, which is the amount reflected in the District’s 
2018-19 budget.  The two primary reasons for the increase are the non-routine operations and 
maintenance and capital outlay projects.  The largest projects for fiscal year 2019-20 are the studies 
related to the Habitat Conservation Plan, the implementation of a Cloud Seeding Program, and the 
spillway physical investigation required by the Division of Safety of Dams.  The Cloud Seeding is the 
only discretionary project at an estimated cost of $300,000 with the Oceano CSD share estimated at 
$20,000. 

Other Agency Involvement 

The San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District owns and operates 
Lopez Dam and the Zone 3 water conveyance facilities.  The Cities of Arroyo Grande, Pismo Beach and 
Grover Beach, and County Service Area No. 12 (Avila Valley) also obtain water from Zone 3 and pay for 
their proportional share of costs. 

Agenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 125 of 149



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

Other Financial Considerations 

n/a 

Results 

The Lopez Water supply is an important component of the District’s water supply portfolio and 
supports healthy and livable communities. 

Attachments:   

Proposed Zone 3 2019-20 Budget 

Agenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 126 of 149



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Budget 
 
 

 
 

For 
Fiscal Year 

 
 
 
 

   

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 127 of 149



FLOOD CONTROL ZONE 3 
2019-20 PROPOSED BUDGET 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

           Page Numbers 
 

1. Letter of Transmittal ………………………………………………………..……i 
 

2. Funding Sources for Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-20.……….……………..1 
 

3. Funding Sources for Budget for Fiscal Year 2018-19…………………..…..2 
 

4. Funding Sources for Budget for FY 2019-20 vs. 2018-19………...........….3 
 

5. Billing Analysis Summary………………………………………………...……4 
 

6. Billing Analysis for Fiscal Year 2019-20.……………………………………..5 
 

7. Billing Analysis for Fiscal Year 2018-19.……………………………………..6 
 

8. Billing Analysis for Fiscal Year 2019-20 vs. 2018-19.………………………7 
 

9. Flood Control Zone 3 Reserves, Projected at 6/30/20……………………...8  
 

10. Flood Control Zone 3 Reserves, Projected at 6/30/19……………………...9 
 

11. Flood Control Zone 3 Reserves, FY 2019-20 Changes……..….………...10 
 

12. Flood Control Zone 3 Consolidation of Funds…..…….…..….………..…..11  
 

13. Billing For Agency Debt Service…………….…..…………………..……….12 
 

14. Estimated Billing Summary - FY 2018-19 & 2019-20.…..….……………..13 
 

15. Cost per Acre Foot for Fiscal Year 2019-20……..…...…………………….14 
 

16. Capital Outlay and Special Projects for FY 2019-20..….………………….15 
 

 

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 128 of 149



 
 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 
Department of Public Works 
Colt Esenwein, P.E., Director 

 

 

County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works 
County Govt Center, Room 206 |  San Luis Obispo, CA 93408  |  (P) 805-781-5252 |  (F) 805-781-1229 

pwd@co.slo.ca.us  |  slocounty.ca.gov 

January 17, 2019 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Flood Control Zone 3 Advisory Committee 
 
FROM:  Lynette O’Neil, San Luis Obispo County Public Works Finance Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Flood Control Zone 3 ‐ Proposed Budget FY 2019‐20 
 
The  2019‐20  Flood  Control  Zone  3  Proposed  Budget  has  been  prepared  by  the  County 
Department of Public Works for your review.  The proposed budget documents will be submitted 
to the Zone 3 Advisory Committee members at the January 17, 2019 meeting.   The proposed 
budget will also be mailed to the contracting agencies’ Finance Directors and Technical Advisory 
Committee (TAC) members and City/General Managers.  An in‐depth review with agency Finance 
Staff, Technical Staff and City Managers will be held before final review by the Zone 3 Advisory 
Committee, scheduled for March 21, 2019. 
 
A  summary  of  the  changes  from  the  2018‐19  budget  to  the  proposed  2019‐20  budget  is  as 
follows: 
 

Description 
2018-19 
Budget 

2019-20 
Budget 

Dollar Change 
Percentage 

Change 

Operations & Maintenance         

Billable Routine  3,993,325 3,892,474 -100,851 -2.5% 

Billable Non-Routine  313,866 576,799 262,933 83.8% 

Total O&M 4,307,191 4,469,273 162,082 3.8% 

Billable Capital Outlay/Reserves 325,000 409,153 84,153 25.9% 

Billable Debt Service 2,516,631 2,493,786 -22,845 -0.9% 

Total Contractor Billings $7,148,822  $7,372,212  $223,390  3.1% 

 
 
 

i 

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 129 of 149



 ii

Variance Discussion: 
 
The  overall  contractor  billings  will  increase  by  3.1%  for  FY  2019‐20.    Overall  operations  and 
maintenance  billings  have  increased  approximately  3.8%.    Various  schedules  are  provided within 
this document that will allow the reader to determine details related to the changes between the 
2019‐20 proposed budget and the 2018‐19 current budget.  On a bottom line basis, total billings to 
agencies are approximately $223,000 more than the current year and $139,000 more than the five‐
year plan. 
 
The following further explains the major reasons for the changes. 
 
Billable Routine O&M Expenditures ‐ (Decrease of 2.5%) 
 
The decrease in Routine O&M is due to a reduction in the labor budgeted for the Utilities Division 
Engineer.  This reduction aligns the budgeted hours more closely with actual time spent on Zone 3.  
 
Billable Non‐Routine O&M Expenditures ‐ (Increase of 83.8%) 
 
These  are  expenditures  that  run  from  one  to  three  years  for  special  projects  and  studies.    This 
year’s budget includes a consultant to perform instream studies related to the Habitat Conservation 
Plan and implementation of a Cloud Seeding Program.  The Technical Advisory Committee reviewed 
and  approved  the  Non‐Routine  O&M  projects  in  conjunction  with  the  Capital  projects.    The 
proposed budget for these two categories combined is $986,000. 
 
Billable Capital Outlay/Reserves ‐ (Increase of 25.9%) 
 
These expenditures are “pay‐as‐you‐go” capital expenditures that are not generally funded through 
use  of  Flood  Control  Zone  3  reserves  and/or  other  sources  of  funding  such  as  grants  or  loans.  
Projects  within  this  category  are  included  on  the  5‐Year  Capital  Outlay  Plan  which  has  been 
reviewed  and  approved  by  the  Technical  Advisory  Committee  prior  to  being  included  in  this 
proposed budget.   This year, expenditures  in this category total $409,000.   The details of each of 
these projects may be found on page 15. 
 
Billable Debt Service ‐ (Decrease of .9%) 
 
The debt service costs should remain at this level until the Bonds are paid off in the year 2030 or 
until refinanced.  Minor fluctuations in billable amounts are due to fluctuating tax estimates that 
are collected and dedicated toward debt service. 

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 130 of 149



 iii

Reserve Policies  (see pages 8‐10 for projected reserve levels) 
 
DISTRICT FUNDED RESERVES: 

The balances within  these  reserves  are  derived  from pre‐2000  property  tax  revenues,  and annual  interest 
earnings and rents.  
 
1976 – 2000:   A portion of the 1% property tax established by Proposition 13 was annually apportioned to 
the Flood Control District.  Of those Flood Control District’s funds, a portion was further segregated annually 
into Zone 3, although the funds are not legally restricted to use within Zone 3.  
 
2000:  Pursuant to the Zone 3 Water Contracts, the above‐mentioned funds annually segregated into Zone 3 
were  contractually  restricted  to  paying  debt  service  on  the  Lopez  Dam  seismic  remediation  project.  
Therefore,  funds  existing  in  Zone  3  District  Reserves  since  2000  are  essentially  a  “draw  down”  account 
utilized towards Zone 3 projects and efforts, though not legally restricted to use within Zone 3. 

 
Operating  Reserves  ‐  the  District  will  strive  to  maintain  an  operating  reserve  at  a  minimum  of  50%  of 
routine operations and maintenance expenditures. 

 
Designated Reserves  ‐ Reserves collected and set aside  for significant scheduled maintenance and capital 
costs will  be  separately  identified  as part  of  the  annual  proposed budget  and will  be  incorporated  in  the 
annual final budget only after review by the Zone 3 Advisory Committee. 
 
The Zone 3 Advisory Committee has recommended utilizing the District Funded Designated Reserves toward 
the efforts shown in the following chart.  Specific requests by the Advisory Committee require approval by 
the San Luis Obispo County Board of Supervisors either via the annual budget process or mid‐year requests 
prior to their use. 

 

 

Estimated 

Available Balance

District Funded Designated Reserves

Utilization Plan

$50,000  HCP Efforts

$132,741  Santa Maria Groundwater Basin Model

$89,501 
Arroyo Grande Creek Watershed Stormwater Resource Plan 

(Prop 1 Grant match)

$386,563  Public safety related to water quality and quantity purposes

$658,805 
TOTAL District Funded Designated Reserves

Projected at 6/30/20  
 
 
CONTRACTOR FUNDED RESERVES:   

These reserves are funded by contributions from individual contractors or other participants of the District 
project.  Additions to these reserves will be made via annual billings based on approved budgeted amounts.  
Any distributions of these reserves will be based on actual requirements.  These reserves will be accounted 
for  separately by contributor.    The annual budget process will  provide a  statement of  reserve activity.   A 
portion of  the costs of significant scheduled maintenance  items or capital  items, as  identified  in  the  long‐
range capital improvement plan, may be set aside in each annual budget of the District.  Additionally, each 
agency may opt to establish reserves to be used to stabilize billings from year to year.  Said reserves will be 
separately  identified  and will  be  incorporated  in  the  annual  final  budget only  after  review by  the  Zone 3 
Advisory Committee. 

 
DEBT RESERVES: 

Debt reserves are contractually mandated and are not addressed as part of this policy. 

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 131 of 149



Fl
oo

d 
C

on
tr

ol
 Z

on
e 

3
Fu

nd
in

g 
S

ou
rc

es
 f

or
 B

ud
ge

t
F

o
r 

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r 

20
19

-2
0

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I 
J

K

 1 
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 T

yp
e 

 A
m

ou
nt

 
 C

on
tra

ct
or

 B
ills

 
 F

CZ
 3 

Re
se

rv
es

 
 F

CZ
3 P

ro
pe

rty
 

Ta
x (

po
rti

on
 o

f 
1%

    
 P

ro
p 

13
) 

 G
.O

. T
ax

 
Co

lle
ct

io
n:

  
Un

in
co

rp
 A

re
as

 

 G
.O

. T
ax

 
Co

lle
ct

io
n:

  
Co

nt
ra

ct
in

g 
Ag

en
cie

s 

 In
te

re
st

 
Ea

rn
in

gs
 

 R
en

ts
 

 O
th

er
 - 

Re
im

bu
rs

ab
le 

 T
ot

al 

 2 
D

eb
t 

S
er

vi
ce

3,
64

6,
13

7
$ 

 
$2

,4
93

,7
86

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

31
8,

47
6

$ 
  

 
38

,2
67

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
79

5,
60

8
$ 

  
  

  
 

-
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3,
64

6,
13

7
$ 

  
  

  
  

  

 3 
O

 &
 M

 -
 R

ou
tin

e
3,

89
4,

40
0

  
  

3,
89

2,
47

4
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1,
92

6
  

  
  

  
  

 
3

,8
94

,4
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

 1 

 4 
O

 &
 M

 -
 N

on
-R

ou
tin

e
57

6,
79

9
  

  
  

 
57

6,
79

9
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

57
6,

79
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 5 
C

ap
ita

l O
ut

la
y

40
9,

15
3

  
  

  
 

40
9,

15
3

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
40

9,
15

3
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

 6 
S

u
b

 T
o

ta
l 

8,
52

6,
48

9
  

  
7,

37
2,

21
2

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
31

8,
47

6
  

  
  

38
,2

67
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

79
5,

60
8

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1,

92
6

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
,5

26
,4

89
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

 7 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

R
es

er
ve

s
10

4,
10

0
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
96

,0
00

  
  

  
  

 
8,

10
0

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
10

4,
10

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

 8 
G

ra
n

d
 T

o
ta

l
8,

63
0,

58
9

$ 
 

7,
37

2,
21

2
$ 

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

31
8,

47
6

$ 
  

 
38

,2
67

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
79

5,
60

8
$ 

  
  

  
 

96
,0

00
$ 

  
  

  
8,

10
0

$ 
  

  
  

1,
92

6
$

  
  

  
  

 
8

,6
30

,5
89

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 132 of 149



Fl
oo

d 
C

on
tr

ol
 Z

on
e 

3
Fu

nd
in

g 
S

ou
rc

es
 f

or
 B

ud
ge

t
F

o
r 

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r 

20
18

-1
9

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
 

H
I

J
K

 1 
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 T

yp
e 

 A
m

ou
nt

 
 C

on
tra

ct
or

 B
ills

 
 F

CZ
 3 

Re
se

rv
es

 

 F
CZ

3 P
ro

pe
rty

 
Ta

x (
po

rti
on

 o
f 

1%
    

 P
ro

p 
13

) 

 G
.O

. T
ax

 
Co

lle
ct

io
n:

  
Un

in
co

rp
 A

re
as

 

 G
.O

. T
ax

 
Co

lle
ct

io
n:

  
Co

nt
ra

ct
in

g 
Ag

en
cie

s 

 In
te

re
st

 
Ea

rn
in

gs
 

 R
en

ts
 

 O
th

er
 - 

Re
im

bu
rs

ab
le 

 T
ot

al 

 2 
D

eb
t 

S
er

vi
ce

3,
65

3,
32

6
$ 

 
2,

51
6,

63
1

$ 
  

  
  

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
30

2,
57

0
$ 

  
  

38
,8

70
$

  
  

  
  

79
5,

25
5

$ 
  

  
-

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3,
65

3,
32

6
$ 

  
  

  

 3 
O

 &
 M

 -
 R

ou
tin

e
3,

99
6,

10
7

  
  

3,
99

3,
32

5
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2,

78
2

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
,9

96
,1

07
  

  
  

  

 2 

 4 
O

 &
 M

 -
 N

on
-R

ou
tin

e
31

3,
86

6
  

  
  

 
31

3,
86

6
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

31
3,

86
6

  
  

  
  

  
 

 5 
C

ap
ita

l O
ut

la
y

32
5,

00
0

  
  

  
 

32
5,

00
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
32

5,
00

0
  

  
  

  
  

 

 6 
S

u
b

 T
o

ta
l 

8,
28

8,
29

9
  

  
7,

14
8,

82
2

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
30

2,
57

0
  

  
  

 
38

,8
70

  
  

  
  

  
79

5,
25

5
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2,

78
2

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
,2

88
,2

99
  

  
  

  

 7 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

R
es

er
ve

s
67

,9
00

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
60

,0
00

  
  

  
  

 
7,

90
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

67
,9

00
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

 8 
G

ra
n

d
 T

o
ta

l
8,

35
6,

19
9

$ 
 

7,
14

8,
82

2
$ 

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

30
2,

57
0

$ 
  

  
38

,8
70

$
  

  
  

  
79

5,
25

5
$ 

  
  

60
,0

00
$ 

  
  

  
7,

90
0

$ 
  

  
  

  
2,

78
2

$
  

  
  

  
 

8
,3

56
,1

99
$ 

  
  

  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 133 of 149



Fl
oo

d 
C

on
tr

ol
 Z

on
e 

3
Fu

nd
in

g 
S

ou
rc

es
 f

or
 B

ud
ge

t
F

o
r 

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r 

20
19

-2
0 

vs
. 2

01
8-

19

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I
J

K

 1 
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 T

yp
e 

 A
m

ou
nt

 
 C

on
tra

ct
or

 
Bi

lls
 

 F
CZ

 3 
Re

se
rv

es
 

 F
CZ

3 P
ro

pe
rty

 T
ax

 
(p

or
tio

n 
of

 1%
    

 
Pr

op
 13

) 

 G
.O

. T
ax

 
Co

lle
ct

io
n:

  
Un

in
co

rp
 A

re
as

 

 G
.O

. T
ax

 
Co

lle
ct

io
n:

  
Co

nt
ra

ct
in

g 
Ag

en
cie

s 

 In
te

re
st

 
Ea

rn
in

gs
 

 R
en

ts
 

 O
th

er
 - 

Re
im

bu
rs

ab
le 

 T
ot

al 

 2 
D

eb
t 

S
er

vi
ce

(7
,1

89
)

$
  

  
  

  
(2

2,
84

5)
$ 

  
  

 
-

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
15

,9
06

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(6

03
)

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 
35

3
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(7

,1
89

)
$ 

  
  

  
 

 3 
O

 &
 M

 -
 R

ou
tin

e
(1

01
,7

07
)

  
  

  
(1

00
,8

51
)

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(8

56
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(1

01
,7

07
)

  
  

  

 3 

 4 
O

 &
 M

 -
 N

on
-R

ou
tin

e
26

2,
93

3
  

  
  

 
26

2,
93

3
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
26

2,
93

3
  

  
  

 

 5 
C

ap
ita

l O
ut

la
y

84
,1

53
  

  
  

  
 

84
,1

53
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

84
,1

53
  

  
  

  
 

 6 
S

u
b

 T
o

ta
l 

23
8,

19
0

  
  

  
 

22
3,

39
0

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

15
,9

06
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(6
03

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

35
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(8

56
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
23

8,
19

0
  

  
  

 

 7 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

R
es

er
ve

s
36

,2
00

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
36

,0
00

  
  

  
  

 
20

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

36
,2

00
  

  
  

  
 

 8 
G

ra
n

d
 T

o
ta

l
27

4,
39

0
$

  
  

 
22

3,
39

0
$ 

  
  

-
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

15
,9

06
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(6
03

)
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

35
3

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 
36

,0
00

$ 
  

  
  

20
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
(8

56
)

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
27

4,
39

0
$ 

  
  

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 134 of 149



Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
rs

 2
01

9-
20

 a
nd

 2
01

8-
19

A
B

C
 

D
E

F
G

H
I

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 B
u

d
g

et
 2

01
9-

20

1

A
rr

o
yo

 G
ra

n
d

e
G

ro
ve

r 
B

ea
ch

P
is

m
o

 B
ea

ch
C

S
A

 1
2

O
ce

an
o

 C
S

D
O

th
er

 
T

o
ta

l A
g

en
cy

 
B

u
d

g
et

s
1

2
2

3
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
1,

37
3,

52
1

$ 
   

   
   

 
42

0,
20

0
$ 

   
   

  
32

4,
22

0
$ 

   
   

21
1,

24
7

$ 
   

   
  

16
4,

59
9

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

49
3,

78
6

$ 
   

   
   

3
4

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
1,

87
2,

25
8

   
   

   
   

 
66

6,
12

1
   

   
   

  
70

3,
32

5
   

   
   

34
4,

21
6

   
   

   
  

27
4,

52
2

   
   

   
32

,0
31

   
   

   
   

   
3,

89
2,

47
4

   
   

   
   

4
5

N
on

 R
ou

tin
e 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
29

1,
58

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

1,
86

3
   

   
   

  
10

1,
86

3
   

   
   

42
,9

10
   

   
   

   
 

38
,5

81
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
57

6,
79

9
   

   
   

   
   

5
6

C
ap

ita
l O

ut
la

y
20

6,
83

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
72

,2
57

   
   

   
   

 
72

,2
57

   
   

   
  

30
,4

38
   

   
   

   
 

27
,3

67
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

9,
15

3
   

   
   

   
   

6
7

7
8

T
ot

al
3,

74
4,

19
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

26
0,

44
1

$ 
   

  
1,

20
1,

66
5

$ 
   

62
8,

81
1

$ 
   

   
  

50
5,

06
9

$ 
   

   
32

,0
31

$ 
   

   
   

   
7,

37
2,

21
2

$ 
   

   
   

8

P
ri

o
r 

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r 

20
18

-1
9

 4 

9

A
rr

o
yo

 G
ra

n
d

e
G

ro
ve

r 
B

ea
ch

P
is

m
o

 B
ea

ch
C

S
A

 1
2

O
ce

an
o

 C
S

D
O

th
er

 
T

o
ta

l A
g

en
cy

 
B

u
d

g
et

s
9

10
10

11
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
1,

38
7,

49
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
42

5,
43

7
$ 

   
   

  
32

4,
84

2
$ 

   
   

21
3,

33
6

$ 
   

   
  

16
5,

52
4

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

51
6,

63
2

$ 
   

   
   

11
12

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
1,

86
6,

33
4

66
6,

81
7

73
5,

49
5

39
6,

62
7

28
2,

4
92

45
,5

60
3,

99
3,

32
5

   
   

   
   

12
13

N
on

 R
ou

tin
e 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
15

8,
66

5
55

,4
29

55
,4

29
23

,3
49

20
,9

94
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
31

3,
86

6
   

   
   

   
   

13
14

C
ap

ita
l O

ut
la

y
16

4,
29

4
57

,3
95

57
,3

95
24

,1
78

21
,7

38
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
32

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

14
15

15
16

T
ot

al
3,

57
6,

78
5

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

20
5,

07
8

$ 
   

  
1,

17
3,

16
1

$ 
   

65
7,

49
0

$ 
   

   
  

49
0,

74
8

$ 
   

   
45

,5
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
7,

14
8,

82
3

$ 
   

   
   

16

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 B
u

d
g

et
 V

s 
P

ri
o

r 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r

17

A
rr

o
yo

 G
ra

n
d

e
G

ro
ve

r 
B

ea
ch

P
is

m
o

 B
ea

ch
C

S
A

 1
2

O
ce

an
o

 C
S

D
O

th
er

 
T

o
ta

l A
g

en
cy

 
B

u
d

g
et

s
17

18
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
19

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

(1
3,

97
1)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

(5
,2

37
)

$ 
   

   
   

  
(6

22
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
(2

,0
89

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

(9
25

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
2,

84
5)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

19
20

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
5,

92
4

(6
96

)
(3

2,
17

0)
(5

2,
41

1)
(7

,9
70

)
(1

3,
52

9)
(1

00
,8

51
)

20
21

N
on

 R
ou

tin
e 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
13

2,
91

8
46

,4
34

46
,4

34
19

,5
60

17
,5

87
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
26

2,
93

3
21

22
C

ap
ita

l O
ut

la
y

42
,5

41
14

,8
61

14
,8

61
6,

26
0

5,
62

9
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
84

,1
53

22
23

23
24

T
ot

al
16

7,
41

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
55

,3
63

$ 
   

   
   

 
28

,5
03

$ 
   

   
  

(2
8,

68
0)

$ 
   

   
   

14
,3

21
$ 

   
   

  
(1

3,
52

9)
$ 

   
   

   
  

22
3,

39
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
24

Fl
oo

d 
C

on
tr

ol
 Z

on
e 

3
S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 P

ro
po

se
d 

an
d 

P
ri

or
 Y

ea
r 

B
ud

ge
ts

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 135 of 149



Flood Control Zone 3 Billing Analysis for 2019-20 Proposed Budget

1/10/2019
A B C D E F G H I J K L M N P Q R S

1 Dist. Method Arroyo Grande Grover Beach Pismo Beach CSA 12 Oceano CSD FC Zone 3      District 
Reserves Avila Beach CSD Avila Mutual Water San Miguelito Water SL Coastal Unifed

FCZ3 Property Tax 
(portion of 1%     

Prop 13)

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Unincorp Areas

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Contracting 
Agencies

Other:
Reimbursable TOTAL 1

2 4530 ACRE FEET 2,290 800 800 337 303 4,530 2
3 Percentage based on Acre Feet Entitlement A 50.55% 17.66% 17.66% 7.44% 6.69% 100.00% 3
4 Percentage used for Unit C E 41.30% 41.30% 17.40% 100.00% 4
5 Percentage used for Unit E F 70.36% 29.64% 100.00% 5
6 Percentage used for Unit F G 54.27% 45.73% 100.00% 6
7 DEBT SERVICE 7
8 BONDS: 8
9 BOND INTEREST 790,663 198,804 42,743 0 33,331 0 142,613 17,136 356,036 790,663 9

10 BOND PRINCIPAL 975,000 245,154 52,708 0 41,102 0 175,862 21,131 439,043 975,000 10

11 ADMIN FEE 3,000 1,517 530 0 223 201 530 3,000 11

12  OCSD LOAN 41,577 41,577 41,577 12

13 STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN: 13

14 LOAN INTEREST 401,402 A 202,909 70,888 70,888 29,864 26,854 401,402 14

15 LOAN PRINCIPAL 1,270,480 A 642,228 224,367 224,367 94,524 84,995 1,270,480 15

16 RESERVE REQUIREMENTS 164,015 A 82,909 28,965 28,965 12,203 10,973 164,015 16

17 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE $3,646,137 $1,373,521 $420,200 $324,220 $211,247 $164,599 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $318,476 $38,267 $795,608 $0 $3,646,137 17
 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

Arroyo Grande Grover Beach Pismo Beach CSA 12 Oceano CSD FC Zone 3      District 
Reserves Avila Beach CSD Avila Mutual Water San Miguelito Water SL Coastal Unifed

FCZ3 Property Tax 
(portion of 1%     

Prop 13)

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Unincorp Areas

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Contracting 
Agencies

Other:
Reimbursable TOTAL

Routine
18 UNIT A - MAIN DAM 320,073 A 161,803 56,525 56,525 23,811 21,409 320,073 18
19 TERMINAL DAM 186,695 A 94,378 32,970 32,970 13,889 12,488 186,695 19
20 WATER TREATMENT 2,482,708 A 1,255,055 438,447 438,447 184,696 166,062 2,482,708 20
21 UNIT B 12,735 A 6,438 2,249 2,249 947 852 12,735 21
22 UNIT B, Part 2 (with state water)  15,105 A 7,636 2,667 2,667 1,124 1,010 15,105 22
23 ARROYO GRANDE METER STATION 12,469 12,469 0 0 0 0 12,469 23
24 UNIT C 8,785 E 0 3,628 3,628 1,529 0 8,785 24
25 UNIT D 6,896 0 0 0 0 6,896 6,896 25
26 GROVER BEACH METER STATION 12,785 0 12,785 0 0 0 12,785 26
27 OCEANO METER VAULT 11,685 0 0 0 0 11,685 11,685 27
28 UNIT E 11,524 F 0 0 8,109 3,416 0 11,524 28
29 PISMO BEACH METER STATION 12,548 0 0 12,548 0 0 12,548 29
30 UNIT F 7,228 G 0 0 3,922 3,305 0 7,228 30
31 UNIT G 6,392 0 0 0 6,392 0 6,392 31
32 UNIT H 6,962 0 0 0 6,962 0 6,962 32
33 UNIT I 20,706 0 0 0 20,706 0 20,706 33
34 UNIT J 13,955 0 0 0 13,955 0 13,955 34
35 AVILA & PORT METER STATION 14,263 0 0 0 14,263 0 14,263 35
36 SAN MIGUELITO LAB CHARGES 2,400 0 0 0 0 0 2,400 2,400 36
37 SAN MIGUELITO METER STATION 10,467 0 0 0 0 0 10,467 10,467 37
38 STAFF TIME FOR CONTRACT CHANGE MODELING 5,353 A 2,706 945 945 398 358 5,353 38
39 LOW RESERVOIR RESPONSE PLAN REVISIONS 5,353 A 2,706 945 945 398 358 5,353 39
40 ANNUAL PERMITS 20,343 A 10,284 3,593 3,593 1,513 1,361 20,343 40
41 FCZ3 SCADA EFFORTS O&M 94,107 A 47,573 16,619 16,619 7,001 6,295 94,107 41
42 GENERAL 30,042 A 15,187 5,305 5,305 2,235 2,009 30,042 42
43 WQ EFFORTS SPECIAL PROJECT 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 43
44 COUNTYWIDE OVERHEAD 62,641 A 31,666 11,062 11,062 4,660 4,190 62,641 44
45 SB2557 EXPENDITURES 4,941 A 2,498 873 873 368 330 4,941 45
46 UTILITIES DIVISION 173,657 A 87,787 30,668 30,668 12,919 11,615 173,657 46
47 ACCOUNTING & ADMINISTRATION 113,012 A 57,130 19,958 19,958 8,407 7,559 113,012 47
48 ADVISORY GROUP MEETINGS 38,069 A 19,245 6,723 6,723 2,832 2,546 38,069 48
49 RESIDENCES MAINTENANCE 8,237 A 4,164 1,455 1,455 613 551 8,237 49
50 DBP RULE 1,202 A 608 212 212 89 80 1,202 50
51 RODRIGUEZ BRIDGE ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING Closed in FY 18/19 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 51
52 ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING 34,075 A 17,226 6,018 6,018 2,535 2,279 34,075 52
53 QUAGGA MUSSEL MONITORING 47,694 A 24,110 8,423 8,423 3,548 3,190 47,694 53
54 ELECTRICAL EQUIP ANALYSIS (TEGG) 17,108 A 8,648 3,021 3,021 1,273 1,144 17,108 54
55 STREAM GAGES 5,822 A 2,943 1,028 1,028 433 389 5,822 55
56 LOPEZ AT&T CELL SITE LEASE PRELIM EFFORT 1,926 0 0 0 0 0 1,926 1,926 56

57 Adjust for State Water Wheeling 54,437 0 0 25,410 0 9,864 5,911 2,531 10,134 588 54,437 57

58 TOTAL ROUTINE    O & M $3,894,400 $1,872,258 $666,121 $703,325 $344,216 $274,522 $0 $5,911 $2,531 $23,001 $588 $0 $0 $0 $1,926 $3,894,400 58

Arroyo Grande Grover Beach Pismo Beach CSA 12 Oceano CSD FC Zone 3      District 
Reserves Avila Beach CSD Avila Mutual Water San Miguelito Water SL Coastal Unifed

FCZ3 Property Tax 
(portion of 1%     

Prop 13)

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Unincorp Areas

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Contracting 
Agencies

Other:
Reimbursable TOTAL

Non Routine
59 FCZ 3 LOPEZ WATER RIGHTS/HCP 114,956 A 58,112 20,301 20,301 8,552 7,689 114,956 59
60 PIGGING - UNIT B Closed in FY 18/19 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 60
61 ISF SHARED EQUIPMENT CONTRIBUTION 36,843 A 18,625 6,506 6,506 2,741 2,464 36,843 61
62 DOMESTIC & FIREFLOW TANKS ASSESSMENT 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 62
63 SPILL PREVENTION VALVE #5 & #11 REPLACEMENT Closed in FY 18/19 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 63
64 EQUIPMENT AUDIT/REPLACEMENT PLAN 25,000 A 12,638 4,415 4,415 1,860 1,672 25,000 64
65 EXISTING BYPASS PIPELINE CONDITION ASSESSMENT 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 65
66 WATER TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES STUDY 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 66
67 CLOUD SEEDING PROGRAM 300,000 A 151,656 52,980 52,980 22,318 20,066 300,000 67
68 REPAIR FAULT ZONE AT LEFT DAM ABUTMENT 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 68
69 REPAIRS TO DOMESTIC & FIREFLOW TANKS 100,000 A 50,552 17,660 17,660 7,439 6,689 100,000 69

70 Adjust for State Water Wheeling- Pigging Portion 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 70

71 TOTAL NON-ROUTINE    O & M $576,799 $291,583 $101,863 $101,863 $42,910 $38,581 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $576,799 71

Arroyo Grande Grover Beach Pismo Beach CSA 12 Oceano CSD FC Zone 3      District 
Reserves Avila Beach CSD Avila Mutual Water San Miguelito Water SL Coastal Unifed

FCZ3 Property Tax 
(portion of 1%     

Prop 13)

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Unincorp Areas

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Contracting 
Agencies

Other:
Reimbursable TOTAL

Capital Outlay / Reserves
72 POWER MONITORING PROJECT Closed in FY 18/19 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 72
73 IMPROVED BOAT ACCESS AT TERMINAL RESERVOIR 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 73
74 AMMONIA ANALYZER EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENTS (2 EACH) 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 74
75 CATHODIC PROTECTION SURVEY 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 75
76 STRUCTURAL ASSESSMENT OF TERMINAL RESERVOIR DAM 90,000 A 45,497 15,894 15,894 6,695 6,020 90,000 76
77 EQUIPMENT STORAGE GARAGE DESIGN 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 77
78 SAFETY UPGRADES TO WTP 49,153 A 24,848 8,680 8,680 3,657 3,288 49,153 78
79 REBUILD MEMBRANE FEED PUMPS 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 79
80 SPILLWAY PHYSICAL INVESTIGATION 200,000 A 101,104 35,320 35,320 14,879 13,377 200,000 80
81 UNANTICIPATED EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT (ANNUAL) 55,000 A 27,804 9,713 9,713 4,092 3,679 55,000 81
82 AGENCY FUNDED RESERVES FOR FUTURE EQUIPMENT/CAPITAL REPLACEMENT 15,000 A 7,583 2,649 2,649 1,116 1,003 15,000 82

83 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY / RESERVES $409,153 $206,835 $72,257 $72,257 $30,438 $27,367 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $409,153 83

84 TOTAL NON-ROUTINE O&M AND CAPITAL OUTLAY $985,952 $498,417 $174,120 $174,120 $73,348 $65,948 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $985,952 84

85 GRAND TOTAL $8,526,489 $3,744,196 $1,260,441 $1,201,665 $628,811 $505,069 $0 $5,911 $2,531 $23,001 $588 $318,476 $38,267 $795,608 $1,926 $8,526,489 85

5 43.91% 14.78% 14.09% 7.37% 5.92% 0.00% 0.07% 0.03% 0.27% 0.01% 3.74% 0.45% 9.33% 0.02% 100.00% AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 136 of 149



Flood Control Zone 3 Billing Analysis for 2018-19 Proposed Budget

1/10/2019
A B C D E F G H I J K L M N P Q R S

1 Dist. Method Arroyo Grande Grover Beach Pismo Beach CSA 12 Oceano CSD FC Zone 3      District 
Reserves Avila Beach CSD Avila Mutual Water San Miguelito Water SL Coastal Unifed

FCZ3 Property Tax 
(portion of 1%     

Prop 13)

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Unincorp Areas

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Contracting 
Agencies

Other:
Reimbursable TOTAL 1

2 4530 ACRE FEET 2,290 800 800 337 303 4,530 2
3 Percentage based on Acre Feet Entitlement A 50.55% 17.66% 17.66% 7.44% 6.69% 100.00% 3
4 Percentage used for Unit C E 41.30% 41.30% 17.40% 100.00% 4
5 Percentage used for Unit E F 70.36% 29.64% 100.00% 5
6 Percentage used for Unit F G 54.27% 45.73% 100.00% 6
7 DEBT SERVICE 7
8 BONDS: 8
9 BOND INTEREST 833,638 215,003 47,165 0 35,945 0 142,615 18,321 374,589 833,638 9

10 BOND PRINCIPAL 935,000 241,145 52,900 0 40,315 0 159,955 20,549 420,136 935,000 10

11 ADMIN FEE 3,000 1,517 530 0 223 201 530 3,000 11

12  OCSD LOAN 42,266 42,266 42,266 12

13 STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN: 13

14 LOAN INTEREST 437,662 A 221,238 77,291 77,291 32,562 29,280 437,662 14

15 LOAN PRINCIPAL 1,234,221 A 623,898 217,963 217,963 91,826 82,569 1,234,221 15

16 RESERVE REQUIREMENTS 167,541 A 84,692 29,588 29,588 12,465 11,208 167,541 16

17 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE $3,653,326 $1,387,492 $425,437 $324,842 $213,336 $165,524 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $302,570 $38,870 $795,255 $0 $3,653,326 17
 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE
Arroyo Grande Grover Beach Pismo Beach CSA 12 Oceano CSD FC Zone 3      District 

Reserves Avila Beach CSD Avila Mutual Water San Miguelito Water SL Coastal Unifed
FCZ3 Property Tax 

(portion of 1%     
Prop 13)

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Unincorp Areas

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Contracting 
Agencies

Other:
Reimbursable TOTAL

Routine
18 UNIT A - MAIN DAM 301,828 A 152,580 53,303 53,303 22,454 20,188 301,828 18
19 TERMINAL DAM 156,872 A 79,302 27,704 27,704 11,670 10,493 156,872 19
20 WATER TREATMENT 2,436,356 A 1,231,624 430,262 430,262 181,248 162,962 2,436,356 20
21 UNIT B 18,312 A 9,257 3,234 3,234 1,362 1,225 18,312 21
22 UNIT B, Part 2 (with state water)  24,722 A 12,498 4,366 4,366 1,839 1,654 24,722 22
23 ARROYO GRANDE METER STATION 10,874 10,874 0 0 0 0 10,874 23
24 UNIT C 14,359 E 0 5,930 5,930 2,499 0 14,359 24
25 UNIT D 7,294 0 0 0 0 7,294 7,294 25
26 GROVER BEACH METER STATION 12,691 0 12,691 0 0 0 12,691 26
27 OCEANO METER VAULT 9,465 0 0 0 0 9,465 9,465 27
28 UNIT E 23,441 F 0 0 16,493 6,948 0 23,441 28
29 PISMO BEACH METER STATION 11,448 0 0 11,448 0 0 11,448 29
30 UNIT F 12,672 G 0 0 6,877 5,795 0 12,672 30
31 UNIT G 7,611 0 0 0 7,611 0 7,611 31
32 UNIT H 16,267 0 0 0 16,267 0 16,267 32
33 UNIT I 42,547 0 0 0 42,547 0 42,547 33
34 UNIT J 30,970 0 0 0 30,970 0 30,970 34
35 AVILA & PORT METER STATION 10,938 0 0 0 10,938 0 10,938 35
36 SAN MIGUELITO LAB CHARGES 5,131 0 0 0 0 0 5,131 5,131 36
37 SAN MIGUELITO METER STATION 3,221 0 0 0 0 0 3,221 3,221 37
38 STAFF TIME FOR CONTRACT CHANGE MODELING 5,133 A 2,595 906 906 382 343 5,133 38
39 LOW RESERVOIR RESPONSE PLAN REVISIONS 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 39
40 ANNUAL PERMITS 22,532 A 11,390 3,979 3,979 1,676 1,507 22,532 40
41 FCZ3 SCADA EFFORTS O&M 81,047 A 40,971 14,313 14,313 6,029 5,421 81,047 41
42 GENERAL 57,423 A 29,028 10,141 10,141 4,272 3,841 57,423 42
43 WQ EFFORTS SPECIAL PROJECT 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 43
44 COUNTYWIDE OVERHEAD 58,034 A 29,337 10,249 10,249 4,317 3,882 58,034 44
45 SB2557 EXPENDITURES 5,237 A 2,647 925 925 390 350 5,237 45
46 UTILITIES DIVISION 277,470 A 140,266 49,001 49,001 20,642 18,559 277,470 46
47 ACCOUNTING & ADMINISTRATION 90,072 A 45,533 15,907 15,907 6,701 6,025 90,072 47
48 ADVISORY GROUP MEETINGS 40,284 A 20,364 7,114 7,114 2,997 2,694 40,284 48
49 RESIDENCES MAINTENANCE 8,212 A 4,151 1,450 1,450 611 549 8,212 49
50 DBP RULE 11,008 A 5,565 1,944 1,944 819 736 11,008 50
51 RODRIGUEZ BRIDGE ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING 8,401 A 4,247 1,484 1,484 625 562 8,401 51
52 ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING 7,446 A 3,764 1,315 1,315 554 498 7,446 52
53 QUAGGA MUSSEL MONITORING 37,168 A 18,789 6,564 6,564 2,765 2,486 37,168 53
54 ELECTRICAL EQUIP ANALYSIS (TEGG) 18,023 A 9,111 3,183 3,183 1,341 1,206 18,023 54
55 STREAM GAGES 4,827 A 2,440 852 852 359 323 4,827 55
56 LOPEZ AT&T CELL SITE LEASE PRELIM EFFORT 2,782 0 0 0 0 0 2,782 2,782 56

57 Adjust for State Water Wheeling 103,988 0 0 46,551 0 20,229 11,431 5,038 19,596 1,143 103,988 57

58 TOTAL ROUTINE    O & M $3,996,107 $1,866,334 $666,817 $735,495 $396,627 $282,492 $0 $11,431 $5,038 $27,948 $1,143 $0 $0 $0 $2,782 $3,996,107 58

Arroyo Grande Grover Beach Pismo Beach CSA 12 Oceano CSD FC Zone 3      District 
Reserves Avila Beach CSD Avila Mutual Water San Miguelito Water SL Coastal Unifed

FCZ3 Property Tax 
(portion of 1%     

Prop 13)

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Unincorp Areas

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Contracting 
Agencies

Other:
Reimbursable TOTAL

Non Routine
59 FCZ 3 LOPEZ WATER RIGHTS/HCP 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 59
60 PIGGING - UNIT B 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 60
61 ISF SHARED EQUIPMENT CONTRIBUTION 13,866 A 7,010 2,449 2,449 1,032 927 13,866 61
62 DOMESTIC & FIREFLOW TANKS ASSESSMENT 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 62
63 SPILL PREVENTION VALVE #5 & #11 REPLACEMENT 40,000 A 20,221 7,064 7,064 2,976 2,675 40,000 63
64 EQUIPMENT AUDIT/REPLACEMENT PLAN 25,000 A 12,638 4,415 4,415 1,860 1,672 25,000 64
65 EXISTING BYPASS PIPELINE CONDITION ASSESSMENT 20,000 A 10,110 3,532 3,532 1,488 1,338 20,000 65
66 WATER TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES STUDY 35,000 A 17,693 6,181 6,181 2,604 2,341 35,000 66
67 CLOUD SEEDING PROGRAM 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 67
68 REPAIR FAULT ZONE AT LEFT DAM ABUTMENT 180,000 A 90,993 31,788 31,788 13,391 12,040 180,000 68
69 REPAIRS TO DOMESTIC & FIREFLOW TANKS 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 69

70 Adjust for State Water Wheeling- Pigging Portion 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 70

71 TOTAL NON-ROUTINE    O & M $313,866 $158,665 $55,429 $55,429 $23,349 $20,994 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $313,866 71

Arroyo Grande Grover Beach Pismo Beach CSA 12 Oceano CSD FC Zone 3      District 
Reserves Avila Beach CSD Avila Mutual Water San Miguelito Water SL Coastal Unifed

FCZ3 Property Tax 
(portion of 1%     

Prop 13)

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Unincorp Areas

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Contracting 
Agencies

Other:
Reimbursable TOTAL

Capital Outlay / Reserves
72 POWER MONITORING PROJECT 30,000 A 15,166 5,298 5,298 2,232 2,007 30,000 72
73 IMPROVED BOAT ACCESS AT TERMINAL RESERVOIR 50,000 A 25,276 8,830 8,830 3,720 3,344 50,000 73
74 AMMONIA ANALYZER EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENTS (2 EACH) 30,000 A 15,166 5,298 5,298 2,232 2,007 30,000 74
75 CATHODIC PROTECTION SURVEY 45,000 A 22,748 7,947 7,947 3,348 3,010 45,000 75
76 STRUCTURAL ASSESSMENT OF TERMINAL RESERVOIR DAM 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 76
77 EQUIPMENT STORAGE GARAGE DESIGN 65,000 A 32,859 11,479 11,479 4,836 4,348 65,000 77
78 SAFETY UPGRADES TO WTP 15,000 A 7,583 2,649 2,649 1,116 1,003 15,000 78
79 REBUILD MEMBRANE FEED PUMPS 35,000 A 17,693 6,181 6,181 2,604 2,341 35,000 79
80 SPILLWAY PHYSICAL INVESTIGATION 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 80
81 UNANTICIPATED EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT (ANNUAL) 55,000 A 27,804 9,713 9,713 4,092 3,679 55,000 81
82 AGENCY FUNDED RESERVES FOR FUTURE EQUIPMENT/CAPITAL REPLACEMENT 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 82

83 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY / RESERVES $325,000 $164,294 $57,395 $57,395 $24,178 $21,738 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $325,000 83

84 TOTAL NON-ROUTINE O&M AND CAPITAL OUTLAY $638,866 $322,959 $112,824 $112,824 $47,527 $42,732 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $638,866 84

85 GRAND TOTAL $8,288,299 $3,576,785 $1,205,078 $1,173,161 $657,490 $490,748 $0 $11,431 $5,038 $27,948 $1,143 $302,570 $38,870 $795,255 $2,782 $8,288,299 85

6 43.15% 14.54% 14.15% 7.93% 5.92% 0.00% 0.14% 0.06% 0.34% 0.01% 3.65% 0.47% 9.59% 0.03% 100.00% AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 137 of 149



Flood Control Zone 3 Comparative Billing Analysis for 2019-20  Proposed vs. 2018-19  Final Budgets

1/10/2019
A B C D E F G H I J K L M N P Q R S

1 Dist. Method Arroyo Grande Grover Beach Pismo Beach CSA 12 Oceano CSD FC Zone 3      District 
Reserves Avila Beach CSD Avila Mutual Water San Miguelito Water SL Coastal Unifed

FCZ3 Property Tax 
(portion of 1%     

Prop 13)

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Unincorp Areas

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Contracting 
Agencies

Other:
Reimbursable TOTAL 1

2 4530 ACRE FEET 2,290 800 800 337 303 4,530 2
3 Percentage based on Acre Feet Entitlement A 50.55% 17.66% 17.66% 7.44% 6.69% 100.00% 3
4 Percentage used for Unit C E 41.30% 41.30% 17.40% 100.00% 4
5 Percentage used for Unit E F 70.36% 29.64% 100.00% 5
6 Percentage used for Unit F G 54.27% 45.73% 100.00% 6
7 DEBT SERVICE 7
8 BONDS: 8
9 BOND INTEREST (42,975) (16,198) (4,422) 0 (2,614) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) (1,186) (18,554) 0 (42,975) 9

10 BOND PRINCIPAL 40,000 4,009 (192) 0 787 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,907 582 18,907 0 40,000 10

11 ADMIN FEE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11

12  OCSD LOAN (689) 0 0 0 0 (689) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (689) 12

13 STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13

14 LOAN INTEREST (36,259) A (18,329) (6,403) (6,403) (2,698) (2,426) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (36,259) 14

15 LOAN PRINCIPAL 36,260 A 18,329 6,403 6,403 2,698 2,426 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36,260 15

16 RESERVE REQUIREMENTS (3,526) A (1,783) (623) (623) (262) (236) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (3,526) 16

17 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE ($7,189) ($13,971) ($5,237) ($622) ($2,089) ($925) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,906 ($604) $354 $0 ($7,189) 17
 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

Arroyo Grande Grover Beach Pismo Beach CSA 12 Oceano CSD FC Zone 3      District 
Reserves Avila Beach CSD Avila Mutual Water San Miguelito Water SL Coastal Unifed

FCZ3 Property Tax 
(portion of 1%     

Prop 13)

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Unincorp Areas

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Contracting 
Agencies

Other:
Reimbursable TOTAL

Routine
18 UNIT A - MAIN DAM 18,245 A 9,223 3,222 3,222 1,357 1,220 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18,245 18
19 TERMINAL DAM 29,823 A 15,076 5,267 5,267 2,219 1,995 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29,823 19
20 WATER TREATMENT 46,352 A 23,432 8,186 8,186 3,448 3,100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 46,352 20
21 UNIT B (5,577) A (2,819) (985) (985) (415) (373) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (5,577) 21
22 UNIT B, Part 2 (with state water)  (9,618) A (4,862) (1,698) (1,698) (715) (643) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (9,618) 22
23 ARROYO GRANDE METER STATION 1,595 1,595 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,595 23
24 UNIT C (5,574) E 0 (2,302) (2,302) (970) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (5,574) 24
25 UNIT D (398) 0 0 0 0 (398) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (398) 25
26 GROVER BEACH METER STATION 94 0 94 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 94 26
27 OCEANO METER VAULT 2,220 0 0 0 0 2,220 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,220 27
28 UNIT E (11,917) F 0 0 (8,385) (3,532) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (11,917) 28
29 PISMO BEACH METER STATION 1,100 0 0 1,100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,100 29
30 UNIT F (5,444) G 0 0 (2,954) (2,490) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (5,444) 30
31 UNIT G (1,219) 0 0 0 (1,219) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1,219) 31
32 UNIT H (9,306) 0 0 0 (9,306) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (9,306) 32
33 UNIT I (21,841) 0 0 0 (21,841) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (21,841) 33
34 UNIT J (17,016) 0 0 0 (17,016) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (17,016) 34
35 AVILA & PORT METER STATION 3,325 0 0 0 3,325 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,325 35
36 SAN MIGUELITO LAB CHARGES (2,731) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (2,731) 0 0 0 0 0 (2,731) 36
37 SAN MIGUELITO METER STATION 7,246 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,246 0 0 0 0 0 7,246 37
38 STAFF TIME FOR CONTRACT CHANGE MODELING 220 A 111 39 39 16 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 220 38
39 LOW RESERVOIR RESPONSE PLAN REVISIONS 5,353 A 2,706 945 945 398 358 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,353 39
40 ANNUAL PERMITS (2,189) A (1,107) (387) (387) (163) (146) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (2,189) 40
41 FCZ3 SCADA EFFORTS O&M 13,060 A 6,602 2,306 2,306 972 874 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13,060 41
42 GENERAL (27,381) A (13,842) (4,835) (4,835) (2,037) (1,831) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (27,381) 42
43 WQ EFFORTS SPECIAL PROJECT 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 43
44 COUNTYWIDE OVERHEAD 4,607 A 2,329 814 814 343 308 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,607 44
45 SB2557 EXPENDITURES (296) A (150) (52) (52) (22) (20) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (296) 45
46 UTILITIES DIVISION (103,813) A (52,479) (18,333) (18,333) (7,723) (6,944) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (103,813) 46
47 ACCOUNTING & ADMINISTRATION 22,940 A 11,597 4,051 4,051 1,707 1,534 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22,940 47
48 ADVISORY GROUP MEETINGS (2,215) A (1,120) (391) (391) (165) (148) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (2,215) 48
49 RESIDENCES MAINTENANCE 25 A 13 4 4 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 49
50 DBP RULE (9,806) A (4,957) (1,732) (1,732) (729) (656) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (9,806) 50
51 RODRIGUEZ BRIDGE ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING (8,401) A (4,247) (1,484) (1,484) (625) (562) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (8,401) 51
52 ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING 26,629 A 13,461 4,703 4,703 1,981 1,781 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 26,629 52
53 QUAGGA MUSSEL MONITORING 10,526 A 5,321 1,859 1,859 783 704 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,526 53
54 ELECTRICAL EQUIP ANALYSIS (TEGG) (915) A (463) (162) (162) (68) (61) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (915) 54
55 STREAM GAGES 995 A 503 176 176 74 67 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 995 55
56 LOPEZ AT&T CELL SITE LEASE PRELIM EFFORT (856) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (856) (856) 56

57 Adjust for State Water Wheeling (49,550) 0 0 (21,141) 0 (10,365) 0 (5,519) (2,507) (9,462) (555) 0 0 0 0 (49,550) 57

58 TOTAL ROUTINE    O & M ($101,707) $5,924 ($696) ($32,170) ($52,411) ($7,970) $0 ($5,519) ($2,507) ($4,947) ($555) $0 $0 $0 ($856) ($101,707) 58

Arroyo Grande Grover Beach Pismo Beach CSA 12 Oceano CSD FC Zone 3      District 
Reserves Avila Beach CSD Avila Mutual Water San Miguelito Water SL Coastal Unifed

FCZ3 Property Tax 
(portion of 1%     

Prop 13)

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Unincorp Areas

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Contracting 
Agencies

Other:
Reimbursable TOTAL

Non Routine
59 FCZ 3 LOPEZ WATER RIGHTS/HCP 114,956 A 58,112 20,301 20,301 8,552 7,689 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 114,956 59
60 PIGGING - UNIT B 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 60
61 ISF SHARED EQUIPMENT CONTRIBUTION 22,977 A 11,615 4,058 4,058 1,709 1,537 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22,977 61
62 DOMESTIC & FIREFLOW TANKS ASSESSMENT 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 62
63 SPILL PREVENTION VALVE #5 & #11 REPLACEMENT (40,000) A (20,221) (7,064) (7,064) (2,976) (2,675) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (40,000) 63
64 EQUIPMENT AUDIT/REPLACEMENT PLAN 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 64
65 EXISTING BYPASS PIPELINE CONDITION ASSESSMENT (20,000) A (10,110) (3,532) (3,532) (1,488) (1,338) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (20,000) 65
66 WATER TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES STUDY (35,000) A (17,693) (6,181) (6,181) (2,604) (2,341) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (35,000) 66
67 CLOUD SEEDING PROGRAM 300,000 A 151,656 52,980 52,980 22,318 20,066 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 300,000 67
68 REPAIR FAULT ZONE AT LEFT DAM ABUTMENT (180,000) A (90,993) (31,788) (31,788) (13,391) (12,040) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (180,000) 68
69 REPAIRS TO DOMESTIC & FIREFLOW TANKS 100,000 A 50,552 17,660 17,660 7,439 6,689 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100,000 69

70 Adjust for State Water Wheeling- Pigging Portion 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 70

71 TOTAL NON-ROUTINE    O & M $262,933 $132,918 $46,434 $46,434 $19,560 $17,587 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $262,933 71

Arroyo Grande Grover Beach Pismo Beach CSA 12 Oceano CSD FC Zone 3      District 
Reserves Avila Beach CSD Avila Mutual Water San Miguelito Water SL Coastal Unifed

FCZ3 Property Tax 
(portion of 1%     

Prop 13)

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Unincorp Areas

G.O. Tax Collection:  
Contracting 
Agencies

Other:
Reimbursable TOTAL

Capital Outlay / Reserves
72 POWER MONITORING PROJECT (30,000) A (15,166) (5,298) (5,298) (2,232) (2,007) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (30,000) 72
73 IMPROVED BOAT ACCESS AT TERMINAL RESERVOIR (50,000) A (25,276) (8,830) (8,830) (3,720) (3,344) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (50,000) 73
74 AMMONIA ANALYZER EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENTS (2 EACH) (30,000) A (15,166) (5,298) (5,298) (2,232) (2,007) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (30,000) 74
75 CATHODIC PROTECTION SURVEY (45,000) A (22,748) (7,947) (7,947) (3,348) (3,010) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (45,000) 75
76 STRUCTURAL ASSESSMENT OF TERMINAL RESERVOIR DAM 90,000 A 45,497 15,894 15,894 6,695 6,020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 90,000 76
77 EQUIPMENT STORAGE GARAGE DESIGN (65,000) A (32,859) (11,479) (11,479) (4,836) (4,348) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (65,000) 77
78 SAFETY UPGRADES TO WTP 34,153 A 17,265 6,031 6,031 2,541 2,284 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34,153 78
79 REBUILD MEMBRANE FEED PUMPS (35,000) A (17,693) (6,181) (6,181) (2,604) (2,341) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (35,000) 79
80 SPILLWAY PHYSICAL INVESTIGATION 200,000 A 101,104 35,320 35,320 14,879 13,377 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200,000 80
81 UNANTICIPATED EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT (ANNUAL) 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 81
82 AGENCY FUNDED RESERVES FOR FUTURE EQUIPMENT/CAPITAL REPLACEMENT 15,000 A 7,583 2,649 2,649 1,116 1,003 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,000 82

83 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY / RESERVES $84,153 $42,541 $14,861 $14,861 $6,260 $5,629 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $84,153 83

84 TOTAL NON-ROUTINE O&M AND CAPITAL OUTLAY $347,086 $175,458 $61,296 $61,296 $25,821 $23,216 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $347,086 84

85 GRAND TOTAL $238,190 $167,411 $55,363 $28,503 ($28,680) $14,321 $0 ($5,519) ($2,507) ($4,947) ($555) $15,906 ($604) $354 ($856) $238,190 85

7 70.28% 23.24% 11.97% -12.04% 6.01% 0.00% -2.32% -1.05% -2.08% -0.23% 6.68% -0.25% 0.15% -0.36% 100.00% AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 138 of 149



Fl
oo

d 
C

on
tr

ol
 Z

on
e 

3
R

es
er

ve
s

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 a

t 
6/

30
/2

0

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

 1 
 R

es
er

ve
 T

yp
e 

 A
rro

yo
 G

ra
nd

e 
 G

ro
ve

r B
ea

ch
 

 P
ism

o 
Be

ac
h 

 C
SA

 12
 

 O
ce

an
o 

CS
D 

 F
C 

Zo
ne

 3 
 T

ot
al 

 2 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

F
u

n
d

ed

 3 
O

pe
ra

tin
g

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

37
7,

73
7

$ 
   

   
 

2,
37

7,
73

7
$ 

   
   

 4 
D

es
ig

na
te

d
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

65
8,

80
5

   
   

   
   

 
65

8,
80

5
   

   
   

   

  8 

 5 
C

o
n

tr
ac

to
r 

F
u

n
d

ed

 6 
S

ch
ed

ul
ed

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 7 
C

ap
ita

l
13

5,
47

9
   

   
 

47
,3

29
   

   
   

47
,3

29
   

   
  

19
,9

38
   

   
   

  
17

,9
25

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
26

8,
00

0
   

   
   

   

 8 
B

ill
in

g 
S

ta
bi

liz
at

io
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 9 
T

o
ta

l 
13

5,
47

9
$ 

   
 

47
,3

29
$ 

   
   

47
,3

29
$ 

   
  

19
,9

38
$ 

   
   

  
17

,9
25

$ 
   

   
3,

03
6,

54
2

$ 
   

   
 

3,
30

4,
54

2
$ 

   
   

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 139 of 149



Fl
oo

d 
C

on
tr

ol
 Z

on
e 

3
R

es
er

ve
s

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 a

t 
6/

30
/1

9

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

 1 
 R

es
er

ve
 T

yp
e 

 A
rro

yo
 G

ra
nd

e 
 G

ro
ve

r B
ea

ch
 

 P
ism

o 
Be

ac
h 

 C
SA

 12
 

 O
ce

an
o 

CS
D 

 F
C 

Zo
ne

 3 
 T

ot
al 

 2 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

F
u

n
d

ed

 3 
O

pe
ra

tin
g

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
28

2,
26

9
$ 

   
 

2,
28

2,
26

9
$ 

   
 

 4 
D

es
ig

na
te

d
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
65

0,
17

3
   

   
   

 
65

0,
17

3
   

   
   

 

 9 

 5 
C

o
n

tr
ac

to
r 

F
u

n
d

ed

 6 
S

ch
ed

ul
ed

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 7 
C

ap
ita

l
12

7,
89

6
   

   
 

44
,6

80
   

   
   

44
,6

80
   

   
   

18
,8

22
   

   
   

  
16

,9
22

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
3,

00
0

   
   

   
 

 8 
B

ill
in

g 
S

ta
bi

liz
at

io
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 9 
T

o
ta

l 
12

7,
89

6
$ 

   
 

44
,6

80
$ 

   
   

44
,6

80
$ 

   
   

18
,8

22
$ 

   
   

  
16

,9
22

$ 
   

   
2,

93
2,

44
2

$ 
   

 
3,

18
5,

44
2

$ 
   

 

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 140 of 149



Fl
oo

d 
C

on
tr

ol
 Z

on
e 

3
R

es
er

ve
s

20
19

-2
0 

C
ha

ng
es

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

 1 
 R

es
er

ve
 T

yp
e 

 A
rro

yo
 G

ra
nd

e 
 G

ro
ve

r B
ea

ch
 

 P
ism

o 
Be

ac
h 

 C
SA

 12
 

 O
ce

an
o 

CS
D 

 F
C 

Zo
ne

 3 
 T

ot
al 

 2 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

F
u

n
d

ed

 3 
O

pe
ra

tin
g

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

95
,4

68
$ 

   
   

95
,4

68
$ 

   
   

 4 
D

es
ig

na
te

d
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

63
2

   
   

   
  

8,
63

2
   

   
   

  

 10 

 5 
C

o
n

tr
ac

to
r 

F
u

n
d

ed

 6 
S

ch
ed

ul
ed

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 7 
C

ap
ita

l
7,

58
3

   
   

   
  

2,
64

9
   

   
   

  
2,

64
9

   
   

   
  

1,
11

6
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

3
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

   
   

   

 8 
B

ill
in

g 
S

ta
bi

liz
at

io
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 9 
T

o
ta

l 
7,

58
3

$ 
   

   
  

2,
64

9
$ 

   
   

  
2,

64
9

$ 
   

   
  

1,
11

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
00

3
$ 

   
   

  
10

4,
10

0
$ 

   
 

11
9,

10
0

$ 
   

 

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 141 of 149



 F
lo

od
 C

on
tr

ol
 Z

on
e 

3 
Fu

nd
 C

on
so

lid
at

io
n 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
19

-2
0

A
B

C
D

E
F

 1 
 F

un
d 

 F
CZ

3 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
 S

ta
te

 R
ev

ol
vin

g 
Fu

nd
 L

oa
n 

 L
op

ez
 D

am
 C

OP
 

Bo
nd

s  
 

 L
op

ez
 D

am
 G

O 
Bo

nd
s  

    
   

 T
ot

al 

 22
00

50
00

00
 

 22
00

50
70

00
 

 22
00

50
50

00
 

 22
00

50
60

00
 

2
P

ro
je

ct
ed

 B
al

an
ce

 @
 7

/1
/1

9
3,

18
5,

44
2

$ 
   

  
1,

56
6,

92
3

$ 
   

   
   

22
,9

02
$ 

   
   

   
  

2,
50

5,
55

0
$ 

   
   

7,
28

0,
81

5
$ 

   
   

3
In

fl
o

w
s

4
R

ev
en

u
es

 
7,

84
9,

98
0

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
93

1,
78

8
   

   
   

   
83

3,
87

5
   

   
   

   
9,

61
5,

64
3

   
   

   
5

T
ra

n
sf

er
s 

In
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
83

5,
89

8
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

83
5,

89
8

   
   

   

 11 

6
O

u
tf

lo
w

s
7

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s

(7
,7

30
,8

80
)

   
   

 
(1

,6
71

,8
83

)
   

   
   

 
(9

31
,7

88
)

   
   

   
  

(8
33

,8
75

)
   

   
   

  
(1

1,
16

8,
42

5)
   

   
8

T
ra

n
sf

er
s 

O
u

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9
P

ro
je

ct
ed

 B
al

an
ce

 @
 6

/3
0/

20
3,

30
4,

54
2

$ 
   

  
1,

73
0,

93
7

$ 
   

   
   

22
,9

02
$ 

   
   

   
  

2,
50

5,
55

0
$ 

   
   

7,
56

3,
93

0
$ 

   
   

 

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 142 of 149



F
L

O
O

D
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 Z
O

N
E

 3
 

20
19

-2
0 

 B
il

li
n

g
 f

o
r 

A
g

en
cy

 D
eb

t 
S

er
vi

ce
 

B
C

D
E

F
G

H
I

J

A
rr

o
yo

 G
ra

n
d

e
P

is
m

o
 B

e
a

c
h

G
ro

ve
r 

B
e

a
c

h
O

C
S

D
C

S
A

 1
2

G
.O

. T
ax

 
C

o
lle

ct
io

n
: 

 
U

n
in

co
rp

 
A

re
as

F
C

Z
3 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 T

ax
 

(p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
1%

  
  

P
ro

p
 

13
)

G
.O

. T
ax

 
C

o
lle

ct
io

n
: 

 
C

o
n

tr
ac

ti
n

g
 

A
g

en
ci

es
T

O
T

A
L

1
B

o
n

d
 D

eb
t 

S
er

vi
ce

2
G

.O
. 

D
eb

t 
S

er
vi

ce
28

6,
52

3
$ 

   
   

   
 

25
5,

80
1

$ 
   

   
   

 
15

9,
82

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

60
,4

23
$ 

   
   

  
33

,0
42

$ 
   

   
38

,2
67

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

83
3,

87
5

$ 
   

   
  

3
In

st
al

lm
en

t 
D

eb
t 

S
er

vi
ce

44
3,

95
8

   
   

   
   

 
(5

30
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
95

,4
51

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
74

,4
33

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
31

8,
47

6
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
93

1,
78

8
   

   
   

  

4
C

re
di

t F
or

 G
.O

. C
ol

le
ct

io
ns

(2
86

,5
23

)
   

   
   

   
(2

55
,8

01
)

   
   

   
   

(1
59

,8
20

)
   

   
   

   
 

(6
0,

42
3)

   
   

   
(3

3,
04

2)
   

   
  

(3
8,

26
7)

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

(8
33

,8
75

)
   

   
   

 

5
A

dm
in

 F
ee

1,
51

7
   

   
   

   
   

  
53

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

53
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
22

3
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

6
S

u
b

to
ta

l
44

5,
47

5
   

   
   

   
 

(0
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

95
,9

81
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
74

,6
56

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
31

8,
47

6
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
93

4,
78

8
   

   
   

  

7
D

is
tr

ic
t 

L
o

an
 t

o
 O

ce
an

o

8
O

ce
an

o 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

Lo
an

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
41

,5
77

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
41

,5
77

   
   

   
   

 

9
S

u
b

to
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

41
,5

77
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

41
,5

77
   

   
   

   
 

12

10
S

ta
te

 R
ev

o
lv

in
g

 F
u

n
d

 L
o

an

11
S

ta
te

 R
ev

ol
vi

ng
 F

un
d 

Lo
an

84
5,

13
7

   
   

   
   

 
29

5,
25

4
   

   
   

   
 

29
5,

25
4

   
   

   
   

  
11

1,
84

9
   

   
   

12
4,

38
8

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
67

1,
88

3
   

   
  

12
S

ta
te

 R
ev

ol
vi

ng
 F

un
d 

Lo
an

 -
 R

es
er

ve
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

82
,9

09
   

   
   

   
   

28
,9

65
   

   
   

   
   

28
,9

65
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,9
73

   
   

   
  

12
,2

03
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
16

4,
01

5
   

   
   

  

13
S

u
b

to
ta

l
92

8,
04

6
   

   
   

   
 

32
4,

22
0

   
   

   
   

 
32

4,
22

0
   

   
   

   
  

12
2,

82
2

   
   

   
13

6,
59

1
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

83
5,

89
8

   
   

  

14
T

o
ta

l 
B

il
la

b
le

 A
g

en
cy

 D
eb

t 
S

er
vi

ce
1,

37
3,

52
1

$ 
   

   
 

32
4,

22
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
42

0,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

16
4,

59
9

$ 
   

   
21

1,
24

7
$ 

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

31
8,

47
6

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2,
81

2,
26

2
$ 

   
  

A
 

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 143 of 149



E
S

TI
M

A
TE

D
 B

IL
LI

N
G

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 fo

r 2
01

8-
19

 &
 2

01
9-

20
S

h
o

w
in

g
 E

st
im

a
te

d
 T

o
ta

l B
ill

in
g

 fo
r:

F
C

Z
 3

 
S

ta
te

 W
at

er
 W

h
e

e
lin

g
C

S
A

 1
2

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I
J

K

1
C

o
n

tr
ac

ti
n

g
 

18
-1

9
18

-1
9

18
-1

9
18

-1
9

18
-1

9
19

-2
0

19
-2

0
19

-2
0

19
-2

0
19

-2
0

2
A

g
e

n
c

y
Z

o
n

e
 3

S
ta

te
F

in
a

l
C

S
A

 1
2

T
o

ta
l

Z
o

n
e

 3
S

ta
te

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
C

S
A

 1
2

T
o

ta
l

3
B

ill
in

g
W

at
er

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
ill

in
g

B
ill

in
g

W
at

er
B

u
d

g
e

t
B

ill
in

g

4
W

h
ee

lin
g

W
h

ee
lin

g
5

A
rr

oy
o 

G
ra

nd
e

3,
57

6,
78

5
$ 

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

3,
57

6,
78

5
$ 

   
  

3,
57

6,
78

5
$ 

  
3,

74
4,

19
6

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
3,

74
4,

19
6

$ 
   

  
3,

74
4,

19
6

$ 
   

 
6

P
is

m
o 

B
ea

ch
1,

12
6,

61
0

   
  

46
,5

51
   

   
 

1,
17

3,
16

1
   

   
  

16
9,

47
4

   
 

1,
34

2,
63

5
   

  
1,

17
6,

25
5

   
   

  
25

,4
10

   
   

   
1,

20
1,

66
5

   
   

  
17

7,
28

5
   

 
1,

37
8,

95
0

   
   

 
7

G
ro

ve
r 

B
ea

ch
1,

20
5,

07
8

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
1,

20
5,

07
8

   
   

  
1,

20
5,

07
8

   
  

1,
26

0,
44

1
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

1,
26

0,
44

1
   

   
  

1,
26

0,
44

1
   

   
 

8
O

ce
an

o
47

0,
51

9
   

   
  

20
,2

29
   

   
 

49
0,

74
8

   
   

   
  

49
0,

74
8

   
   

  
49

5,
20

5
   

   
   

  
9,

86
4

   
   

   
  

50
5,

06
9

   
   

   
  

50
5,

06
9

   
   

   
 

9
C

S
A

 1
2

65
7,

49
0

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

65
7,

49
0

   
   

   
  

65
7,

49
0

   
   

  
62

8,
81

1
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
62

8,
81

1
   

   
   

  
62

8,
81

1
   

   
   

 

13

1
0

A
B

C
S

D
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,4

31
   

   
 

11
,4

31
   

   
   

   
 

10
1,

71
9

   
 

11
3,

15
0

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

91
1

   
   

   
  

5,
91

1
   

   
   

   
   

10
8,

40
9

   
 

11
4,

32
0

   
   

   
 

1
1

A
vi

la
 M

W
C

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

03
8

   
   

   
5,

03
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

21
,3

49
   

   
 

26
,3

87
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

53
1

   
   

   
  

2,
53

1
   

   
   

   
   

22
,3

58
   

   
 

24
,8

89
   

   
   

   
1

2
S

a
n

 M
ig

u
e

lit
o

 W
at

er
 C

o
8

,3
5

2
   

   
   

   
19

,5
96

   
   

 
27

,9
48

   
   

   
   

 
27

,9
48

   
   

   
 

12
,8

67
   

   
   

   
 

10
,1

34
   

   
   

23
,0

01
   

   
   

   
 

23
,0

01
   

   
   

   
1

3
S

L
O

 C
o

a
st

al
 U

S
D

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

14
3

   
   

   
1,

14
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
89

6
   

   
   

10
,0

39
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
58

8
   

   
   

   
  

58
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

9,
31

6
   

   
   

9,
90

3
   

   
   

   
  

1
4

F
C

Z
 3

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

5
S

a
n

 M
ig

u
e

lit
o

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
37

0
   

   
   

7,
37

0
   

   
   

   
7,

70
9

   
   

   
7,

70
9

   
   

   
   

  
16

O
th

er
1,

13
9,

47
7

   
  

1,
13

9,
47

7
   

   
  

31
2,

08
1

   
 

1,
45

1,
55

8
   

  
1,

15
4,

27
7

   
   

  
1,

15
4,

27
7

   
   

  
33

4,
46

6
   

 
1,

48
8,

74
3

   
   

 

17
T

ot
al

:  
8,

18
4,

31
1

$ 
  

10
3,

98
8

$ 
 

8,
28

8,
29

9
$ 

   
  

62
0,

88
9

$ 
 

8,
90

9,
18

8
$ 

  
8,

47
2,

05
2

$ 
   

  
54

,4
37

$ 
   

   
8,

52
6,

48
9

$ 
   

  
65

9,
54

3
$ 

 
9,

18
6,

03
2

$ 
   

 

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 144 of 149



1
A

rr
o

yo
 G

ra
n

d
e

G
ro

ve
r 

B
ea

ch
P

is
m

o
 B

ea
ch

C
S

A
 1

2
O

ce
an

o
 C

S
D

T
o

ta
l A

g
en

cy
 

B
u

d
g

et
s

1
2

2
3

Lo
pe

z 
D

am
 B

on
ds

 a
nd

 A
dm

in
 F

ee
s

44
5,

47
5

$ 
   

   
  

 
95

,9
81

$ 
   

   
 

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

74
,6

56
$ 

   
   

 
20

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

 
61

6,
31

2
$ 

   
  

 
3

4
S

R
F

 L
oa

n 
- 

W
at

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t U
pg

ra
de

92
8,

04
6

   
   

   
  

32
4,

22
0

   
   

  
32

4,
22

0
   

   
  

13
6,

59
1

   
   

  
12

2,
82

2
   

   
  

1,
83

5,
89

8
   

  
 

4
5

O
C

S
D

 L
oa

n
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

41
,5

77
   

   
   

 
41

,5
77

   
   

   
  

5
6

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
1,

87
2,

25
8

   
   

  
 

66
6,

12
1

   
   

  
70

3,
32

5
   

   
  

34
4,

21
6

   
   

  
27

4,
52

2
   

   
  

3,
89

2,
47

4
   

  
 

6
7

N
on

 R
ou

tin
e 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
29

1,
58

3
   

   
   

  
10

1,
86

3
   

   
  

10
1,

86
3

   
   

  
42

,9
10

   
   

   
 

38
,5

81
   

   
   

 
57

6,
79

9
   

   
  

 
7

8
C

ap
ita

l O
ut

la
y

20
6,

83
5

   
   

   
  

72
,2

57
   

   
   

 
72

,2
57

   
   

   
 

30
,4

38
   

   
   

 
27

,3
67

   
   

   
 

40
9,

15
3

   
   

  
 

8
9

9
10

T
ot

al
3,

74
4,

19
6

$ 
   

  
 

1,
26

0,
44

1
$ 

   
1,

20
1,

66
5

$ 
   

62
8,

81
1

$ 
   

  
50

5,
06

9
$ 

   
  

7,
37

2,
21

2
$ 

  
 

10

11
F

C
Z

 3
  -

N
um

be
r 

of
 A

cr
e 

F
ee

t 
2,

29
0

80
0

80
0

33
7

30
3

4,
53

0
11

12
C

o
st

 p
er

 F
C

Z
 3

 A
F

1,
63

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

 
1,

57
6

$ 
   

   
  

 
1,

50
2

$ 
   

   
  

 
1,

86
6

$ 
   

   
  

 
1,

66
7

$ 
   

   
  

 
12

 14 

13
C

S
A

 1
2 

C
os

ts
17

7,
28

5
$ 

   
  

13

14
C

S
A

 1
2 

 -
N

um
be

r 
of

 A
cr

e 
F

ee
t 

92
14

15
C

o
st

 p
er

 C
S

A
 1

2 
 A

F
1,

92
7

$ 
   

   
  

 
15

50
.5

5%
17

.6
6%

17
.6

6%
7.

44
%

6.
69

%
10

0.
00

%

16
B

re
ak

d
o

w
n

 o
f 

C
o

st
 p

er
 A

cr
e 

F
o

o
t 

(F
o

r 
F

C
Z

3 
O

n
ly

):
16

17
Lo

pe
z 

D
am

 B
on

ds
 a

nd
 A

dm
in

 F
ee

s
19

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
 

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
 

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
18

S
R

F
 L

oa
n 

- 
W

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t U

pg
ra

de
40

5
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

40
5

   
   

   
   

  
 

40
5

   
   

   
   

  
 

40
5

   
   

   
   

  
 

40
5

   
   

   
   

  
 

18
19

O
C

S
D

 L
oa

n
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
7

   
   

   
   

  
 

19
20

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
81

8
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

83
3

   
   

   
   

  
 

87
9

   
   

   
   

  
 

1,
02

1
   

   
   

  
 

90
6

   
   

   
   

  
 

20
21

N
on

 R
ou

tin
e 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
12

7
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
7

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
7

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
7

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
7

   
   

   
   

  
 

21
22

C
ap

ita
l O

ut
la

y
90

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
90

   
   

   
   

   
  

90
   

   
   

   
   

  
90

   
   

   
   

   
  

90
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

23
T

ot
al

 C
os

t p
er

 A
cr

e 
F

oo
t

1,
63

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

 
1,

57
6

$ 
   

   
  

 
1,

50
2

$ 
   

   
  

 
1,

86
6

$ 
   

   
  

 
1,

66
7

$ 
   

   
  

 
23

Fo
r 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
19

-2
0

Fl
oo

d 
C

on
tr

ol
 Z

on
e 

3
C

os
t 

P
er

 A
cr

e 
Fo

ot

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 145 of 149



ZONE 3 BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-20
CAPITAL AND SPECIAL PROJECT REQUESTS

Requested Item Reason for Request

Structural Assessment of Terminal Reservoir Dam - $90,000 A structural assessment of the terminal reservoir dam was 
completed in 2018. Results were not conclusive due to lack of 
geologic information. $90,000 will allow for geotechnical testing to 
be performed.

Safety Upgrades - $49,153 A Fall Hazard Survey was performed for the plant facilities and 
safety recommendations were made based upon the findings 
which involve OSHA regulatory requirements.

Spillway Physical Investigation - $200,000 The Department of Safety of Dams (DSOD) requested a complete 
spillway investigation of all spillways at the end of 2017.  DSOD 
required a work plan to be submitted and approved which would 
specify what each agency would do to inspect their spillway.  This 
inspection required a non-destructive assessment and a physical 
(destructive) investigation to determine the condition of the 
spillway.

Unanticipated Equipment Replacement during Fiscal Year - $55,000 For unanticipated purchases of equipment that fail during the fiscal 
year. Including this line item in the budget allows for immediate 
purchase of critical equipment that unexpectedly fails during the 
fiscal year.

Agency Funded Reserves for Future Equip/Capital Replacement - $15,000 Contributions toward the Agency Funded Reserves accumulate for 
the purpose of funding replacement of equipment and capital 
outlays at the Treatment Plant.  Recommended use of these 
reserves are determined by the plant system audit replacement 
schedule, for which annual funding is insufficient, and are 
coordinated with the Technical Advisory Committee and the 
Advisory Committee prior to inclusion in the budget.

TOTAL REQUESTS:  $409,153

 15

AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 146 of 149



AttachmentAgenda Item 9D February 27, 2019 - Page 147 of 149



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Date: February 27, 2019 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Carey Casciola, Business and Accounting Manager 

Subject: Agenda Item #9(E): Receive and file the June 30, 2018 Audited Financial Statements and 
Independent Auditors Report prepared by Moss, Levy and Hartzheim, LLP 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board receive and file the June 30, 2018 Audited Financial Statements and 
Independent Auditors Report prepared by Moss, Levy and Hartzheim, LLP  

Discussion 

The final audit is scheduled to be delivered to the District on Monday February 25, 2019 and will be 
posted to the website and distributed at that time.  The draft audit reviewed by staff and verbally confirmed 
with the auditor provides a “clean” auditor opinion and there are no findings relating the District’s system of 
internal controls that need to be addressed. 

On January 10, 2018 your Board selected Moss, Levy and Hartzheim, LLP as the District Auditors for 
fiscal year 2016-17 through 2018-19.   Also included in the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial 
Statements is a “Management Discussion and Analysis” (MD&A).   MD&A is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in appropriate operational, economic or historical context.  As a result, 
preparation of the MD&A helps ensure the Board that the fiscal issues being addressed by the Board are 
described to the auditors in the MD&A.   

Other Agency Involvement 

The County Auditor and Local Agency Formation Commission will be provided a copy of the audit and 
related communication letters. 

Other Financial Considerations 

Several key fiscal issues were addressed in previous years which illustrates the District’s commitment to 
establishing fiscal stability.  

Agenda Item 9E February 27, 2019 - Page 148 of 149



 Oceano Community Services District
Board of Directors Meeting 

Results 

Completion of the annual audit promotes independent evaluation of the District’s accounting records 
and helps to ensure a well governed community. 

Addendum Materials (to be posted):  

• Oceano Community Services District Financial Statements June 30, 2018 and Independent Auditors Report

Agenda Item 9E February 27, 2019 - Page 149 of 149


	02272019 Regular Meeting Agenda
	02272019 Agenda Item 8A - 01302019 Minutes
	02272019 Agenda Item 8B - Cash Disbursements
	Draft Staff Report
	02272019 REGULAR CR Check Reconciliation Register - 6593
	PAYROLL SUMMARY 02 16 2019
	02272019 UTILITY CR Check Reconciliation Register - 6582
	02272019 HEALTH TASC CR Check Reconciliation Register - 6583

	02272019 Agenda Item 9A - IRWMA Grant
	Staff Report IRWM Grant
	Grant Docs Attachment
	Letter of Transmittal
	IRWM Grant
	IRWM Grant Attachment A
	IRWM Grant Attachment B


	02272019 Agenda Item 9B - Norswing waterline
	Draft Staff Report Norswing
	ENC20190249_ISSUED

	02272019 Agenda Item 9C - SSMP
	Draft 2019 SSMP Audit Staff Report
	Two Year Audit 2017-2018
	Eleven Elements of the Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP)
	SSMP’s include the following eleven elements unless the enrollee can justify why an elements is not applicable.  The 2015 SSMP Update adopted by the OCSD Board of Directors on April 21, 2015 included all eleven elements.
	(i) Goals
	(ii) Organization
	(iii) Legal Authority
	(iv) Operation and Maintenance Program
	(v) Design and Performance Provisions
	(vi) Overflow Emergency Response Plan
	(vii) FOG Control Program
	(viii) System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan
	(ix) Monitoring, Measurement, and Program Modifications
	(x) SSMP Program Audits
	(xi) Communication Program
	Each element is audited by 1) evaluating the implementation of prior audit findings, and 2) evaluating the District’s implementation efforts during the audit period in comparison to the adopted SSMP.  A narrative is provided for each element, includin...


	02272019 Agenda Item 9D - Zone 3 Budget
	02272019 Agenda Item 9E - Audit 06302018



